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1st Page o£ 25 Previous Bottom Just 1st

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

Ixi QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15 (d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended §~p~~mber_~9~~7

OR

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from _ to

Commission file number 33-84778

FREEDOM CHEMICAL COMPANY

(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Charter)

Delaware 51-0340498

(State or Other Jurisdiction
of Incorporation or Organization)

(I.R.S. Employer
Identification No.)

Five Radnor Corporate Center, 100 Matsonford Road, Suite 170,
-~~------------------~-----------~-------------------------~

Radnor, Pennsylvania 19087

(Address of Principal Executive Offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant's Telephone Number, Including Area Code (610)964-9970

------------------------~--------------------------------------------------
(Former Address of Principal Executive Offices, if Changed Since Last Report)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports
required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the
registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such
filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes X No

As of Nove~_ber 13,_J997, 156,501 shares of the reqistrant' s Series A Common
Stock and no shares of the registrant's Series B Common Stock were outstanding.
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FREEDOM CHEMICAL COMPANY and SUBSIDIARIES"------------------~_.._-_ " ,', .., _ ..-
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3rd Page o£ 25 Previous

Part I - Financial Information

Item 1. Financial Statements

Page 4 of42

Bottom Just 3rd

FREEDOM CHEMICAL COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES_._ ...__ .~.., ...,-,-~--.-----------_._...._.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands, except share data)

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents .
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful
accounts of $456 and $858, respectively .
Due from shareholders .
Refundable income taxes ·····
Inventories .
Prepaid expenses and other current assets .
Environmental indemnification .
Deferred income taxes ·················

Total cur rent assets ········

Property plant and equipment:
Land ·························· .
Buildings and improvements .
Machinery and equipment .
Other .

Less accumulated depreciation .

Intangible assets, net ·········
Environmental indemnification .
Deferred financing costs, net .
Investments in joint ventures .
Other ··················· .

Total assets ·.··········

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT

Current liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt .
Short-term borrowings .
Notes payable ·················
Accounts payable ···.········
Accrued expenses ··············
Accrued interest .
Accrued compensation .
Accrued restructuring and other charges .
Environmental .

Total current liabili ties .

Long-term debt .
Environmental .

http://www.secinfo.com/dsd8c.88.htm

Enlarge/Download Table

December 31, September 30,
1996 1997

3,554 $ 768

44,249
22

1,811
53,019
5,251

492
7,237

45,283
68

47,843
4,489

192
6,585

115,635 105,228

3,872
14,600

101,356
11,137

3,680
15,442

110,723
6,440

130,965
28,754

136,285
37,011

102,211 99,274

34,040
8

6,902
541

3,577

32,695
663

6,605
2,280
3,731

$ $ 250,476262,914

$ 1,067 $ 8
936 412

1,098 987
20,996 21,923
7,889 7,966
3,033 6,387
5,787 5,380
4,127 2,239
1,700 2,812

----------- -----------

46,633 48,114

153,560 150,797
15,987 12,279

011 £'\ 11"\£\£\£
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Deferred income taxes ························
Postretirement benefits .
Other .
Minori ty interest ······················
Commitments and contingencies ········
Mandatory redeemable preferred stock:

Series B, cumulative, $1,000 par value, authorized 40,000
shares; issued and outstanding 21,322 shares and 21,519,
respectively, stated at liquidation value of $1,000 per share plus
accrued and unpaid dividends of $11,389 and $14,429, respectively
Series C, cumulative, $1,000 par value, authorized 15,000 shares;
issued 9,137 shares, outstanding 8,916 shares, stated at
liquidation value of $1,054 per share plus accrued and unpaid
dividends of $3,453 and $4,640, respectively .

Less: Treasury stock, at cost (221 shares of Series C preferred)

Stockholders' deficit:
Common stock

Series A, $.01 par value, authorized 200,000 shares; issued
154,872 and 156,892 shares respectively, outstanding 154,481
and 156,501 shares, respectively ..
Series B, $.01 par value, authorized 10,000 shares; none
issued or outstanding .

Additional paid-in capital .
Accumulated deficit .
Cumu1ati ve translation adj ustment .

Less: Stockholder notes receivable ·····
Treasury stock, at cost (391 shares of Series A common) .
Minimum pension liability ······

Total stockholders' deficit .

Total liabilities and stockholders' deficit .

12,259
4,416
3,346
3,390

32,711

13,083

(262)

45,532

2

10,846
(30,444)

(397)

(19,993)
(2,113)

(46)
(57)

(22,209)

$ 262,914

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of the consolidated financial statements.

http://www.secinfo.comldsd8c.88.htm
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11,315
4,632
1,969
3,445

35,948

14,270

(262)

49,956

2

7,149
(34,742)

(2,224)

(29,815)
(2,113)

(46)
(57)

(32,031)

$ 250,476

Q 11 l'I 1'1 l'Il'Il:..
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4th Page o£ 4~ Previous

Page 6 of 42

Bottom Just 4th

FREEDOM CHEMICAL COMPANY AND .s~_~I~~~~~.s_

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (Unaudited)
(Dollars in thousands)

Net saJ"=s ...••••..••...••••..••..••• ··········•••··••·•••••
Cost of goods sold (excluding inventory valuation charges) .
In-,.:entc'ry v~li.latiGn CharGeD .

~~Q§~§" ...!?~_9fit. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ..
~~_~J-J.t,ng,I ..,...g.~J'I.~.r.,~.J,....",~D:~,:L_~_c:tm;iI1J$.t.f~t_~_Y_~~~,I?~.n§~_· . . • . • • . . . . . . .
Non-cash compensation expense 0

RE-SeaTCh Bcd deyelopment e~pen5e. .............••...•........
t~stj,"uct.ll,cLflg E,nd 01:.h::,>rch.~I9£..2 ..........••...............

Operating income (loss) .
:U'.:t(-;rf;st and dr;bt expense ..................••..............
Other income \ loss) .. , .

Income (loss) before minority
interest and income taxes .

Minori ty interest .

Income (loss) before income taxes .
Provision (benefit) for income taxes ··
Equi ty in income of joint ventures , ···

ugt~jn~CITe U2~~ .. ··· .

Preferred dividends .

Net loss appl icable to common shares .

Three Hont-hs Ended
September 30 ..

Nine Month,. .nde<l
September 30,

1996

73,264
57,137

4,980

11,147
11,793

84
1,085

(1,815)
3,550

281

(5,0841
69

(5,1531
(5081

72

(4,573)

481

(5,054 )

1997 1996 1997

71,327 229,051 217,619
56,395 173,619 168,684

4,980 3,155---------
14,932 50,452 45,780
10,541 35,951 31, 930

158 159 190
1,045 3,584 3,317

112 2,970--------- ---------
3,076 10,758 7,373
3,982 10,339 12,876

(177) 507 298-~------- --------- ---------

(1,083) 926 (5,2051
88 195 220

--------- ---------
(1,171 ) 731 15,425)

181 935 460
459 527 1,587

------~-- ---------
(8931 323 (4,2981

1,468 2,949 4,229--------- ------~--
$ (2,361 ) (2,626) (8,527)
========= ========== ========::=;=;

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of the consolidated financial statements.

http://www.secinfo.com/dsd8c.88.htm 0/1n!"nnL
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5th Page of 25110-Q I -= =_--l~ Previous I Ne){1=I I3gtt:()f!l I Just 5th

FREEDOM CHEMICAL COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES- ---- ..~.... , .. ,., " ..'".-,_ ..-------------------------

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Unaudited)
(Dollars in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net incon1e 11058 I •••..•..•.•.•••.•••••..•...••••..........••.••••.•.••.. S

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash
provided by {used in) operating activities:

Depreciation and amorti -z.ation .
Provision for doubtful accounts ························
(Gain) loss on sale of fixed assets .
Minori ty interest , ·················
Non-cash compensation expense .
Equity increase of joint ventures .
Deferred income taxes ···························
Invent.ory valuation Ch8rGe;;l•.......................... ·.·················
Restructuring and other charges (excluding inventory

valuation charges), net of payments .
Other changes that provided (used) cash: .

Accounts receivable ·········
Inventories .
Prepaid expenses and -other current assets ··
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities .

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities .

Cash flows from investing activities:
Capi tal expenditures ················
Decrease in investments in joint ventures .
Proceeds from sale of capital equipment .
Payments for environmental liabilities .
proceeds from environmental indemnification .
Other ........••.........................................•..•..........

Cash flows from financing activities:
Issuance of colTlItton stock ••.............••...........•.. ·.················
Issuance of preferred stock .
Revolving borrowings under Credit Agreement .
Revolving repayments under Credit Agreement ••.............••............
Term loan repayments under Credit Agreement .
Short-term borrowings under European Facility .
purchase of treasury stock .
Payment of registration costs .
Repayment of capital lease obligations .
Payments for financing costs .
Di vidends paid to minority interests ·····················
Other .

Net cash provided by (used inl financing activities .

Effect of ex.change rate changes on cash .

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period .

C-3sh ;;lnd cash equivalents, end 0: period .. , .

Nine MOnths Ended
September 30,

1996

323

10,136
65

(60)
195
159

(5281
621

4, 980

12, 6491

(7, 94 ° I
114,1381

12, 620 I
10,581

13751

17,3831
31

1, 651
(1, 9881
1,038

36

17,115)

47,000
141, 4991

(5, 166)
8,329

187 )
(114 )

191 )
150)

(130)
140)

8,152

168 )

94

1,450

1,544

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of the consolidated financial statements.

http://www.secinfo.com/dsd8c.88.htm

1997

(4,298 )

10,771
290
131
203
190

(1,5881
116

3,155

(1,1231

(3,2381
1691

2,248
4,963

11,751

(9,300 I

67
(3,7441

300
184

(12,4931

223
196

123,011
(129,457)

(733}
(14}
(55}

1129}
(14}

(1,972}

(72 }

(2,786 }

3,554

768
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110-Q I --=-__ ----=;;;;;;;:;.._~ Previous I N~x:t 1J?9t.t9rn I Just 6th I6th Page o£ 2p.

FREEDOM CHEMICAL COMPANY AND SUBSIDI.ARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
(Dollars in thousands)

1. Description of Business

Freedom Chemical Company, the Registrant ("FCC"; collectively with its
subsidiaries referred to as the "Company") was incorporated in Delaware on April
~~12.~_~ for the purpose of acquiring specialty chemical companies which
manufacture and market specialty chemical products for diverse applications. The
Company focuses globally on niche markets where it has strong market positions,
which have relatively few competitors and where there are significant barriers
to entry. In addition, the Company's products are often very important to the
performance of its customers' products, but typically represent a relatively
small percentage of their total costs. The G..9I!ll2-aJljlhas five core product lines:
(i) Food and Personal Care Ingredients; (ii) Pharmaceutical Intermediates and
Natural Additives; (iii) Specialty Organic Chemicals and Intermediates; (iv)
Organic Pigments and Dyes; and (v) Textile and Paper Chemicals.

2. Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are unaudited and have
been prepared by management pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission. In the opinion of management, these
consolidated financial statements contain all of the adjustments, consisting of
normal recurring adjustments, necessary to present fairly, in summarized form,
the financial position of't:J:1.~__Comp?flY as of September 30,1997; the results of
its operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 1996 and 1997,
respectively; and changes in its cash flows for the nine months ended September
~_~~~ and 1997, respectively. The results of operations for the three and
nine months periods ended September 3D, 1997, respectively, are not necessarily
indicative of the results that may be expected for the year ending [)eC::.~:rrt9~.:r:::;')I
1997. The financial information presented herein should be read in conjunction
with the consolidated financial statements included in the Registrant's Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December ]1, 1996.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of FCC and its
subsidiaries which include: Freedom Textile Chemicals Co. and subsidiaries
("FTCC"), Hilton Davis Chemical Company ("HDCC"), Kalama Chemical, Inc. and
subsidiaries ("KeI"), Freedom Chemical Diamalt GmbH ("Diamalt") and subsidiaries
(collectively "FCD"), Freedom Europe B.V. ("EV") and Diamalt Inc. All
significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Reclassifications

Beginning in 1997, certain expenses related to evaluations of lower of cost
or market which were previously classified as cost of goods sold have been
reclassified to inventory valuation charges as a separate component of gross
profit. All financial information has been restated to conform to the current
presentation.

http://www.secinfo.com!dsd8c.88.htm 0/1 i"\ J"....£\Il£
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Certain other prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the
current year's presentation.

Forward Exchange Contracts

The Company enters into forward exchange contracts primarily as hedges
relating to identifiable currency positions. These financial instruments are
designed to minimize exposure and reduce risk from exchange rate fluctuations in
the regular course of business. Gains and losses on forward exchange contracts
that hedge exposures on firm foreign currency commitments are deferred and
recognized as adjustments to the bases of those assets. Gains and losses on
forward exchange ~ontracts which hedge foreign currency assets or liabilities
are recognized in income as incurred. Such amounts effectively offset gains and
losses on the foreign currency assets or liabilities that are hedged. The cash
flow from such contracts is classified in the same category as the transaction
hedged in the statements on consolidated cash flows.

http://www.secinfo.com!dsd8c.88.htm Q /1 (\ /'1(\(\t:,
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FREEDOM CHEMICAL COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES- ------------- _ _--,' .._-

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
(Dollars in thousands)

3. New Pronouncements

In February 1997, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued
Statement of Financial Accounting Standard ("SFAS") No. 129, "Disclosure of
Information about Capital Structure" which becomes effective for financial
statements for periods ending after p",ceITl))er:J5cI99}. SFAS No. 129 established
certain required disclosures related to information about securities,
liquidation preference of preferred stock and redeemable stock. The Company
currently discloses the capital structure information required by SFAS 129.

In June 1997, the FASB issued SFAS No. 130, "Reporting Comprehensive
Income" which becomes effective for financial statements for periods beginning
after DeceITll-'er15, 19}'i'. SFAS No. 130 established standards for reporting and
display of comprehensive income and its components (revenues, expense, gains and
losses) in a full set of general-purpose financial statements. The statement
requires an enterprise to classify items of other comprehensive income by their
nature in a financial statement and display the accumulated balance of other
comprehensive income separately from retained earnings and additional paid-in
capital in the equity section of the statement of financial position. The
implementation of this standard is not expected to have a material effect on the
Company's financial statements.

In June 1997, the FASB issued SFAS No. 131, "Disclosures about Segments of
an Enterprise and Related Information" which becomes effective for financial
statements for periods beginning after December 15, 1997. SFAS No. 131
established standards for the way that public business enterprises report
information about operating segments in annual financial statements and requires
that those enterprises report selected information about operating segments in
interim financial reports issued to shareholders. It also established standards
for related disclosures about products and services, geographical areas, and
major customers. The implementation of this standard is not expected to have a
material effect on the Company's financial statements.

4. Inventories

A summary of the major classifications of inventories is as follows:

December 31,
1996

September 30,
1997

Raw materials, work in process
Finished goods

$ 27,265
31,888

$ 27,627
21,727

Less: reserves
59,153

( 6,134)
49,354
(1,511)

$ 53,019 $ 47,843

http://www.secinfo.comldsd8c.88.htm 0/1 f\/")f\f\t:..
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8th Page o£ 2.p. Previous Bottom Just 8th

FREEDOM CHEMICAL COMPANY AND ~UBj)IDIM:r~_13

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
(Dollars in thousands)

5. Inventory Valuation Charges

During the nine months ended ~.~ember 30, 1997, the Company recorded
inventory valuation charges of $3,155 related to write-downs of certain products
in its Pharmaceutical Intermediates and Natural Additives group. The write-downs
resulted from an evaluation of lower of cost or market due primarily to
industry~wide overproduction and declines in market values partially associated
with recent changes in government regulation governing prescription
reimbursement.

In March 1997, a charge of $679 was recorded based on an analysis of
conditions at that time. An anticipated improvement in market conditions during
the three months ended JuI1e 30, .1997 did not occur. Accordingly, management
reviewed the inventory balances at June 3QL 1997 and recorded an additional
charge of $2,476.

In September, 1996, the Company recorded charges totaling $4,980 as a
result of inventory obsolescence principally in the Company's Organic Pigments
and Dyes product line.

6. Restructuring and Other Charges

In April 1997, the Company announced a plan to close its Vernon, France
facility. This closure was completed in June 1997. Manufacturing production and
certain manufacturing equipment were transferred to other locations as part of
the closure plan. ThEl __<:::()I!1PClI1Y recorded restructuring and other charges of
$2,606. These charges include costs of $1,813 for severance to employees, $660
for the write-off of fixed assets and inventory, and $133 for other charges,
primarily for preparing the site for sale. The balance of this restructuring
liability as of September 30, 1997 was $887 and should be paid or settled during
the 1997 fiscal year.

As of ~tember 30, 1997, the Company recorded charges totaling $444 as a
result of a marketing revitalization program the Company initiated primarily for
its Organic Pigments and Dyes product group. The Company expects to record
approximately $600 in 1997 for this program. These charges will be expensed as
incurred throughout the remainder of the year.

7. Environmental Contingencies

Contingencies exist for tb~_<:::()I!1PCl!1Y and certain of its §_1l9:3~QtClEj_El~ because
of legal and administrative proceedings arising out of the acquisition of
businesses and the normal course of business. Such contingencies include
environmental proceedings directly and indirectly against the Company or its
subsidiaries as well as matters internally identified by the Company. The
resolution of such matters often spans several years and frequently includes
regulatory oversight and/or adjudication. Additionally, many remediation
requirements are not fixed and are likely to be affected by future
technological, site and regulatory developments. Consequently, the ultimate
extent of liabilities with respect to such matters as well as the timing of cash
disbursements cannot be determined with certainty.

http://www.secinfo.com!dsd8c.88.htm 12 11{\f"){\{\h
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In connection with the purchase of a number of the Company's facilities,
contractual rights were obtained to indemnify the Company for certain types of
environmental pollution relating to those facilities. As more fully described
below, the Company consequently believes that a portion of the costs incurred in
connection with environmental liabilities existing prior to the Company's
ownership and remediation actions that may be required relating to the Company's
past and present properties will be the responsibility of other parties.
Accordingly, the CompaQY believes that future liabilities over the amounts
accrued, relating to environmental conditions existing prior to the Company's
ownership and remediation actions, are not likely to have a material adverse
effect on the financial position of the Company, although the effect on results
of operations and cash flows could be material when these conditions are
resolved in a future period.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
(Dollars in thousands)

7. Environmental Contingencies, continued

The Company has sent wastes from its operations to various third-party
waste disposal sites. From time to time the Company receives notices from
representatives of governmental agencies and private parties contending that the
Company is potentially liable for a portion of the investigation and remediation
costs and damages at formerly owned or operated sites and third-party sites,
some of which are discussed herein. The Company does not believe that its
liabilities in connection with such third-party sites, either individually or in
the aggregate, will have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

FTCC
In order to consolidate its textile operations, in 1995, the Company

transferred the textile assets of HDCC located in Cowpens, South Carolina,
acquired as a part of the HDCC acquisition, to FTCC. In 1994, the Company
reached a tentative agreement with the South Carolina Department of Health and
Environmental Control on an administrative consent agreement requiring the
former owner of the Cowpens facility prior to HDCC to take corrective measures
and conduct additional investigation, andt:,h~C::9I1lfJ<:lnyand the State of South
Carolina agreed on a work plan for assessment and remediation. As part of the
FTCC Asset Purchase Agreement, the former owner of the property prior to HDCC
agreed that the costs to be expended for the investigation and remediation of
the existing environmental conditions would be deducted from the final purchase
price payment due to them of $350.

At the time of the acquisition, the Company recorded a liability for $350
relating to the payment due to the former owners. In 1994, initial
investigations disclosed offsite groundwater contamination. The Company hired an
environmental consultant to manage this project and is developing an
investigative plan. While the Company believes that any remediation costs
incurred may be recovered from the prior owners, a $1,900 charge was recorded in
1995 for estimated remediation costs since any recoveries or reimbursements from
the prior owners are not currently determinable. As of September 30, 1997, FTCC
has accrued approximately $1,612 for this liability and believes the risk of
loss exposure is up to $6,500.

HDCC
In connection with the acquisition of HDCC, Sterling Winthrop, Inc.

("SWI"), a former owner of HDCC, entered into an Environmental Matters Agreement
("EMA") with HDCC, whereby SWI has taken responsibility for environmental
conditions that predate 1987, with certain exceptions, as well as for
remediation of the land at HDCC's Cincinnati facility pursuant to an October
1986 Consent Decree entered into between the State of Ohio and SWI and its
subsidiary.

Under the EMA, HDCC has agreed to share responsibility with SWI for certain
specific environmental conditions. Also, HDCC is responsible for environmental
conditions that postdate 1986. In addition, PMC, Inc. ("PMC"), another prior
owner of HDCC, has placed $1,000 of the purchase price paid by the CompaQY in an
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escrow account to indemnify !he Company against breaches of representations and
warranties contained in the Stock Purchase Agreement between PMC and the
Company, including schedules thereto, to the extent such liabilities (including
certain claims not related to the environment) exceeded $200 in the aggregate
and subject to a total cap of $1,000 (excluding certain claims not related to
the environment). HDCC does not believe that it will be required to incur
significant liability in connection with such environmental conditions.
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7. Environmental Contingencies, continued

KCI

KCI owns three manufacturing facilities: Kalama, Washington; Garfield, New
Jersey; and Beaufort, South Carolina. Operations at these three sites, including
operations by subsidiaries formerly owned by KCI, have generated environmental
liabilities. The Stock Purchase Agreement between the Company and BC Sugar
whereby the Company acquired KCI (the "KCI Stock Purchase Agreement"), requires
BC Sugar to indemnify and reimburse the Company for certain environmental
liabilities, as discussed in more detail below.

The Company's Kalama, Washington facility is subject to an agreed order
between KCI and the Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") requiring KCI to
remediate portions of the site and to limit potential offsite contamination,
pursuant to the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act ("RCRA"). The EPA has
approved one of Kalama's interim corrective measures work plans and initial RCRA
facility investigation report describing proposed remediation of the site.
Capital equipment has been installed in part of the facility and remediation is
ongoing. The Company believes that the interim corrective measures will provide
most if not all of the remediation required by the EPA. As ofSept;eITIper 30,
1997, KCI has accrued approximately $5,700 for this liability and believes the
risk of loss exposure is up to $18,000. The associated indemnification as of
~tember 3D, 19~2 is $435 to $7,200 based on the risk of loss exposure.

Th~_G<:)ITl2..aI1Y's Garfield facility is subject to an administrative consent
order with the State of New Jersey requiring remediation of portions of the site
and potentially requiring remediation of areas offsite, pursuant to the New
Jersey Industrial Site Recovery Act ("ISRA"). The Garfield facility cleanup is
also subject to a Settlement Agreement (the "Tenneco Settlement Agreement"),
dated l\Pf:i123r1994, to terminate litigation between KCI and Tenneco Polymers,
Inc. ("Tenneco Polymers"), the successor in interest of the prior owner of the
site. The Tenneco Settlement Agreement requires Tenneco Polymers to conduct the
cleanup of the facility required by the State of New Jersey and to pay for 30
percent of the cleanup costs, with KCI responsible for the remaining 20 percent
of such costs. BC Sugar will remain responsible for certain of KCI's portion of
the cleanup costs pursuant to the KCI Stock Purchase Agreement as described
below. Tenneco Polymers is currently conducting additional site investigation
and discussing with the State of New Jersey the nature and scope of the required
remediation of the Garfield site. KCI has terminated manufacturing operations at
this facility.

As of§eptembeL.
liability and believes
indemnification as of
loss exposure.

30, 19~1, KCI has accrued approximately $500 for this
the risk of loss exposure is up to $900. The associated

September 30, 1997 is $200 to $360 based on the risk of

The Company's Beaufort facility has been listed on the EPA's National
Priorities List pursuant to the Comprehensive Environmental Response,
Compensation and Liability Act ("CERCLA"). KCI's subsidiary, Kalama Specialty
Chemicals, Inc. ("KSCI"), has conducted environmental studies of the site to
identify the extent of contamination and to evaluate the feasibility of
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remediation alternatives, pursuant to an administrative order of consent between
KSCI and the EPA. The EPA and KSCI have reached agreement on a consent decree
under which KSCI is to perform the remediation strategy selected by the EPA.
Pilot equipment was installed and test work commenced in 1995. Be Sugar will
remain responsible for certain of Kel's portion of the cleanup costs pursuant to
the KCl Stock Purchase Agreement as described below. Manufacturing operations at
this facility have also ceased. As of September ]0, 1997, KCI has accrued
approximately $3,300 for this liability and believes the risk of loss exposure
is up to $5,300. The associated indemnification as of September 30, 1997 is $100
to $600 based on the risk of loss exposure.
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7. Environmental Contingencies, continued

KCI and its subsidiaries have also been named as potentially responsible
parties ("PRPs") pursuant to CERCLA or similar state laws at five sites not
owned by KCI at which it is alleged that hazardous substances generated by KCI
or its :3_tlbsigJA~~",§_were disposed. These sites are being remediated or studied
for remediation. KCI is cooperating with the relevant governmental agency and
other PRPs in the investigation and cleanup at each of these sites. Various
contingencies such as the incomplete status of investigation, the uncertainty of
remediation selection and effectiveness, the search for additional PRPs, the
absence of binding commitments allocating liability among PRPs and the joint and
several nature of liability under CERCLA make it impossible to predict at this
time KCI's total liability at these sites. KCI or one of its subsidiaries has
also been named as a PRP at sites under which an indemnitor (other than BC
Sugar) has agreed to undertake the defense and liability. Finally, claims of
liability have been received at other sites for which KCI has denied
responsibility. However, BC Sugar is responsible for certain liabilities
incurred at these Superfund sites pursuant to the KCI Stock Purchase Agreement,
as discussed in more detail below.

The KCI Stock Purchase Agreement provides certain indemnifications and
related provisions, which address these liabilities. Pursuant to the agreement,
BC Sugar remains responsible for the costs of investigation, negotiations with
government agencies, and installation of the capital expenditure component of
the cleanup required by the government at each of the three facilities currently
owned by KCI and its~b~~c!til.r:~~§ (i.e. Kalama, Garfield and Beaufort). BC Sugar
is also responsible for a total of 50 percent of the costs of operation and
maintenance arising from the capital expenditure component of cleanup at these
three sites until five years after the installation of the capital expenditure
component of each site.

In addition, BC Sugar is responsible for all costs incurred as a result of
KCI's liability at the offsite Superfund sites including the five at which KCI
is a cooperating PRP, sites at which an indemnitor other than BC Sugar has
agreed to accept responsibility and other identified sites at which KCI has
received claims but is currently denying liability, provided that the sites were
identified in the schedules to the Kalama Stock Purchase Agreement. BC Sugar's
liability for these sites continues until three years after the installation of
capital expenditures at all of the three currently owned facilities, but in any
event no later than May 26, 2004.

In the KCI Stock Purchase Agreement, BC Sugar also agreed to remain
responsible for certain liabilities arising from violations of environmental
laws occurring before ~~y~1994, at sites currently or formerly owned by KCI
to the extent such liabilities in the aggregate exceed $2,000 and claims are
made by !=h~ f..9IT\£il.}"lYfor such reimbursement before l'1?y26, .. 1996. However, the KCI
Stock Purchase Agreement also includes certain warranties and representations by
BC Sugar that KCI was in compliance with environmental laws as of the closing
date (t12.L~6, 1994), except as set forth in a schedule accompanying and
incorporated into the KCI Stock Purchase Agreement. Be Sugar further agreed to
indemnify :tJl~C:()IUEClflY and KCI against liabilities arising out of the breach of
these representations and warranties to the extent each such liability exceeded
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$50 individually and all such liabilities exceeded $600 in the aggregate, and
provided any such claim was made by the Company or KCI before May 26, 1996. All
of the indemnifications and other provisions whereby BC Sugar agreed to remain
responsible for costs in the KCI Stock Purchase Agreement, including those
described above, are subject to an aggregate limit of $44,000 and including
certain costs which may be directly incurred or paid by BC Sugar. The KCI Stock
purchase Agreement required BC Sugar to establish a trust fund to provide
reimbursement for expenditures for environmental liabilities by KCI and the
Company for which BC Sugar is liable under the agreement.

As a result of the KCI Stock Purchase Agreement and the Tenneco Settlement
Agreement, the Company does not believe that additional liabilities, if any, to
be incurred by KCI under environmental laws would be material to the Company's
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
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7. Environmental Contingencies, continued

In May 1991, the EPA issued a compliance order to KCI alleging nine
violations of the Clean Air Act, dating back to 1984, at the Kalama facility. In
July 1994, KCI was informally notified by the EPA that these violations (and
possibly other alleged violations of the Clean Air Act) had been referred to the
Department of Justice for possible initiation of an enforcement action. In 1996,
the Company signed a consent agreement with the Department of Justice, which
contemplated the payment of a penalty as well as an additional payment to fund
supplemental environmental projects. These amounts were included in the
liabili ties established by \:h!."._~2lILE9:J'.1:Yin connection with the acquisition of
KCI. The consent decree was finalized in early 1997 and all required payments
have been made totaling approximately $1,700. The Compan~ has m?de a claim to BC
Sugar for indemnification in this matter.

8. Condensed Consolidating Financial Statements

The following condensed consolidating financial data illustrates the
composition of the consolidated financial statements. The Parent is FCC. The
U.S. Guarantor Subsidi9ries include all domestic subsidiaries of FCC including
the following: FTCC and certain of its subsj:Qi:'l:T.i.c!."!?(Freedom Textile Chemical
Company (South Carolina), Inc. and FCC Acquisition Corp.), HDCC, KCI and its
subsidiaries (Kalama Specialty Chemicals, Inc. and Kalama Foreign Sales
Corporation) and Diamalt Inc. The German Guarantor Subsidiary is Diamalt,
excluding its subsidiaries. The Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries include the
following: A-Chern (U.K.) Limited (a subsidiary of FTeC) , BV, Societe Francaise
Des Colloides, S.A. (a subsidiary of BV), Diamalt Pharmorganica Pvt. Limited (a
subsidiary of Diamalt), Diamalt SrI (a subsidiary of Diamalt), Indiamalt Private
Limited (a subsidiary of Diamalt). The U.S. and German Guarantor Subsidiaries
are wholly owned by the Parent.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for by the Parent, the U.S.
Guarantor Subsidiaries and the German Guarantor Subsidiary on an unconsolidated
basis using the equity method for purposes of the consolidating presentation.
Earnings of subsidiaries are therefore reflected in the Parent's, U.S. Guarantor
SuJ:~~_tq.~_?};i§.'?_I and German Guarantor Subsidiary' s investment accounts and
earnings. Income tax expense (benefit) is allocated among the consolidating
entities based upon taxable income (loss) by jurisdiction within each group.

The principal elimination entries eliminate investments in subsidiaries and
intercompany balances and transactions. Separate financial statements of the
U.S. Guarantor Subsidiaries, the German Guarantor Subsidiary, and the
Non-Guarantor ~~bsidiaries are not presented because management has determined
that such financial statements would not be material to investors.
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FREEDOM CHEMICAL COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES~_. ".0_.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
(Dollars in thousands)

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash egui valents .
Accounts receivable net .
Due from affiliates .
Due from shareholder .
Refundable income taxes .
Inventories .
Prepaid expenses and

other current assets .
Environmental indemnification .
Deferred income taxes .

Total current assets ·

PropertYJ plant and equipment:
Land .•••....••..•••...••....•••.
Buildings and improvements .
Machinery and equipment .
Other .

LeS5 a.ccumulated depreciation .

Intangible assets f net ..••••........••......
Envi ronmental indemnificati on .
Deferred financing costs I net .
Investments in joint ventu.res .
Deferred income taxes .
Other. .
Notes receivable, subsidiilries .
Investment in subsidi~ries .

Total a.ssets ····· $166,151

LIABILlrIES AND SroCKHOLDERS' EQUlry (DEFIClr)
Current liabilities:

Current maturities of long-term debt .
Short-term borrowings .
Notes payable .
Accounts payable .
Due to affiliates .
Accrued expenses .
Accrued interes t .
Accrued compensation .
Accrued restructuring and other charges.
Environmental .

Total current liabilities .

Long-term debt .
Environmental .
Deferred income taxes ··
Postretirement benefits .
Notes payable .
Other .
Minority interest .
Conuni tments and contingencies .
Mandatory redeemable preferred stock~ .

Less: Treasury stock, .

http://www.secinfo.comldsd8c.88.htm

Parent:

6,294
17

1,811

8,882

3,204
148

127,943
25,405

428
2,897

345
953

4,811

134,500

2,456

45,794
1262)

45,532

~Dlarqe/Download Table

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet
As of December 31, 1996

u.S. Gennan Non
Guarantor Guarantor Guarantor E~im-

Subsi~4rieB Subsidia~ Subsidiaries ination. Conso~idat.d

$88 $344 $2,218
29,933 11,458

10
33,522 17,481

2,164 2,858
492

6,492

72,952 34,025

2,610 438
13,001 704
88,186 9,047

8,805 733

112,602 10,922
25,680 1,544

86,922 9,378

33,063 267
8

5,946 948
541

3,163 22a
6,578 539
2,752 3,329

S211,384 $49,247

$992
2,858
1,566

$1881 $3,554
44,249

P,860}

2,069
110}
(531

22
1,811

53,019

63 410 [244) 5,251
492

7,237609 136

8,031 (8,255) 115,635

376

824
895

4,123
1, 223

3,872
14,600

101,356
11,137

376
142

7,065
1,388

130,965
28,754

234 102,211

335 59 316 34,040
8

6,902
541

13,2041
46 3,577

(135,0601
131,4861

$13,821 $ (177,6891 $262,914

$-- $26 $-- $1,041 $-- $1,067
458 478 936

773 323 1,098
15,654 4,012 1,169 (85) 20,996

479 7,161 220 (7,8601
6,686 730 298 1253) 7,889

104 32 3,033
4,184 750 SOB 5,787
2,516 557 101 4,127
1,700 1,700

32,018 13,832 4,170 [8,198) 46,633

18,591 469 153,560
15,9B7 15,9B7
15,416 47 (3,204) 12,259

4,416 4,416
119,676 13,425 1,959 [135,060)

173 456 261 3,346
290 3,100 3,390

3,079 13,0791 45,794
(262)

3,079 13,0791 45,532

~/l O!?OO/l
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Stockholders' equity (defiCltl;
Common stock, ............................... 1,200 1,291 2,333 (4,824 )

Preferred stock ............................. 3,839 (3,8391

Additional paid~in capital .................. 10,846 33,928 8,241 2,761 (44,9301 10,846

Retained earnlngs (accumulated deficit) ..... (29,980) (18,148) (6,0971 1,648 22,133 {30,444)

Cumulative translation adjustment ........... (492) (1171 212 (397)

Less: Stockholder note receivable ........... 11.913) 1200) (2,113)

Treasury stock, at cost ................ ( 46) (46)

Minimum pension liability .............. (57 ) ( 57)

Total stockholders' equity
(defici t) ........................ (21,148 , 20, 619 2,943 6,625 (31,248) (22,209)

Total liabilities and
stockholders' equity (deficit) .. $166,151 $211,384 $49,247 $13,821 $(177,689) $262,914

==:::0:======
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FREEDOM CHEMICAL COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES---------~--_ ...

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
(Dollars in thousands)

ASSEXS

Current assets~
Cash and cash equivalents .
Accounts receivable, net ., .
Due from affiliates .
Due from shareholde.r: .
Refundable income taxes .
Inventories .
Prepaid expenses and

other current assets .
Environmental indemnification .
Deferred income taxes .

Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment:
Land .
Buildings and improvements .
Machinery and equipment .
Other .

Less accumulated depreciation .....

Intangible assets, net .
Environmental indemnification .
Deferred financing costs I net .
Investments in joint ventures .
Deferred income taxes .
Other .
Notes receivable, subsidiaries .
Investment in subsidiaries .

Total assets .

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Current liabilities:

Current maturities of long-term debt .
Short-term borrowings .
Notes payabl e .............•..............
Accounts payable .
Due to affiliates .
Accrued expense~ .
Accrued interest .
Accrued compensation .
Accrued restructuring and other charges ..
Environmental .

Total current liabili ti es .

Long-term debt .
En vi ronmen ta 1 .
Deferred income taxes .
postretirement benefits .
Accrued restructuring and other charges .
Notes payable .
Other .
Minority interest .
Corumi tments and contingencies .
Mandatory redeemable preferred stock: .

Less: Treasury stock .

http://www.secinfo.com!dsd8c.88.htm

Parent

$

3,617
159

130,207
14,121

S 157,101

condensed Consoli~ting Balance Sheet
As of September 30, 1997

~Qlarqe/Download Table

U.S.
Guarant:or

~B~<4~,J."4.,~:'-.

Non
Guarantor

~.Yk1'-:4..~~~ries
lII.limin-
ations

2 S 6
412

2 958 27
109 18,818 2,261 962

404 6,478 606
842 5,677 1,227 220

6,222 132 33
47 3,900 1,070 363

959 393 887
2,812--------- ------~-- --------- ---------

8,181 32,964 11,168 3,516

129,750 1Q,786 !,261
12,279
14,863 69

4,632

121,732 13,425 2,634
1,068 221 552 128

269

50,218 3,149
12621

--------- --------- --------- ~-~------
49,956 3,149

German
Guar.ntor

Subsidiaxy

424 73 (224 ) 722 (227)
31,574 11,376 2,326 7

(38) 722 411 (7,488 )

34,145 12,856 964 (122)

2,225 1, 660 224
192

5,939 37
--------- --------- ----~---- ---------

74,110 26,390 4,684 (7,830 )

2,514 384 782
13,209 616 1,617
97,499 7,898 5,326

4,632 994 154--------- --------- -------~- ---------
117,854 9,892 7,879

33,164 1,886 ], 730--------- -------~- --------- ---------
84,690 8,006 6,149

31,739 352 338
663

5,418 754
2,280

(3,6171
3,534 38
6,578 1,006 (137,791)

569 3,128 (17,8181~-------- --------- --------- ---------

$ 207,301 41,916 ll,214 $(167,056)
==="" """,;:::::== ========"" ========= =======""=

6,393
68

380

609

7,874

660

660
231

429

266

428

(2271
(7,4881

(7,715)

(3,617)

(137,791)

3,176

13,149)

13,149)

Consolidated

768
45,283

68

47,843

4,489
192

6,585

105,228

3,680
15,442

110,723
6,440

136,285
37,011

99,274

32,695
663

6,605
2,280

3,731

$ 250,476

8
412
987

21,923

7,966
6,387
5,380
2,239
2,812

48, ll4

150,797
12,279
ll,315

4,632

1,969
3,445

50,218
(2621

49,956
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Stockholders' equity (deficit):

Conunon stock •....••....••.....•............
Preferred stock .
Additional paid-in capital .
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit) .
Cliffiulati ve translation adjustment .
Less: Stockholder note .receivable .. , .

Treasury stock, at cost .
Minimum pension liability .

Total stockholders'
equity (deficit) .

Total liabilities and
stockholders' equity (deficit) ....

http://www.secinfo.comldsd8c.88.htm

7,149
(36,965)

1241
{l,9131

1461
1571

(31,854)

$ 157,101

1, 20O 1,291 2,333 (4,8241 2

4, 147 (4,147)

33,927 8,241 2,761 {44,9291 7,149

(21,6131 (10,649) 11,1771 35,662 (34,742)

(1, B98) (5BO) 27 B (2,224)

12001 (2,113)
( 46)
(57 )

--------- --------- --------- -------~~ ---------

17,461 13,0151 3,337 (17,9601 (32,031)

$ 207,301 41,916 $ 11,214 $(167,056) $ 250,416
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FREEDOM CHEMICAL COMPANY AND Sl.!:l?~:m:J;~~s

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
(Dollars in thousands)

--------------------------------~-------------------------------------~-------
Condensed Consolidating statement or qper.~~ons

For the Three Months Ended September 30, 1996

Net sales ··················
Cost Of goods sold (excluding

inventory valuation charges) .
Inventory valuation charges ,·

Gross profit ···
Selling, general and administrative expense .
Non-cash compensation expense , .......•
Research and development expense .. , ··

Operating income (loss) .
Interest and debt expense (income) .
Other incOme (loss} ··············
Equity in income (loss) of subsidiary .

Income C10ssl before minority
interest and income taxes .

Minori ty interest 0 •••

Income (loss) before income taxes 0 •••••••

Provision (benefit) for income taxes 0.00 ••••••

Equity in income of joint ventures 0 •• • •••

Net income (108 s J •••••••••••••••••••••••••...
Preferred dividends .

Net income (loss) applicable
to conunon shares , .. ······•·

http://www.secinfo.comldsd8c.88.htm

Parent

1,700
84

(1, 7841
( 1461

2,854
(4,0331

12,817)

(2,817 1
1,488

(4,305)
481

S 14,786)

U.S. Germsn Non
Guarantor Guarantor Guar.antor E1iDU"-

Subo!,idiaries subsidiary Subsidiary atiol1s Conao1ide ted

---------- ------~~------------ ---------~
52,474 18,313 3,731 (1,2541 73,264

42,897 15,415 2,398 (9241 57,137

4,980 4,980

--------- ---------- --------- ---------
7,246 2,898 1,333 (330) 11,147

6,587 3,012 607 (1131 11,793
84

777 267 41 1,085
-------- - ---------- --------- ---------

1118) (3811 685 (217 ) (1,815)

2,899 726 72 ( 1) 3,550

12,467) 125 (401 (191] 281

( 556) 420 4,169

--------- ---~------ --------- ---~-----
(6,0401 (5621 573 3,762 (5,0841

69 69

--------- ---------- --------- ---------
(6,040) (5621 573 3,693 (5,1531

(2, 1991 2 409 (2081 (5081

72 72

--------- ---------- ~~------- -------~~
13, B41) ( 4921 164 3,901 (4.5731

(637) 637 481

--------- ------~--- --------~ ------~--

$ 13,204 ) (4921 164 3,264 $ (5,054)

""''''''====:;;== """",;::======= ========::== =========
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Bottom Just 16th

FREEDOM CHEMICAL COMPANY AND !)~$IJ:)f~I:E:$

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
(Dollars in thousands)

Net sales ·············
Cost of goods sold {excluding

inventory valuation charges) .
Inventory valuation charges .

Gross profit .
selling, general and administrative expense .
Non-cash compensation expense .
Research and development expense .
Restructuring and other charges .

operating income (loss} .
Interest and debt expense .
other income (loss) .
Equity in income (loss) of subsidiary .

Income {loss) before minority
interest and income taxes .

Minori ty interest .

Income {loss) before income taKes .
Provision (benefit) for income taxes .
Equi ty in income of j oint ventures .

Net income (loss) .
Preferred dividends .

Net income (loss) applicable
to common shares •.........................

http://www.secinfo.com/dsd8c.88.htm

Condensed Conso~i~tjng Statemen~of qperations
For the Three Months Ended September 30. 1997

U.S. G<Irman Non
Guarantor Guarantor Guar~ntor R~imin-

Parent Subs4:4iaries Subsidiary Sub.sidiari~ a'tions Conso~ida.ted

$ $ 56,238 14,940

43,818 12,846

---------- -----~--- ---------
12,420 2,094

1,007 6,691 2,576
158

821 210
112-----~~--- --------- ---------

(1,1651 4,796 16921
1151 3,359 568

2,329 (2,1871 218
(2,022) (297] (471

---------- ----~---- ---------
(843) (1,047) (1,0891

---------- --------- ---------
1843) (1,0471 11,0891
1,020 1731 14

412---------- --------- ---------
(1,8631 19741 16911

L 468 175
---------- --------- -----~~--

(3,3311 $ 11,1491 (6911
=======::=;=== =====""""'=== ============

--------- --------~
2,593 8(2,444) 71,327

2,173 (2,442) 56,]95

--------- ---------
420 12) 14,932
35] (86) 10,541

158
14 1,045

112--------- ---------
5] 84 3,076
70 3,982

(]451 (192 ) 11771
2,366--------- ---------

13621 2,258 (1,083)
17 71 88

--------- ---------
13791 2,187 (1,1711

40 18201 181
47 459

--------- --------~
14191 3,054 189]1

11751 1,468--------- ---------
(419) 3,229 $12,3611

=========== """"===""""==
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Just 17thPrevious

FREEDOM CHEMICAL COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

Bottom

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
(Dollars in thousands)

Net sales .
Cost of goods sold (excluding

inventory valuation charges) .
Inventory valuation charges .

Gross profit .
Selling, general and administrative expense
Noncash compensation expense .
Research and development expense .

Operating income (loss) .
Interest and debt expense .
Other income (loss) .
Equity in income (loss) of subsidiary

Income (loss) before minority
interest and income ta:<es .

Minority interest

Income (loss) before income taxes .....

Provision (benefit) for income taxes .
Equity in income of joint ventures .

Net income (los s J •••••••••••••••••••••
Preferred dividends .

Net income (loss) applicable
to common shares .

http://www.secinfo.com/dsd8c.88.htm

Condensed Conso~ida~ing5tatemen~ of qperation~
For the Nin .. Months Ended September 30, 1996

U.S. German Non
Guarantor Guarantor Guarantor

Pllrent Subsidia~j.es Subsidiary Subsidiary--------- ---------
164,912 $ 57,247 11,113

124,813 45,000 7,641
4,980---------- ---------- --------- ---------

35,119 12,247 3,472
3,500 21,526 9,332 1,962

159
2,542 901 141~--------- ---------- --------- ---------

13,659) 11,051 2,014 1,369
(%) 8,318 I,B97 220

B,B84 (8,078) 533 (241)
12,388) 648 630---------- ---------- --------- -------~~

2,933 (4,697) 1,280 908

2,933 (4,697) 1,280 908

2,015 (1,374) 4
527

498

918
2,949

13,3231 1,B03 410

(2,031) $ 13,3231 1,803 410

Elimin-
ations Consolidated

(4,221)

13,835)

(591)
1,110

(386)
(369)

(17)

502

195

307

(2081

515

515

229,051

173,619
4,980

50,452
35,951

159
3,584

10,758
10,339

507

926

195

731

935
527

323
2,949

$ (2,626)
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18th Page o£ 25 Bottom... . ... ,
Just 18thPrevious

FREEDOM CHEMICAL COMPANY AND §~§II)]:MIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
(Dollars in thousands)

Net sales .
Cost of goods sold (excluding

inventory valuation charges) , .
Inventory valuation charges .

Gross profit .
Selling, general and administrative expense .
Non-cash compensation ex.pense ......•......••....
Research and development expense .
Restructuring a.nd other charges .

Operating income (loss) . .
Interest and debt expense (income) .
Other income (105 S 1 •••••.•••••••••••••••••••••••
Equi ty in income (loss) of subsidiary .

Income {loss) before minority
interest and income taxes .

Minori ty interest , .

Income (loss) before income taxes .
Provision (benefit) for income taxes .
Equity in income of joint ventures .

Net income {loss) .
Preferred dividends .

Net income (lossl applicable to common shares

http://www.secinfo.com/dsd8c.88.htm

Conaen8ed Consolidating Statement of qperations
For the Nine Months Endad September 30. 1997------~----------------------------------~------------------------------------

U.S. Ge ...... n Non
Gua.rantor Guar.ntor Gu.rantor Elimin-

Parent $.,!1bsidiar!@~ Subsidiary ~sidia.ries ationa CODsolidated

--------- ----------
171,663 42,513 11,363 $ (7,920) 217,619

131, 475 36,603 8,839 18,2331 168,684

3,155 3,155

--------- --------~ --------- --------~ --------- --~------
40,188 2,755 2,524 313 45,780

2,630 20,688 7,351 1,649 1388} 31,930

190 190

2,519 705 93 3,317

444 2,526 2,970

--------- ------~-- --------- --------- ---~~---- ---------
12,820) 16,537 15,3011 11,744 } 701 7,373

[155) 10,381 2,476 174 12,876

7,356 [6,8691 1,105 (619) (675) 298

(10,4491 [2,0971 594 11,952

--------- -------~- --------- --------- --------- ---------

15,758) (2,810) 16,0781 12,537 ) ll,97B (5,205)

17 203 220

--------- ~-------- --------- --------- --------- ----~----
(5,7 5B) (2,8101 (6,0781 12,554) 11,775 (5,425)

1,313 61 14 185 (1,113) 460

1,54 ° 47 1,5B7

--------- --------- --------- --------- --------- ---------
[7,071) 12, B711 14,552 ) (2,739) 12,935 14, 29B 1

4,229 508 (50BI 4,229

--------- ~-------- --------- --------- -------~- ---------
$ (11,300) 13,3791 14,5521 (2,739) 13,443 1B, 527)

==""""-==== ==,;====== ========= ==="";;;;;; .. === ==;======"" =========
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19th Page o£ 25 Previous Bottom Just 19th

FREEDOM CHEMICAL COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
(Dollars in thousands)

Condensed consolidating S'tatement oE Caah Flolts
For the Nine Months Ended ~t_ember 30, 1996-------------------------------------------_~_-----------------------------

Parent

u.s. German
Guarantor Gu.ranror

,~~~.4:44,~_~j,_~~Subsidiary

Non
Guarant:O.r

Subsidiary
Elimin-

ation.s Consolidated

Net cash provided by {used in)
ope-rating activities ............. 2,853 1,521 $ (4,9101 (3041

Cash flows from investing acti vities;
Capital expenditures ................... - .. (1131 15,8561 (8901 {1, 024)

(Increase l decrease in
investments in joint ventures ........... (201 51

Proceeds from sale of capital equipment ... 1,572 79

Payments for environmental liabilities .... {1, 988)

Proceeds from environmental indemnification 1,038

Other ..................................... 30

Net cash used in investing activities ......... 11131 {5, 204 1 ( 8311 1967)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Issuance of common stock ..................
Issuance of preferred stock ...... .. .......
Revolving borrowings under Credit Agreement 47,000

Revolving repayments under Credit Agreement 141,499)

Term loan repayments under Credit Agreement (5,1661

Short-term loan borrowings
under European Facility ................. 7,906 423

Payment of treasury stock ................. 1871

Payment of registration costs ............. (1141

Repayment of capital lease obligations .... (56) 135 I

Payments for financing costs .............. 150 I

Dividends paid to minority interests ...... 1130 )

Other ..................................... 140 )

Subsidiary loans .......................... 12,8701 4,445 (2,2161 611

Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities .................... (2,736) 4,219 5,690 949

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash ....... 112 1180 )

Net increase (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents .................... 536 61 (5021

Cash and cash equivalents I beginning of period 248 429 1,021

Cash and cash equivalentsJ end of period ..... 252 536 490 519

30 8,152

( 681

151 94

(248 ) 1,450

(253) 1,544

http://www.secinfo.comldsd8c.88.htm Q /1 {)!'}{){),<;;
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20th Page of 25 Previous."., " " ..
Bottom Just 20th

FREEDOM CHEMICAL COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIl!: ..~

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
(Dollars in thousands)

&Qlarge/Download .Table

Condensed Consolidating Statement o£ cash Flows
For the Nine Monrhs Ended Sepr_r 30, 1997~-------------------~~---------~--------------------------------~-------------

Parent

U,S.
Gu~r.antor

~B~gj~_~ie_~

German
Guarant:o:r
SubsidiaZ'Y

Non
Guarantor
subsidiary

E1.imi.n-
atioDS Consolidated

Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities ... ,. .................... $ 7,709 7,900 ( 4,1401 $ 980 1698) 11,751

-~------- --------- --------- ------~-- --------- ---------
Cash flows from investing activities;

Capital expenditures ...................... 12951 16,6791 (524 ) (1,802) (9,300)

Increase In investments in ,~:glQ~_igJ,§;,;;::.~.~.~.". (5811 581

Proceeds from sale of capital equipment " . 67 67

Payments for environmental liabilities .... 13,7441 13,744)

Proceeds from environmental
indemnification ......................... 300 300

Other ..................................... 36 148 184

Net cash used in investing activities ......... (2951 110,0871 (957) (1,735 ) 112,493)

--------- --------- ------~-- --------- --------- -~-------
Cash flows from financing activities:

Issuance of common stock .......... , 223 (8 ) 223

Issuance of preferred stock ........ 196 196

Revolving borrowings under Credit Agreement 55,000 71,452 1,559 128,011

Revolving repayments under credit Agreement (59,500) (68,1431 11,8141 {129,4571

Term loan repayments under Credit Agreement
Short-term loan borrowings

under European Facility .... .... .........
Payment of treasury stock .... .............
Payment of registration costs ............. (733) (7331

Repayment of capital lease obligations .... 114) 114 )

Payments for financing costs .............. (551 (55 )

Dividends paid to minority interests ...... 11291 11291

Other ..................................... 2 (16) (141

Subsidiary loans .......................... (2,2641 2,056 (467) 675

--------- --------- --------- --------- -----~--- ---------
Net cash provided by (used in)

financing acti vi ties ................... (7,078 ) 1,915 2,787 412 (8 I (1,972)

Effect of exchange rate cha.nges on cash ....... 1 (1321 (89) 148 (72)

--------- --------- --------- ------~-- --------- ---------
Net increase (decrease} in cash

and cash equivalents .......... .... ...... 336 (2711 (2,442 ) 14321 23 {2,7861

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 88 344 2,218 992 (88 ) 3,554

--------- --------~ --------- --------- ---~----- ---------
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period ...... 424 73 (224) 560 (65) 768

--""======== ""-""======= =====0::0:=== ========;== =::::======= =========
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Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of

Financial Condition and Results of Operations
--------------~------------------------------

The following should be read in conjunction with Item 1 of this report.

General
The Company is a leading global manufacturer and marketer of a broad range

of specialty and fine chemical products which are sold into several market
segments for use in food and beverage products, household and industrial
products, cosmetics and personal care products, pharmaceuticals, pet foods,
textile and paper products and many other diverse applications. The Company
operates in one industry segment, with revenues derived from sales in five core
product groups: (i) Food and Personal Care Ingredients; (ii) Pharmaceutical
Intermediates and Natural Additives; (iii) Specialty Organic Chemicals and
Intermediates; (iv) Organic Pigments and Dyes; and (v) Textile and Paper
Chemicals.

Inventory Valuation Charges
During the nine months ended September 30, 1997, the Company recorded

inventory valuation charges of $3.2 million related to write-downs of certain
products in its Pharmaceutical Intermediates and Natural Additives group. The
write-downs resulted from an evaluation of lower of cost or market due primarily
to industry-wide overproduction and declines in market values partially
associated with recent changes in government regulation governing prescription
reimbursement. In March 1997, a charge of $0.7 million was recorded based on an
analysis of conditions at that date. An anticipated improvement in market
conditions during the three months ended June 30, 1997 did not occur.
Accordingly, management reviewed the inventory balances at June 30, 1997 and
recorded an additional charge of $2.5 million. After recording this adjustment,
management expects that profitability will return to historical levels for the
Pharmaceutical Intermediates and Natural Additives product line.

In September, 1996, the Company recorded charges totaling $5.0 million as a
result of inventory obsolescence principally in the Com~'s Organic Pigments
and Dyes product line.

Restructuring and Other Charges
In April 1997, the Company announced a plan to close its Vernon, France

facility. This closure was completed in June 1997. Manufacturing production and
certain manufacturing equipment were transferred to other locations as part of
the closure. '1'be=_~()IllECigy recorded restructuring and other charges of $2.6
million. These charges include costs of $1.8 million for severance to employees,
$0.7 million for the write-off of fixed assets and inventory, and $0.1 million
for other charges, primarily for preparing the site for sale. The closing of
this facility is consistent with the Company's strategic plan of improving its
cost structure by having fewer manufacturing plants producing greater volume
products. The Company estimates that the annual savings as a result of this
plant closure will be approximately $2.2 million most of which will begin in
1998.

During the nine months ended Septernper
charges totaling $0.4 million which reduced

30, ..t~~7,t:I1e=~()IllEClIly recorded
operating income as a result of a

http://www.secinfo.com!dsd8c.88.htm 0/11\ '''fin£
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marketing revitalization program the Company initiated primarily for its Organic
Pigments and Dyes product group. The Company expects to record approximately
$0.6 million in 1997 for this program. These charges will be expensed as
incurred throughout the remainder of the year.

http://www.secinfo.com!dsd8c.88.htm
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Results of Operations
The following table sets forth certain data from the Consolidated Financial

Statements (Unaudited) expressed as a percentage of net sales.

:Three Months Ended Nine Months E'ndsd
September 30, September 30,

1996 1997 1996 1997

Net sales 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Cost of goods sold (excluding inventory valuation charges) 78.0 79.1 75.8 77.5

Inventory valuation charges 6.8 2.2 1.4

Gross profit 15.2 20.9 22.0 21.0

Selling, general and administrative expense 16.1 14. 8 15.7 14.7

Research and development expense 1.5 1.5 1. 6' 1.5

Restructuring and other charges 0.2 1.4

Operating income 110ss) (2.4) 4.3 4.7 3.4

Interest and debt expense 4.8 5.6 4.5 5.9

Net (loss) income (6.2) (1.3) 0.1 12.01

Preferred dividends 0.7 2.1 1.3 1.9

Net loss applicable to common shares (6.9) (3.3) (1.11 13.91

Three Months Ended $~pt~ltl!?~J::JQL1997
Compared to Three Months Ended September 3D, 1996

Net Sales. Net sales declined $1.9 million to $71.3 million in the quarter
ended September 3D, 1997 compared to the quarter ended September 3D, 1996.
Pharmaceuticals revenues declined $3.7 million because of (i) industry-wide
overstocking due to producer and customer expectations of comparable business
strengths in 1997 versus 1996, and (ii) changes in German social legislation
regarding the reimbursement for certain medications in which one of the
Company's main products is used. It is expected that this development will not
result in a permanent loss of business. Textile and Paper Chemicals revenues
decreased $2.9 million, primarily as a result of the discontinuation of
unprofitable product lines. Organic Pigment and Dye revenues declined $0.5
million as a result of effects of increased European competition on Color Former
sales, offset partially by increased sales in Inks. Specialty Organics and
Intermediates revenues increased $4.8 million, primarily due to capacity
expansion.

Grgfils Profit.. Gross profit, excluding inventory charges of $5.0 million in
1996, decreased $1.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 1997 to
$14.9 million compared to $16.1 million for the three months ended _~~t§mber __:?QL
1996. This decrease r~su1ted primarily from the following: (i) $1.5 million was
due to lower Pharmaceutical sales and $2.4 million in Textile and Paper
Chemicals due to unfavorable yield variances. These negative impacts were
offset, in part, by the following improvements: (i) $1.8 million in Specialty
Organics and Chemical Intermediates due to increased sales and $1.1 million in
Food and Personal Care Ingredients due to a favorable change in product mix and
plant cost structure.

The following table displays a comparison for each of the Company's five

http://www.secinfo.com/dsd8c.88.htm Q /1 flf'")flflt:.
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core product lines of pounds
profit dollars (excluding
percentage for the quarters
(All values are in millions

http://www.secinfo.com/dsd8c.88.htm

of product sold, average prices, net sales, gross
inventory valuation charges), and gross profit
ending .§-,~pt:f2..Jlll:)EOr)9L1997and .L~~§, respectively.

except for average price.)
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Enlarge/Download Table

Three Month" Ended

.s..pt.."p"".J9.r ......~.~.~? ..s.!>.l?t ..."p.,,,.JQL)~~6
-----------~----------------------------------- ---------------------~--------------------------
Vo~ume Average Net Gross Gross Vo~ume Average Net Gros.s Gross

Line (pounds) Price Sales Profit: Margin (pounds) Price Sales Profit Margin

Specialty Organics
and Intermediates 33.69 $0.50 $16.96 $4.76 28.10% 23.78 $0.51 $12.13 $2.96 24.37%

Food and Personal
Care Ingredients 15.98 $1.17 $18.62 $6.17 33.14% 17.30 $1. 06 $18.27 $5.04 27.60%

pharmaceutical
Intermediates 0.50 $16.79 $8.43 $0.56 6.64% 0.53 $23.04 $12.12 $2.01 16.56%

Textile and Paper
Chemicals 27.88 $0.51 $14.10 $1.90 13.51% 29.65 $0.57 $17.03 $4.28 25.14%

Organic Pigments
and Dyes 3.10 $4.27 $13.22 $1.53 11.58% 2.78 $4.93 $13.71 $1.83 13.39%

company Total 81.15 $0.88 $71.33 $14.93 20.93% 74.03 $0.99 $73.26 $16.12 22.01%

Ih.~ CO~P9ny recorded estimated costs of shutdown of $0.7 million and $0.4
million for the three months ended .c;.E')ptem!:2.'?X30, 1997 and 12.96, respectively.
The costs of shutdown are accrued on a pro rata basis over the period between
shutdowns. Plant shutdowns are typically scheduled on a semi-annual; nine-month
and annual basis at the Company's various plants for the performance of
maintenance and inspection of various pieces of equipment. As of $",pt:e~lJE3r-3g,
1997, $0.7 million was accrued related to such costs, which represented a
decrease from December ~~_~.~~~ of $0.2 million due primarily to shutdowns at
the Company's Hilton Davis and Kalama facilities in June and Freedom Textile in
July and the timing of various other plant shutdowns scheduled in 1997.

Sellinq1~nera~~~ A~inistr~tive ~~xpen~~. Selling, general, and
administrative expense decreased $1.3 million to $10.5 million in the three
months ended SE':PtE;rnger-:39LJ997 compared to the same period of the prior year
primarily due to personnel reductions and plant closings as a result of
restructuring and other charges. As a percentage of sales, selling, general, and
administrative expense decreased to 14.8% in the three months ended Septemb~~
~1997 from 16.1% for the same period in 1996.

Research and Development Expense. Research and development expense remained
constant at $1.1 million compared to the same period of the prior year. As a
percentage of sales, research and development also was constant at 1.5% in the
three months ended Seotember 30, 1997 compared to the same period in 1996.

Operating Income. Operating income, excluding restructuring charges of $0.1
million in 1997 and inventory charges of $5.0 million in 1996, remained constant
at $3.2 million for the quarter ended Sep~§f!Ic\2.~:3.QL_~~27_compared to the same
quarter of 1996.

Interest and Debt Expense. Interest and debt expense increased $0.4 million to
$4.0 million for the three months ended .c;i3PtE:'rn]:)gX.:.-J.QL.19.9?compared to the same
period of the prior year. The weighted average interest rate of the Company's
borrowings was 9.9% at Seplembe'L...}O, 199.7, as compared to 8.9% at September 30,
1996. The increase in the weighted average interest rate is attributable to the
issuance of the 10 5/8% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2006 (the "Notes") that
were issued in October 1996.

~~:r:.Ilcome ._. (Lo~§.l. Net loss
million in the three months ended

decreased $3.7 million to a loss of $0.9
Sept?rn!:2",:c)O,1997 as compared to the same
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period of the prior year. The decreases resulted primarily from items discussed
above.

Net Income (Loss) Applicable to Common Shares. The net loss applicable to
common shares decreased by $2.7 million to a loss of $2.4 million for the three
months ended Septembe-r.:_~L~92 as compared to the same period of the prior
year. The decrease resulted from the items referred to above.

Nine months Ended September 3D, 1997
Compared to Nine months Ended ~t"'lfLbef__.~.~2Q

Net Sales. Net sales declined $11.4 million to $217.6 million in the nine
months ended $<3ptEOr.n.J:::>E:~;30,. 1997 compared to the same period in 1996.
Pharmaceuticals revenues declined $15.3 million because of (i) industry-wide
overstocking due to producer and customer expectations of comparable business
strengths in 1997 versus 1996, and (ii) changes in German social legislation
regarding the reimbursement for certain medications in which one of the
Company's main products is used. It is expected that this development will not
result in a permanent loss of business. Textile and Paper Chemicals revenues
decreased $4.0 million, primarily as a result of the discontinuation of
unprofitable product lines. These declines were offset by the following: (i)
Organic Pigment and Dye revenues increased $0.8 million as a result of strong
sales in the Inks product line, (ii) Specialty Organics and Intermediates
revenues increased $5.9 million, primarily due to capacity expansion, and (iii)
Food and Personal Care Ingredients revenues increased $1.2 million as a result
of strong sales in Preservatives, Colors and Cosmetics.

G:rOSSlP:rClf'it:. Gross profit, excluding the inventory valuation charges of
$3.2 million and $5.0 million in 1997 and 1996, respectively, declined $6.5
million for nine months ended S~!:~~be~_:3_~J}i1]to $48.9 million compared to
$55.4 million for the nine months ended Sept~mber _30, 1996. This decline
resulted primarily from the following: (i) $6.0 million was due to lower
Pharmaceutical sales, (ii) $1.6 million in Textile and Paper Chemicals due to
unfavorable yield variances, which was offset by the favorable effects of the
discontinuation of unprofitable product lines and (iii) $0.1 million in
Specialty Organics and Intermediates due primarily to lower overall prices,
higher toluene and energy costs, offset by higher sales volumes. These negative
impacts were offset by improvements of $1.4 million in Food and Personal Care
Ingredients due primarily to increased sales in Preservatives, Colors and
Cosmetics.

The following table displays a comparison for each of the Company's five
core product lines of pounds of product sold, average prices, net sales, gross
profit dollars (excluding inventory valuation charges), and gross profit
percentage for the nine months ended $.§!Q!.9r.n.J:::>e.£_JQI~9~}and 1_~~~, respectively.
(All values are in millions except for average price.)

~nlar~e/Download Table

Nine man Cbs Ended

§"ptember.~~Z ~p.tember 3Q, 1996

~---------------------~----------~-------------- -----------------~~------------------------~--
Volume Average Net Gross GreaS Volume Averllga Net GrOSS Gross

Line (pounds) Price Sales Profit: Margin (pounds) Price Sales Profit Margin

Specialty Organics
and Intermediates 94.72 $0.01 $48_43 $11.83 24.42% 78.40 $0.54 $42.51 $11.96 28. 13~

Food and Personal
Care Ingredients 50.97 $1.07 $54.68 $17.15 31.36% 50.43 $1. 06 $53.49 $10.71 29.3H

Pharmaceutical
Intermediates 1.45 $16.44 $23.80 $2.79 11.72% 1.84 $21. 21 $39.10 $8.80 22.49~

http://www.secinfo.com/dsd8c.88.htm
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Textile and Paper
Chemicals 77.15 $0.63 $48.45 $9.84 20.3H 80.62 $0.65 $52.46 $11.46 21.85%

Organic Pigments
and Dyes 9.76 $4.33 $42.26 $7.33 17.35% 8.52 $4.87 $41.49 $7.50 18.0n

Company Total 234.05 $0.93 $217.62 $48.94 22.49% 219.86 $1. 04 $229.05 55.43 24.20%

The Company recorded estimated costs of shutdown of $1.6 million and $1.1
million for the nine months ended §~P1.:E:'.IT,\pE:'r)QL1~~?and 19~6, respectively. The
costs of shutdown are accrued on a pro rata basis over the period between
shutdowns. Plant shutdowns are typically scheduled on a semi-annual, nine-month
and annual basis at the Company's various plants for the performance of
maintenance and inspection of various pieces of equipment. As of §~p!~mber 30,
19~7, $0.7 million was accrued related to such costs, which represented a
decrease from December 31, 1996 of $0.2 million due primarily to shutdowns at
the Company's Hilton Davis and Kalama facilities in June and Freedom Textile in
July and the timing of various other plant shutdowns scheduled in 1997.

~El:l:Ling, GE:lI1El;:Cl,:l.and AdmiIli.st.r.atiYEl E:JtPElI1SE:!' Selling, general, and
administrative expense decreased $4.0 million to $31.9 million in the nine
months ended Septemp.~~.)997 compared to the same period of the prior year
primarily due to personnel reductions and plant closings 'as a result of
restructuring and other charges. As a percentage of sales, selling, general, and
administrative expense decreased to 14.7% in the nine months ended?E:'p1.:.E:'IT,\I::J~:r::}QL
1997 from 15.7% for the same period in 1996.

Re.search aI}d Development ..E::x,!,ense.Research and development expense declined
$0.3 million to $3.3 million compared to the same period of the prior year. As a
percentage of sales, research and development declined to 1.5% in the nine
months ended September 30, 1997 from 1.6% for the same period in 1996.

Operating
restructuring
respectively,
September 30,
primarily from

Interest and Debt Expense. Interest and debt expense increased $2.5 million
to $12.9 million for the nine months ended $E:'Et::E:':n:tPE:'r::}QLJ99}compared to the
same period of the prior year. The weighted average interest rate of the
Company's borrowings was 9.9% at September::.....30, 1997, as compared to 8.9% at
September 30, 1996. The increase in the weighted average interest rate is
attributable to the issuance of the 10 5/8% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2006
(the "Notes") that were issued in October 1996.

Net Jpcome ~oss). Net income decreased
million in the nine months ended Septemger
period of the prior year. The loss resulted
above.

$4.6 million to a loss of $4.3
30, ~~11as compared to the same

primarily from items discussed

In addition, the Company's equity in income of joint ventures increased
$1.1 million for the nine months ended September.?O, 1997 as compared to the
same period of the prior year. The increase is primarily attributable to the
increase in the equity in income of Srinivasa Cystine Limited which increased
$1.1 million.

Net Income (Loss) Applicable to Common Shares. The net loss applicable to
common shares increased by $5.9 million to a loss of $8.5 million for the nine
months endedSepteIl1ber 30, 1997 as compared to the same period of the prior
year. The decrease resulted from the items referred to above.

http://www.secinfo.com!dsd8c.88.htm TIERRA·B·001170
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities. Net cash provided by operating
activities for the nine months ended September 30, 1997 was $11.8 million, which
represented a change of $12.6 million from the $0.9 million net cash used in
operating activities in the same period of the prior year. This change was due
primarily to a decrease in inventory.

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities. Net cash used in investing
activities for the nine months endedS.epteI!:lber ~9L 1997. was $12.5 million, an
increase of $5.4 million compared to the same period of the prior year. Capital
expenditures in the nine months ended September 30, 1997 were $9.3 million
compared to $7.9 million in the same period of the prior year. This increase in
capital expenditures in 1997 included $2.5 million related to the expansion
program at the Company's Kalama facility.

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities. Net cash used in financing
acti vities for the nine months ended $ep1:e-I!:ll::>E;.L30, ...t~~7was $2.0 million, a
change of $10.1 million from the net cash provided by financing activities of
$8.1 million over the same period of the prior year. This change includes net
repayments of $1.4 million compared to net borrowings of $8.7 million for the
same period in the prior year and cash proceeds of $0.4 million from the
issuance of common and preferred stock.

Liquidi ty. On Octobe.t:'__p L __12.~,§, the
fully and unconditionally guaranteed,
payment of principal, premium, if any,
domestic o;_\lbsidjariE!,~and Diamalt.

Company issued the Notes.
on a joint and several
and interest, by all of

The Notes are
basis, as to
the Company's

Concurrently with the consummation of the offering of the Notes, the
Company amended and restated its existing credit agreement (as amended and
restated, the "Amended and Restated Credit Agreement") to, among other things,
increase the amount of the revolving loan facility to $85 million and include
Diamalt as a co-borrower. The Amended and Restated Credit Agreement and the
Indenture related to the Notes contain certain financial covenants that
restrict, among other things, the incurrence of additional indebtedness, the
sale of assets, and certain investments, acquisitions and distributions by the
Company. The Amended and Restated Credit Agreement also requires the Compan1 to
maintain specified financial ratios and tests, including maximum leverage ratios
and minimum interest coverage ratios. The Company was in compliance with such
ratios and tests at$eptertlber :.3..9~.2·

The...~£EllY expects that its ongoing cash requirements will consist
primarily of interest payments on its outstanding indebtedness, including the
Notes and any borrowings under the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement. As of
Septe-mber_~_1997 .the CQ~ had $57.1 million of working capital (current
assets less current liabilities) and $59.1 million available under the Amended
and Restated Credit Agreement.

Although the Company expects that cash flows from operations and available
borrowings under the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement will provide
sufficient working capital to operate the Company's business, to make expected
capi tal expenditures and to meet t:-J}~<::Q!flE.9BY' s foreseeable liquidi ty
requirements, there can be no assurance that sufficient sources of funds will be
available.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rates

The Company's substantial foreign operations expose it to the risk of
exchange rate fluctuations. If foreign currency denominated revenues are greater

http://www.secinfo.comldsd8c.88.htm TIERRA-B-001171
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than costs, the translation of foreign currency denominated costs and revenues
into U.S. dollars will improve profitability when the foreign currency
strengthens against the u.s. dollar and will reduce profitability when the
foreign currency weakens. In addition, the remeasurement of foreign currency
denominated assets and liabilities into U.S. dollars gives rise to foreign
exchange gains or losses, which are included in the determination of net income.

The Comp?J2Y's foreign currency exposures are managed on a consolidated
basis, which allows certain exposures to be offset naturally. However, forward
contracts are entered into periodically to hedge specific foreign currency
exposures. Under this strategy, gains or losses on hedging transactions are
offset by gains or losses on the underlying exposures being hedged.

http://www.secinfo.com/dsd8c.88.htm RI101700n
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PART II - OTHER INFORMATION

Item 2. Changes in Securities

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

In September 1997, the Company issued 445.75 shares of its Series A Common Stock
and 98.292 shares of its Series B Redeemable Preferred Stock to Alexander R.
Castaldi for an aggregate purchase price of $150,000.

In April 1997, !=he..r;::QI1\J:.J(;iI1Y issued 445.75 shares of its Series A Common Stock and
98.292 shares of its Series B Redeemable Preferred Stock to Vincent P.Langone
for an aggregate purchase price of $150,000.

The issuance of these securities was made in reliance on the exemption from
registration provided by Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
for transactions not involving a public offering.

Item 5. Other Information
On March 1 thE; _C:()rnEaIl~ consummated a fully-subscribed registered
exchange offer for the Notes (the "Exchange Offer") to satisfy certain of the
Company's obligations under a registration rights agreement relating to the
Notes. The form and terms of the Notes issued under the Exchange Offer are
substantially identical in all material respects to the form and terms of the
Notes issued on Qc::tCllJE;rJ7,J~~§·

Item 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K

(a) Exhibits.

Exhibit
No. Description of Exhibit

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Freedom Chemical Company and
Certificate of Designation for Preferred Stock (filed as Exhibit 3.1
to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-l (33-84778) and
incorporated heretn by ~efere~ce).

3.2 By-laws of Freedom Chemical Company (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the
Company's Registration Statement on Form S-l (33=§~I]J3) and
incorporated herein by reference).

27 Financial Data Schedule.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K.

No reports on Form 8-K were filed during the quarter for which this report is
filed.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities
Registrant has duly caused this report to be
undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

Exchange Act of 1934, the
signed on its behalf by the

FREEDOM CHEMICAL COMPANY
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(Registrant)

Brian f. McNamara
Vice President, Secretary

and General Counsel

Date: November 13, 1997 By: Isl DENNIS M. MONAHAN

Dennis M. Monahan
Vice President, Finance

and Control

http://www.secinfo.comldsd8c.88.htm
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FREEDOM CHEMICAL COMPANY
Form lO-Q Report for the Nine Months Ended

?E?pt:E?rnl=J"":r39.!!~~1'

Exhibit
No. Description of Exhibit

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Freedom Chemical Company and
Certificate of Designation for Preferred Stock (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to
the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-l (33-84778) and
incorporat~? herE?in by refer~nce) .

3.2 By-laws of Freedom Chemical Company (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the
Company's Registration Statement on Form S-l (?2 8{ZJ~) and
incorporated herein by reference).

27 Financial Data Schedule.
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
REGION 2

290 BROADWAY
NEW YORK, NY 10007·1866

SEP 1 5 2003

GENERAL NOTICE LETTER
CERTIFIED MAIL-RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Joseph Akers, Vice President
Bayer Corporation
100 Bayer Road
Pittsburgh. Pennsylvania 15205-9741

"•• '0·'

RE: Diamond Alkali Superfund Site
Notice of Potential Liability for
Response Actions in the Lower Passaic River, New Jersey

Dear Mr. Akers:

The United States Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") is charged with responding to the
release and/or threatened release of hazardous substances, pollutants. and contaminants into the
environment and with enforcement responsibilities un4er the Comprehensive Environmental
Response. Compensation. and Liability Act of 1980, as amended ("CERCLA"). 42 U.S.C. §9601
et~.

You received a letter from EPA, dated August 6, 1996. notifying Bayer Corporation
("Bayer") of its potential liability relating to the Passaic River Study Area. which is part of the
Diamond Alkali Superfund Site ("Site") located in Newark, New Jersey, pursuant to Section
107(a) ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.C. §9607(a). Under CERCLA. potentially responsible parties
("PRPs") include current and past owners of a facility,-as well as persons who arranged for the
disposal or treatment of hazardous substances at the Site, or the transport of hazardous
substances to the Site. Accordingly, EPA is seeking your cooperation in an innovative approach
to envirorunental remediation and restoration activities for the Lower Passaic River.

EPA has documented the release or threatened release of hazardous substances, pollutants and
contaminants into the six-mile stretch of the river, known as the Passaic River Study Area, which
is part of the Site located in Newark, New Jersey. Based on the results of previous CERCLA
remedial investigation activities and other environmental studies, including a reconnaissance
study of the Passaic River conducted by the United States Army Corps of Engineers ("USACE'').
EPA has further determined that contaminated sediments and other potential sources of
hazardous substances exist along the entire 17-mile tidal reach of the Lower Passaic River. Thus,
EPA has decided to expand the Study to include the areal extent of contamination to which
hazardous substances from the six-mite stretch were transported; and those sources from which

Internet Address (URL). http://www.epa.gov
Re<:yclediRecyclable • Prln\lld with Vegetab~ on Based Inks on Recycled P_r fMlnlmum 50%Poalconsumer COIlIentl
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· .
hazardous substances outside the six-mile stretch have come to be located within the expanded
Study Area.

In recognition of our complementary roles, EPA has formed a partnership with USACE and the
New Jersey Department ofTransportation~Office of Maritime Resources ("OMRU

) ["the
governmental partnership"] to identify and to address water quality improvement, remediation,
and restoration opportunities in the 17-mile Lower Passaic River. This govenunental partnership
is consistent with a national Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") executed on July 2,2002
between EPA and USACE. This MOU calls for the two agencies to cooperate, where
appropriate, on environmental remediation and restoration of degraded urban rivers and related
resources. In agreeing to implement the MOU, the EPA and USACE will use their existing
statutory and regulatory authorities in a coordinated manner. These authorities for EPA include
CERCLA, the Clean Water Act, and the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. The
USACE's authority stems from the Water ReSOluces Development Act ("WRDA''). WRDA
allo\Vs f{)!". th~ u§eof !;QIJ:!tlfegeralJundstQ PllYJoJ:'ap.~I1i()n_ofth~lJ.~A-GE'.s__llpp'roy~ Pl'()j~ts
related to ecosystem restoration.

For the first phase of the Lower Passaic River Project, the governmental partners are proceeding
with an integrated five- to seven-year study to determine an appropriate remediation and
restoration plan for the river. The study will involve investigation of environmental impacts and
pollution sources, as well as evaluation of alternative actions, leading to recommendations of
environmental remediation and restoration activities. This study is being conducted by BPA
under the authority of CERCLA and by USACE and OMR, as local sponsor, under WRDA.
EPA, USACE, and OMR are coordinating with the New Jersey Department of Environmental
Protection and the Federal and State Natural Resource Trustee agencies. EPA, USACE, and
OMR estimate that the study will cost approximately $20 million, with the WRDA and CERCLA
shares being about $10 million each. EPA will be seeking its share of the costs of the study from
PRPs.

Based on information that EPA evaluated during the course of its investigation of the Site, BPA
believes that hazardous substances were being released from the former Thomasett
Colors/Sterling facility located at 120 Lister Avenue in Newark, New Jersey, into the Lower
Passaic River. Hazardous substances, pollutants and contaminants released from the facility into
the river present a risk to the environment and the humans who may ingest contaminated fish and
shellfish. Therefore, Bayer may be potentially liable for response costs which the government
may incur relating to the study of the Lower Passaic River. In addition, responsible parties may
be required to pay damages for injury to, destruction of, or loss of natural resources, including the
cost of assessing such damages.

Enclosed is a list of the other PRPs who have received Notice letters. This list represents BPA's
findings on the identities ofPRPs to date. We are continuing efforts to locate additional PRPs
who have released hazardous substances, directly or indirectly, into the Passaic River. Inclusion
on, or exclusion from, the list does not constitute a final determination by BPA concerning the
liability of any party for the release or threat of release of hazardous substances at the Site. Be
advised that notice of your potential liability at the Site is being forwarded to all parties on this

851620002
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list.

We request that ypu consider becoming a "cooperating party" for the Lower Passaic River
Project. As a cooperating party, you, along with many other such parties, will be expected to
fund EPA's share of the study costs. Upon completion ofthe studY, it is expected that CERCLA
and WRDA processes will be used to identify the required remediation and restoration programs,
as well as the assignment of remediation and restoration costs. At this time, the commitments of
the cooperating parties will apply only to the study. For those who choose not to cooperate, EPA
may apply the CERCLA enforcement process, pursuant to Sections 106 (a) and 107(a) of
CERCLA, 42 V.S.C. §9606(a) and §9607(a) and other laws.

Pursuant to CERCLA Section 113(k), EPA must establish an administrative record that contains
documents that form the basis ofEPA's decision on the selection oCa response action for a site.
The administrative record files, which contain the documents related to the response action
selected for this Site are located at EPA's Region 2 office (290 Broadway, New York) on the 18th

·flo~~. Y~~~~y'~allfue- Rec~rd~-C~titer at (212) 6374308 to make"an-appointii:ient tOvlew"the ."
administrative record for the Lower Passaic River Project.

EPA will be holding a meeting with all PRPs on October 29,2003 at 10:00 AM in Conference
Room 27A at the Region 2 office. At that meeting, EPA will provide information about the
actions taken to date in the Lower Passaic River, as well as plans for future activities. After the
presentation, PRPs will be given the opportunity to caucus, and EPA will return to answer any
questions that might be generated during the private session. Please be advised that due to
increased security measures, all visitors need to be registered with the security desk in the lobby
in order to gain entry to the office. In order to ensure a smooth arrival, you will need to provide
EPA with a list of attendees no later than October 15,2003.

EPA recommends that the cooperating parties select a steering committee to represent the
group's interest as soon as possible, since EPA expects a fundingconunitment for the financing
of the CERCLA share ofthe $20 million study by mid-November 2003. Ifyou wish to discuss
this further, please contact Ms. Alice Yeh, Remedial Project Manager, at (212) 6374427 or Ms.
Kedari Reddy, Assistant Regional Counsel, at (212) 637-3106. Please note that all
communications from attorneys should be directed to Ms. Reddy.

Sincerely yours,

~
George Pavlou, Director
Emergency and Remedial Response Division

Enclosure

cc: Gerard Hickel, Esq.
Bayer Corporation

851620003
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PRPs in Receipt of Notic:e Letters:

IpRP Legal Counsel

J. Roger Hid Paul W. Herring, Esq.
President and Chairman of the Board Andrews & Kurth L.L.P.
Occidental Chemical Co. 1717 Main Street, Suite 3700
Occidental Tower Dallas, Texas 75201
5005 LBJ Freeway
Dallas, Texas 75244

Joseph Gabriel Philip Sellinger, Esq.
Vice President of Operations Sills Curnmis Zuckerman
360 North Pastoria Environmental Corp. One Riverfront Plaza
1100 Ridgeway Avenue Newark, NJ 07102
Rochester, New York 14652-6280

Robert Ball, President Lawrence Salibra. Esq.
Alcan Aluminum Corporation Alcan Aluminum Corporation I

100 Erieview Plaza, 29th Floor 6060 Parkland Blvd.
Cleveland, Ohio 44114 Mayfield Hts., OH 44124

Mark Epstein, President Eric Aronson, Esq.
Alden Leeds Inc. Whitman Breed Abbott & Morgan
55 Jacobus Ave. One Gateway Center I

Kearny, New Jersey 07032 Newark, NJ 07102

Alan Bendelius, President Fredi L. Pearl mutter, Esq.
Alliance Chemical, Inc. Cooper, Rose & English, LLP I

Linden Avenue 480 Morris Avenue
Ridgefield, New Jersey 07657 Summit, New Jersey 07901·1527

William Gentner, President A. Christian Worrell III, Esq.
The Andrew Jergens Co. Head & Ritchey, LLP
2535 Spring Grove Ave. 1900 Fifth Third Center
Cincinnati, Ohio 45214 511 Walnut Street

Cincinnati, OH 45202

Gary Cappeline, President Stephen Leennakers, Esq.
Ashland Specialty Chemical Co. Ashland Specialty Chemical Co.
5200 Blazer Parkway 5200 Blazer Parkway
Dublin, Ohio 43017 Dublin, OH 43017

Klaus Peter Loebbe, President Nan Bernardo, Esq. and Nancy Lake Martin, Esq.
BASF Corporation BASF Corporation
3000 Continental Drive North 3000 Continental Drive North
Mount Olive, New Jersey 07828 Mount Olive, NJ 07828
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Joseph Akers, Vice President Gerard Hickel, Esq.
Bayer Corporation Bayer Corporation
100 Bayer Road 100 Bayer Road
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15205-9741 Pittsburgh. PA 15205-9741

Yvan Dupay, President Arthur Schulz, Esq.
Benjamin Moore &Co. EnviroIUIlental Counsel
51 Chestnut Ridge Road 4910 Massachusetts Ave., N.W. Suite 221
Montvale, New Jersey 07645 Washington, DC 20016

Alberto Celleri, President Jim Giannotti
Chemical Compounds Inc. Chemical Compounds Inc.
10 Baldwin Court 29-75 Riverside Avenue
Roseland, New Jersey 07086 Newark, NJ 07104

President Brian Kelly, Esq.
Chris-Craft Industries, Inc. Chris-Craft Industries, Inc.
767 Fifth Avenue, 46th Floor 767 Fifth Avenue, 46th Floor
New York, New York 10153 New York, NY 10153

John Guffey, President John R. Mayo, Esq.
I

IColtee Industries, Inc. Coltee Industries. Inc.
3 Coliseum Centre 430 Park Avenue
2550 West Tyvola Road New York, NY 10022
Charlotte, North Carolina 28217

Roger Marcus, President Russell Hewi .. Esq.
;

!
Congoleum Corporation Dughi & Hewit
3705 Quakerbridge Road 340 North Avenue
Mercerville, New Jersey 08619 Cranford, NJ 07016

Martin Benante, Chairman James Maher, Esq.
Curtiss-Wright Corp. Curtiss- Wright Corp.
4 Becker Farm Road 4 Becker Fann Road
Roseland, New Jersey 07068 Roseland, NJ 07068

Antonio Perez, President Elliot Stem, Esq.
Eastman Kodak Company Eastman Kodak Company
343 State Street 343 State Street
Rochester, New York 14650 Rochester, NY 14650

Edgar Woolard, Chairman Bernard J. Reilly, Esq.
E.!. du Pont de Nemours & Co. Corporate Counsel
1007 Market Street E.!. du Pont de Nemours & Co.
Wilmington, Delaware 19898 1007 Market Street

Wilmington, DE 19898
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David Weisman, CEO Jeffrey Schwartz, Esq.
Elan Chemical Company Sarber Schlesinger Satz & Goldstein
268 Doremus Ave. One Gateway Center
Newark, New Jersey 07105 Newark, NJ 07102

Al Reisch, President None
E M Sergeant Pulp & Chemical Co. Inc.
6 Chelsea Road
Clifton, New Jersey 07102
... _.

Mark Tucker, Esq. Kenneth Mack, Esq.
Essex Chemical Corp. Fox, Rothschild, O'Brien & Frankel
2030WMDC Princeton Pike Corp. Center
Midland, Michigan 48674 997 Lenox Drive, Building 3

LaWrenceville, NJ 08648

Todd Walker, President John Ix, Esq.
Fairmount Chemical Co. Inc. Porzio Bromberg & Newman
117 Blanchard St. 163 Madison Ave.
Newark, New Jersey 07105 ! Morristown, NJ 07962

Bradley Buechler, President Robert M. Becker, Esq.
Franklin-Burlington Plastics Inc. Kraemer, Burns, Mytelka & Lovell, P.A.
113 Passaic Ave. 675 Morris Ave.
Kearny, New Jersey 07032 Springfield, NJ 07081

Henry Benz, President Anne Con1ey-Pitchell, Esq.
Hoescht Celanese Chemicals, Inc. Hoescht Celanese Corp.
Route 202-206 Route 202·206
P.O.Box 2500 P.O.Box 2500
Somerville, New Jersey 08876 Somerville. NJ 08876

Francine Rothschild, President IN~Kearny Smelting & Refining
936 Harrison Ave #5
Kearny, New Jersey 07032

Henry Schact, CEO Ralph McMurry, Esq.
Lucent Technologies, Inc. Hill, Betts & Nash LLP
600 Mountain Avenue 1 Riverfront Plaza, Suite 327
Murray Hill, New Jersey 07974 Newark, NJ 07102-5401

Richard Meelia, President Patricia Duft, Esq.
Mallinckrodt, Inc. Mallinckrodt, Inc.
675 McDonnell Blvd. 675 McDolUlell Blvd.
Hazelwood, Missouri 63042 Hazelwood, MO 63042
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Richard Mahoney, CEO L. William Higley, Esq.
Monsanto Company Monsanto Company
800 N. Lindbergh Blvd. 800 N. Lindbergh Blvd.
St. Louis, Missouri 63167 St. Louis, MO 63167

Joseph Galli, President Peter Schultz, Director
Newell Rubbennaid, Inc. Environmental Affairs
29 E. Stephenson St. Newell Co.
Freeport, Illinois 61032 4000 Auburn St.

Rockford, IL 61101
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360 NORTH PASTQRIA ENVIRONMENTAL CORPORATION

Rochester, New York 14652·6280

January 4, 1996

Mr. Lance R. Richman, P.G.
Emergency and Remedial Response Division
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
290 Broadway, Floor 19
New York, New York 10007-1866

Subject: Thomasset Colors, Inc.me Hilton-Davis Chemical Company
A Division of Sterling Drug. Inc.
Request for Information Under 42 U.S.C. §9601 ~~.
Diamond Alkali Superfund Site, Passaic River Study Area

Dear Mr. Richman:

This is in response to your letter of November 14, 1995 to Sterling Winthrop Inc.
(Sterling) requesting information relative to the operations of Thomasset Colors, Inc.
(Thomasset) at 120 Lister Avenue in Newark, New Jersey (the Site). Note that this
response is limited to Thomasset's operations at the Site, during the period that Thomas-
set was owned by Sterling, i.e., from March 11, 1957 to October 23, 1986.

The preliminary response set forth below is based upon our investigation to date. There
are no active Sterling employees that have any direct knowledge of Thomasset's opera-
tions at the Site. As a result, this response is subject to further clarification as additional
information becomes available.

Following is Sterling's response to each question in the Request for Information.

1. How long and during what years has you,. company operated at the facility
designated above?

Sterling acquired Thomasset on March 11, 1957. On December 28, 1983, Sterling
transferred the assets of Thomasset to its subsidiary, The Hilton-Davis Chemical
Company (Hilton-Davis). On October 23, 1986, the assets of Hilton-Davis were
sold to H. D. Acquisition Corporation, which later changed its name to Hilton
Davis Co., a division ofPMC Specialties (pMC). On September 9, 1993, PMC sold
Hilton Davis Co. to Freedom Chemical Company (Freedom). Thomasset ceased
operating at the facility on October 23, 1986 with the sale of Hilton-Davis to PMC.
however Sterling maintained ownership of the property until Freedom purchased
the property in late 1993.

844710001
Joseph G. Gabriel, Vice President of Operations Tel- (716) 588·"369 FClx (71615Sf';'1t;1

TIERRA-B-001185



Mr. Lance R. Richman, P.G.
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
January 3, 1996

2a. Does your company have or has it in the past had a permit or permits issued
pursuant to the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.c. §6901 e1
UJI..? If "yes", please provide the years that your company held such a permit and
its EPA Identification Numher.
During Thomasset's period of operation, the facility did not have any permits issued
pursuant to the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA). The facility was
a generator of hazardous waste from August 18, 1980 through October 23, 1986 and
its EPA Identification Number was NJD000537274.

2b. Does your company have or has it in the past had a permit or permits issued
pursuant to the Federal WaterPollution Control Act, 33 U.S.c. §1251. e1. S£1l.? If
'yes", please provide the years that your company held such apermiL
The Passaic Valley Sewerage Commissioners (PVSC) issued a sewer connection
permit (# 20402690) to the facility for the period May 15, 1981 through May 15,
1986. This permit was revised effective May 21, 1984 to change the required sam-
pling frequency. The permit was renewed by PVSC effective May 27. 1986 for a
period oftive years.

3. Did your company receive, utilize, manufacture, discharge, release or dispose of
any materials containing thefollowing substances:
During Thomasset's period of operation, the facility used barium sulfate, barium
chloride, naphthalene, and I,2-dichlorobenzene in the manufacture of Food and
Drug Administration (FDA) approved pigments. In addition, the facility blended
and repackaged chromium oxide and chromium hydrate for resale, but did not use
or produce these substances in any manufacturing operation.

4a. Provide a description of the manufacturing processes for which all hazardous
substances, including, but not limited to, the substances listed in response to item
(3), were a product or by-product.
Because these manufacturing processes are historic in nature, Sterling has no cur-
rent knowledge regarding how these operations were conducted or varied over time.
Based on the investigation to date and subject to change based on the availability of
additional information, a preliminary understanding of these processes follows.

The principal products manufactured at the facility during Thomasset's period of
operation were phthalocyanine pigments, transoxide pigments, and FDA certified
colors for use in food and cosmetic applications, referred to as FD&C and D&C
colors, respectively. Following are descriptions of the manufacturing processes for
these products.

-2- 844710002
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Mr. Lance R. Richman, P.G.
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
January 3, t 996

Pbthalo~anine Pigment,: Two types of phthalocyanine pigments were manufac-
tured during Thomasset's period of operation, Phthalo Blue and Phthalo Green. We
have been Wlable to locate any details regarding the Phthalo Green manufacturing
process and this product appears to have been discontinued in mid-198 t .

Phthalo Blue was manufactured by blending phthalic anhydride, copper sulfate and
urea in mixing tanks. The resultant mixture was then dried. The dried pigment was
ground and mixed in a dilute sulfuric acid solution. The slurry (refined pigment)
was then neutralized with anunonia prior to being dewatered in filter presses. The
press cakes (final product) were packed into drums for shipment.

Tragsoxide Pigmegts: Soda ash, ferrous sulfate and water were mixed and agitated
with air in mixing tanks. The resulting slurry then underwent a boiling process prior
to being dewatered in filter presses. The filter cakes were either dried and packed
into drums or further processed in an extruder. Extruded products were either baked
at 550 F to produce a red pigment or steamed at 150 F to produce a yellow pigment.
The final product was milled, blended with other coloring agents, and packed into
drums for shipment.

D&C Colors: Several varieties of D&C colors were produced at the facility during
Sterling's period of operation. The major production process for D&C colors is de-
scribed here. Para-toluidine-meta-sulfonic acid and beta-oxynaphthoic acid were
blended in mixing tanks and the resulting slurry was dewatered in filter presses. The
filter cakes were dried, milled, blended, and packed into drums for shipment.

Other Manufacturing Operations: In addition to the manufacturing operations de-
scribed above, the facility also handled some final products that were produced at
other Hilton-Davis manufacturing plants. These materials were relabeled andlor re-
packaged, primarily in Building 8, in preparation for shipment to customers. There
are no records of any waste streams generated by these operations.

4b. During what parts of the manufacturing processes identified in the response to
items (4) (a), above, were hazardous substancesJ including, but not limited to, the
substances listed in response to item (3), generated?

i) Describe the chemical composition of these hazardous sub-
stances.

ii) For each process, what amount of hazardous substances was
generated per volume offinished product?

iii) Were these hazardous substances combined with wastes from
other processes? If so, wastesfrom whatprocesses?

Waste streams from the manufacturing processes described above consisted primar-
ily of decant water and filter press effluent. The substances contained in these liquid
waste streams, which are also listed in 40 CFR 302.4, are described below.

-3- 844710003
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Mr. Lance R. Richman, P.G.
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
January 3, 1996

Pbtbalocyanjoe Pigmepts: Phthalo Blue decant water and filtrates contained ap-
proximately 3 percent sulfuric acid and may have contained trace amounts of copper
salts. Phthalo Green filtrates may have contained trace amounts of copper salts. Fil-
trates from Phthalo Blue and Phthalo Green production were discharged to the
sanitary sewer as described below in the answer to Question 6. Decant water from
the Phthalo Blue process was discharged to the sanitary sewer, except from the
summer of 1963 through June 1971 when this stream may have been discharged to
the Passaic River as described below in the answer to Question 7(b).

TrapsoJide Pigmepts: Filtrates from Transoxide manufacturing may have contained
unreacted iron salts and sulfuric acid. These filtrates were discharged to the sanitary
sewer as described below in the answer to Question 6.

D&C Colors: Filtrates from D&C Colors manufacturing may have contained beta
oxynaphthoic acid, 1,2-dichlorobenzene, trichlorobenzene, aluminum salts, andlor
bromine. These filtrates were discharged to the sanitary sewer as described below in
the answer to Question 6.

5. Describe the methods of collection, storage, treatment, and disposal of all hazard-
ous substances, including, but not limited to, the substances listed in response to
item (3) and (4). Include information on theJollowing:

a) Identify all persons who arrangedJor and managed the process-
ing, treatment and disposal oj hazardous substances.

b) IJ hazardous substances were taken oJJ-siteby a hauler or trans-
porter, provide the names and addresses oJthe waste haulers and
the disposal site locations.

c) Describe ll1lstorage practices employed by your company with
respect to all hazardous substances Jrom the time operations
commenced until the present. Include all on-site and off-site
storage activities.

d) Describe ll1lstorage locations at theJacility. Include in your de-
scription whether there was a containment system around the
storage area.

The identities of the person(s) who arranged for and managed the processing, treat-
ment and disposal of hazardous substances could not be determined from the avail-
able documentation.

Annual RCRA hazardous waste generator reports were found for 1982, 1983 and
1984. No hazardous waste was manifested in 1983 or 1984. In 1982, 3.667 gallons
of No. 6 fuel oil was manifested to and disposed of at B&L Oil Corp. in Newark,
New Jersey.

- 4 -
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Mr. Lance R. Richman, P.G.
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
January 3, 1996

Above ground tanks were used for the storage of bulk material. There were no un-
derground tanks at the facility during the period of Thomasset's operation. The fol-
lowing bulk storage tanks were used for the storage of hazardous substances:

TapkNo. Coptepts

Phthalo Blue slurry (contained copper salts)
Phthalo Blue slurry (contained copper salts)
dilute sulfuric acid (Phthalo Blue decant)
dilute sulfuric acid (Phthalo Blue decant)
dilute sulfuric acid (phthalo Blue decant)
sulfuric acid
sulfuric acid
No.6 fuel oil
No.6 fuel oil
anhydrous ammonia
caustic soda

The remaining materials used on site were stored in 55 gallon steel drums, carboys
and bags, which were located in Buildings 6, 7, 8 or 9. A detailed inventory of raw
materials that were present on site in November 1985 is included in Attachment A.

15
16

26-A
26~B
26-C
41
42
44
45
67

6a. For process waste waters generated at the facility which contained any hazardous
substances, including, but not limited to, the substances listed in response to item
(3) and (4):

i) Did the waste stream connect to a sanitary sewer and if so, dur-
ing what years?

ii) Were they treated before being discharged to the sanitary sewer
and iJso, how?

iii) If the waste waters were not discharged to the sanitary sewer,
where were they disposed and during what years?

Except as described in the answer to Question 7(b) below, process wastewater gen-
erated at the facility during Thomasset's period of operation was discharged to a
sanitary sewer. A wastewater neutralization system was constructed in June 1971 to
neutralize process wastewater prior to discharge to the sanitary sewer.

6b. For floor drains or other disposal drains at the facility:

i) Did the waste stream connect to a sanitary sewer and if so, dur-
ing what years?

ii) Was the waste stream treated before being discharged to the
sanitary sewer and if so, how?

- 5 - 844710005
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Mr. Lance R. Richman, P.G.
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
January 3, 1996

iii) If the floor drains or other disposal drains at the facility were not
discharged to the sanitary sewer. where did they discharge and
during what years?

Waste streams from floor drains generated at the facility during Thomasset's period
of operation were discharged to a sanitary sewer. A wastewater neutralization sys-
tem was constructed in June 1971 to neutralize process wastewater prior to dis-
charge to the sanitary sewer.

6c.

i) Did any storm sewers, catch hasins or lagoons exist at any time at
the facility and if so. during what years?

ii) If catch hasins or lagoons existed, were they lined or un-lined?

iii) Where was the discharge from any of these structures released
and during what years? Was this discharge treated hefore its re-
lease and if so, how and during what years?

Storm water catch basins and process wastewater were discharged to the City of
Newark sanitary sewer in Lister Avenue through a combined 12 inch sewer line. In
June 1971 a new 16 inch sewer was constructed to discharge treated process waste-
water to the municipal sanitary sewer. At the same time, the existing 12 inch sewer
line was converted for stormwater use only and was connected to a municipal storm
sewer in Lister Avenue. In March 1972, the 12 inch sewer line was sealed off from
the municipal storm sewer.

6d. Please supply diagrams of any waste water collection or disposal systems on the
property.

Our understanding of the manner in which the wastewater collection and treatment
system was constructed in June 1971 is reflected in Attachment B.

7a. For each hazardous substance, including, hut not limited to. the substances listed
in response to item (3) or identified in the responses to item (4), above, provide
the total amount generated during the operation of the facility on an annual ba-
sis.

We do not have adequate information to accurately respond to this request.

-6- 844710006
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Mr. Lance R. Richman, P.O.
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
January 3, 1996

7b. Were any hazardous substances, including, but not limited to, the substances
listed in response to item (3) or identified in the responses to item (4), above, dis-
posed of in the Passaic River or discharged to the Passaic River? If yes, estimate
the amount of material discharged to or disposed of in the Passaic River and the
frequency with which this discharge or disposal occurred.
Decant water from the Phthalo Blue manufacturing process may have been dis-
charged to the Passaic River from the summer of 1963 through June 1971. This
waste stream contained, inter alia, dilute sulfuric acid and trace amounts of unre-
acted copper salts. We do not have sufficient information to accurately estimate the
amount of decant water discharged to the Passaic River.

8. Please identify any leaks, spills, explosions, fires, or other incidents of accidental
material discharge that occurred at the facility during which or as a result of
which any hazardous substances, including, but not limited to, the substances
listed in response to item (3) or (4), were released on the property ofthefacUity or
discharged to the Passaic River. Provide any documents or information relating
to tl'ese incidents.
On August 19, 1971 a container of green fluorescein dye, a non-hazardous sub-
stance, was discharged to a stormwater catch basin at the Site and reached the Pas-
saic River through the Lockwood Street storm sewer. On February 18, 1972, Tho-
mas set received a Notice of Violation from the City of Newark for "chemical" in
the storm sewer. As a result of these two incidents, the storm sewer was sealed off
in March 1972 to prevent any further accidental releases to the Passaic River.
Documents related to these incidents are included in Attachment C.

9. Provide the date of any leaks, spills, explosions, fires or other incidents of acci-
dental material discharge of any hazardous substances, including, but not limited
to, the substances listed in response to item (3) and (4), on the property or into the
waste water discharge system at the facility. PrOllidedetails of the ultimate dis-
posal of any contaminated materials.

In 1963 joints on the 12 inch combined sewer from the Thomasset site to the mu-
nicipal sewer in Lister Avenue appeared to be leaking. We have not located any
documentation to indicate how this problem was resolved at that time. In June 1971
a new 16 inch sewer was constructed to discharge treated process wastewater to the
municipal sanitary sewer, replacing the 12 inch sewer.

On January 22, 1981, approximately 7,000 gallons of transoxide leaked from a fit-
ting on tank No. 65. Most of the spill was contained within a depressed area of a
neighboring parking lot. The spill was cleaned up and the waste was discharged into
the sanitary sewer. The spill was contained on the property and did not reach the
Passaic River.

·7- 844710007
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Mr. Lance R. Richman, P.G.
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
January 3, t 996

10a. Wasyour facility ever suhject toflooding. If so, was theflooding due to:
i) ovetflow from sanitary or storm sewer hack-up, and/or
ii) flood ovetflow from the Passaic River?

The facility has been subject to flooding from the Passaic River.

1Qb. Please provide the date and duration of eachflood event.
Review of available docwnents did not reveal any specific dates or duration of flood
events.

t 1. Please provide a detailed description of any civil, criminal or administrative
proceedings against your company for violations of any local, State or federal
laws or regulations relating to water pollution or hazardous waste generation,
storage, transport or disposal. Provide copies of all pleadings and depositions or
other testimony given in these proceedings.
On April 27, t 976 a $750 fine was imposed on Thomasset for violations of the
SPCC regulations under Section 311 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act.
Note that this response is limited to the Thomasset facility located at t 20 Lister
Avenue in Newark, New Jersey from March It, t 957 to October 23, 1986.

12. Provide a copy of each document which relates to the generation, purchase, use,
handling, hauling, and/or disposal of all hazardous suhstances, including, but
not limited to, the suhstances listed in response to item (3) or (4). If you are un-
able to provide a copy of any document, then identify the document by describing
the nature of the document (e.g. letter,jile memo, invoice, inventory form, hilling
record, hazardous waste manifests, etc.). Describe the relevant information con-
tained therein. Identify the name and job title the person who prepared the docu-
ment. If the document is not readily available, state where it is stored, main-
tained, or why it is unavailable.

In review with legal counsel, it has been determined that this request is over broad
and beyond the Agency's administrative authority.

13. Provide all other documents pertaining to the results of any analyses of ground
water, surface water, ambient air, and any other environmental media performed
at the facility.
We are not aware of any sampling or analyses of ground water, surface water, am-
bient air, or other environmental media performed at the facility during Thomasset's
period of operation. However, significant soil and groundwater sampling has been
conducted by Sterling from 1987 through 1995 in connection a New Jersey De-
partment of Environmental Protection ECRA/ISRA investigation and cleanup.

- g-
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Mr. Lance R. Richman, P.G.
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
January 3, 1996

14a. From whom did your company purchase the property arId in what year? If your
company subsequently sold the property, to whom did your company sell it arId ill
what year? Please provide copies of any deeds and documents of sale.

Sterling purchased Thomasset, the owner of the facility, on March 11, 1957. Ster~
ling sold the property to Freedom in late 1993 (see response to question I above).

14b. To the extent that you know, please provide the names of all parties who owned or
operated the jacility during the period from 1940 through the present. Describe
the relationship, if any, oj each of those parties with your company.

Listed below is a chronology of parties who owned or operated the facility.

OwnerlOperator

Freedom Chemical Company
PMC Specialties
Sterling Winthrop Inc.
Thomasset Colors, Inc. (pre Sterling)
Turco Products, Inc.
Swan-Finch Oil Corporation
American Agricultural Chemical Co.

Ermn
September 1993
October 1986
March 1957
June 1955
July 1950
March 1930
Unknown

present
September 1993
October 1986
March 1957
June 1955
July 1950
March 1930

15. Answer thejoJ/owing questions regarding your business or company. In identify-
ing a company that no longer exists, provide all the information requested, except
for the agent for service or process. If your company did business under more
than one name, list each name.

During the period from 1957 to 1986, Thomasset was affiliated as a division of
Sterling and later of Hilton-Davis. Sterling Drug Inc., a Delaware Corporation, ac-
quired all of the capital stock of Thomasset Colors, Inc., a New Jersey Corporation,
on March 11, 1957. Thomasset was liquidated in a Plan of Liquidation dated April
30, 1961. Thomasset operated as "Thomasset Colors, Division of Sterling Drug
Inc." until December 28, 1983, when Sterling transferred the assets of Thomasset to
its subsidiary, The Hilton-Davis Chemical Company. On October 1, 1991, the name
of Sterling Drug Inc. was changed to Sterling Winthrop Inc.

- 9 - 844710009
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Mr. Lance R. Richman, P.G.
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
January 4, 1996

16. Provide the name. address, telephone number, title and occupation of the per-
son(s) answering this t1Request for Information" and state whether such per-
son(s) has personal knowledge of the responses. In addition. identify each person
who assisted in any way in responding to the "Request for Information" and
specify the question to which each person assisted in responding.

This response is provided by Mr. Joseph G. Gabriel, Vice-President, 360 North
Pastoria Environmental Corporation (NPEC), which is located at 1100 Ridgeway
Avenue, Rochester, New York 14652 (telephone: 7l6~588-4369). Mr. Gabriel does
not have personal knowledge of the information relevant to these responses or of
Thom asset' s operations at the Site. This response was prepared based on documents
obtained from the Sterling Corporate archives and the Hilton-Davis archives. In the
course of answering this Request for Information, NPEC has relied upon the advice
of counsel and its environmental consultants in researching relevant information.

If you have any questions or need additional information, please call me.

Enclosures

cc: Amelia Wagner, U.S. EPA
S. Nunley/G. Hickel, Bayer Corporation

- 10-
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CERTIFICATION OF ANSWERS TO REOUEST FOR INFORMATION

State of _Nt,.J ~l. ,

County of _~':"'>";lLLl.""""" •

I certify under penalty of law that I have personally examined and am familiar with the
information submitted in this document (response to EPA Request for Information) and
all documents submitted herewith, and that based on my inquiry of those individuals
immediately responsible for obtaining the information, Ibelieve that the submitted
information is true, accurate, and complete, and that all documents submitted herewith
are complete and authentic unless otherwise indicated. Iam aware that there are
significant penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fme and
imprisonment. Iam also aware that my company is under a continuing obligation to
supplement its response to EPA's Request for Information if any additional information
relevant to the matters addressed in EPA's Request for Information or the company's
response thereto should become known or available to the company.

i). P. OfP ("9'WI;' A./ fr;o C
TITLE (print or type)

~~.Yy-JJ
SI ATURE

Sworn to before me this 4/""
day of .:f~A ,19A1.
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Attachment A

Raw Material Inventory
Response to Questions 5(c) and 5(d)
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MATERIAL
NAME FORM

Hilton Davis Facility
Raw Material Inventory

(1) EPA TOXIC POLLUTANT
(2) EPA HAZ. SUBSTANCE

QUANTITY STORAGE REGULATORY
(LB) LOCATION ME1HOO STATUS

8437 Tank 67 Bulk Yes, (2)
7859 Bldg. 116 Drum Yes, (2)
2970 Bldg. 119 Drum "b
209 Bldg. #9 Drum t'b
4400 Bldg. '9 Drum t'b
2000 Bldg. #9 Bag t'b
1070 Bldg. #9 Carboy t'b
1377 Bldg. '9 Drum f'.b
301 Bldg. '9 Bag "b
1876 Bldg. '9 Bag f'.b
50 Bldg. '9 Drum f'.b

1135 Bldg. '9 Drum t«>
28500 Bldg. '9 Tank Yes, (2)

460 Bldg. #9 Bag t'b
505 Bldg. 19 Bag f'.b
4140 Bldg. #9 Drum No
5800 Bldg. 19 Bag f'.b
100 Bldg. #9 Bag t-b
1148 Bldg. #8 & #9 Bag t-b

Page 1 014

Corrosives
Ammonia Liquid
Acetic Acid 100% liquid
Beta Oxy Napthoic Acid Solid
Carmine Solid
Caustic Soda Flakes Solid
Lithosol Acid RBA Solid
Muriatic Acid Liquid
Oleic Acid Liquid
Oxalic Acid Solid
Para Toluldene Meta Sulfonic Acic Solid
Pure 4B Acid Solid
Phosphoric Acid 75% Liquid
Sulfuric Acid Liquid

Pigments. Dyes. Colors
Ae rofloe Solid
Blanc Fixe No. 333 Solid
Bon Solid
Black Oxide Solid

. Celite Solid
Crude Blue 92% Solid
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Hilton Davis Facility CIO

Raw Material Inventory
(1) EPA TOXIC POLLUTANT
(2) EPA HAZ_ SUBSTANCE

MATERIAL QUANTITY STORAGE REGULATORY
NAME FORM (LB) LOCATION NE1HOD STATUS

D&C Red '21 Solid 300 Bldg. '6 Drum No
Duponel Solid 129 Bldg. #9 Drum No
Dresinate X Solid 900 Bldg. '9 Bag No
D&C Orange '4 Solid 220 Bldg. #6 Drum No
Hydrated Alum-Hydro #604 Solid 1046 Bldg. #9 Bag No
Hisperse Iron Blue P3551 Solid 7250 Bldg. #9 Bag No
1gepal 630 Solid 260 Bldg. #9 Drum No
Iron Powder Solid 10900 Bldg. #9 Bag No
Krolin 378 Solid 338 Bldg. #9 Bag No
Low Micron Talc Solid 100 Bldg. '9 Bag No
Mapioo Red 617 Solid 28 Bldg. '9 Bag No
Mapico Yellow 1075 Solid 295 Bldg. '9 Bag No
Mang Violet 4 Solid 16 Bldg. #9 Bag No
Marasperse N-22 Solid 1956 Bldg. #9 Bag No
Mica V.F. Solid 1711 Bldg. #8 Drum No
Mapico Red 387 Solid 2490 Bldg. #9 Bag No
Mapico Red R·3200 Solid 5723 Bldg. #9 Bag No
Mapico Red 297 Solid 3050 Bldg. #9 Bag No
Merlum Powder Solid 75 Bldg. #9 Drum No
Monochlor 4 Chlor, PTH Solid 1360 Bldg. #9 Drum No
No. 339 Talc <No. 461, 442 Solid 3229 Bldg. #9 Bag No

Page 2 of 4
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MATERIAL
NAME

TABLE 2-1

Hilton Davis Facility
Raw Material Inventory

(1) EPA TOXIC POLLUTANT
(2) EPA HAZ. SUBSTANCE

QUANTITY STORAGE REGULATORY
FmM (LB) LOCATION MEnIOO STATUS
Solid 5544 Bldg. 1t9 yard Drum f\b
Solid 100 Bldg. #9 Drum f\b
Solid 363 Bldg. #9 Drum Yes. (2)
Solid 1104 Bldg. 19 Bag f\b
Solid 2200 Bldg. 1t9 Bag fib
Solid 2200 Bldg. '9 Bag fib
Solid 1500 Bldg. #9 Drum f'b
Solid 8500 Bldg. #9 Bag fib
Solid 8800 Bldg. #9 Bag f'b
Solid 13252 Bldg. '9 Bags & Drum f'b
Solid 6600 Bldg. '9 Bags & Drum f>b

Solid 178 Bldg. '9 Bag Yes, (2)
Liquid 37 Bldg. #9 Drum fib
Liquid 900 Bldg. '9 Carboy f'b
liqUid 104 Bldg. #9 Bottle f'b
Solid 72 Bldg. #9 Drum f'b
Solid 279 Bldg. 1t9 Bag f'b
liqUid 1125 Bldg. #9 Drum f>b
Solid 641 Bldg. #9 Bag f'b
Solid 1000 Bldg. #9 Drum Yes. (1)
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Permaline Blue 6343
Red #6
Triethanolamine
Tech Mangan
Ultra Pink
Ultra Marine Violet 5C
Ultra Blue
Urea
UMB EC-62
Ultramarine Blue EC-40
UMB EC-20

Inorganic Salls
Ammonium Sulfate
Aerosol aT
Aluminum Chloride Solution
Bromine
Beta Napthol
Barium Chloride
Bromine 225 gal. cont.
Calcium Chloride
Copper Sulfate Monohydrate
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MATERIAL
NAME

co...co........
~Hilton Davis Facility

Raw Material Inventory

(1) EPA TOXIC POLLUTANT
(2) EPA HAZ. SUBSTANCE

QUANTITY STORAGE REGULATORY
FCRt (lB) LOCATION ME1ltOO STATUS
Solid 149045 Bldg. '9 Bag Yes, (2)
Solid 6600 Bldg. '8 Bag Yes, (1)
Solid 747 Bldg. '9 Bag "'b
Solid 82600 Bldg. '8,'9 Bag "'b
Solid 1500 Bldg. '9 Bag f'.k:l
Solid 351 Bldg. '9 Bag "'b
Solid 185 Bldg. '9 Drum Yes. (2)
Solid 4720 Bldg. '9 Bag f'.k:l
Solid 1613 Bldg. '9 Drum "'b
Solid 300 Bldg. 19 & #2 Drum "'b
Solid 606 Bldg. '9 Drum Yes, (2)
Solid 100 Bldg. '9 Bag "'b
Solid 1316 Bldg. '9 Bag t-b
Solid 7253 Bldg. '9 Bag f'.k:l
Solid 5664 Bldg. ,a Drum ~
Solid 3172 Bldg. it9 & #2 Drum ~

Ferrous Sulfate
Phthalic Anhydride
Potassium Carbonate
Soda Ash
Soda Bicarb Tech
Sodium Sulfate
Sodium Nitrate
Salt Granular
Sodium Molybdate Anhyd.
Sodium Chlorate
Sodium Hydrosulfide
Tri Poly Phos Soda
Tetra Sodium Pyro Phospha
Titanium Dioxide A420
Tetrechloro Fluorescein
Zirconium Oxy

Page 4 of 4
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Attachment B

Diagram of Wastewater Collection and Treatment System
Response to Question 6(d)

844110011
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Existing 40,000 Gallon
Acid Decant Tanks
Outside Building 6

Phthalo Blue Process

Existing
Ammonia Scrubbers

Building 8

Floor Drain
Building 2

Press

EXisting 1O'

Existing
12,000 Gallon
FRP Acid Tank

New Acid
Transfer Pump

HCL Scubbers
Behind BUilding 2

Phthalo Green Process

New Sump
Building 2
Front Yard

From Floor Drains
Building 5,6

T-1
Existing

Rubber Lined Acid
Storage Tank

New Drain Building 2

Existing 10"
Building 4 Transoxide Filter Press Effluent

Existing 4"
From OC Labs and Locker Rooms

PH RecordPH Control

From
..---- Tank

Car

New 16" VCP to Sanitary
Sewer in Street

T·2
600 Gallon
Brick lined

Neutralization Sump

T-3
6000 Gallon

Brick lined Retention Sump

EFFLUENT NEUTRAUZA1l0N SYSTEM -1971
THOMASSET COLORS INC,
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Attachment C

Documents Relating to Spill Incidents

Response to Question 8

844710019
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. •... : ).UG 2. 7 1971 .
.. THO""". "' ·;::.0
• ... e ' ..........

• W"~'U:R J, D"VI& ,
vlel; C"~Ullc...

8lYMOUR .... LV_ITKIN
c ..,•• aN.t ... I"PAS~.,~rc VAL.LEY SEWERAGE COMMlb_.ONERS

" " .7"0 BR.0AI) ,S'rAEET
NEWARK. 'N~'J.07102 . ,

J.w.a y, IItOIUT. '
ellUI' c.e"" •• I\."

CARMINE T. P'ERRAP'ATO
IIENJ......IN W, GORDON

~OUI8 IIAY. 2ND
-=D .... ~... IINt •••

Mila C~AALII'T.:'C:HACDI~ •.. .' cu".,'.IE.U"'.Ibl·
A~guBt.~5, ,1971

'"

'l'OITl.:l.ssetColor Company
120 Lister Avenue
Newark, NewiJ'et's~y 07,102 '

, " Attn.:' 10"..:.:. Paul 'romasse~;,_.vice.P~es'~det\t:
• :. •••.• . • ••• •. : •• ' -.. ~... ".' :. .' • '. I • _ •

.....
Dear Sir:

.'.

" This,~ili confirm o~' c;6~~~r'sa~io~'at' :the~i:~~' 'oi,m; "visit:
to :lour pJ.D.nton August 19, ,1971..

" A ,green mater::ial i.n 'the. P<;l,ss'a,icltiver ,corning' "fromthe'" ' "
Lock\~oodStreet Storm Sewer',.~as 'traced back to' your company;'"
Purther ins,pection indicated that an accident oocurred at your
?lullt"whcrGin, ,a containGt' of 'green fluorescent aye was 'discharged
into a catc~,ba~in within .your. plaht ·are~. Which ~hence 'reached

',tne Lockwood'St.reet: Storm' 'Sewer and 'the:. Passaic :River.. '. " " , .. ..' . _. . ". .. . ., . . .

",'.I pointed ou,tto you during',o~r .in'spection," that the area was'
extremely sloppy 'and pollu~ion ·could 'o~c~,not only'byaccLdental'

,'spills" but during any: 'time ,rain would wash the material which was
lying on ,the 'ground, .to the storm sewer. :r informed you that the_.
area which ·drains to 'a11-Y storm ~ewer''must be cleared of 'any spillage'
and kept clean. I also informed :l0Uthat :if i.t was.i.mpossible to'
keep cle~n, you must:repipe this seWe~to the:sa~itary system, if

. allowed by the City of Newark.' 'In ,any case, the polluting material
could not be allowed to reach the Passaic River'.

The Commissionersreques't a reply to this letter" in which'
you will infor~ them of what steps you will take 'to prevent a
furt,her pollution ,to the: Passaic River' :from your plan.t,togeth-er

, \'litna ·ti.metable'·'indicating when these: :stepstakeri will, be.complet.~a.
At thattime the Commissioners would,desire xa re~inspect' your plant
~rea to determine i.I 'al;1.possible points 'of polll1tion have been
eliminated.' '. , ' ,

Very truly :lours,

PAS~AI~~~ERA.~E 'COMMISSIONERS

,~~-~, ~,

'S. A. Lub 'tkin, , ' .
;:;;~:'::mr. Chief Engineer
Certi.fied :'laiJ-/, ,'.. .,
-c. C. TO: .,P.v.S:.:C..,' "Chie"f ,Coun'se~'Segreto, .,Me~srs;,'.Goldbe~g, .

. ' Flemi~g,euccine~l'o,' (c"DeLane. .

•• • ~ • ," •• 1' ..... :.",, .

844710020
--------_._------._, .

. "
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\

Mr. B.A. Lubet:Jcin
Chief Ene,1nea-
Passaic Valley Sewerage Commi.sione~.790 ~ad Stree~
Newark, New Jer.ey

Dear Mr. Lubetk1n J

The catch ba.in area in queation has been cleaned and main-
tained .ince your v1aU;o~ Augu.t It, 1'11. !'hi. are. ba. been
inspected twice by John Mclaughlin during thl. PUiocl, and be in-
dicated the bouaelceeping wa. aaU.facto.ry.

Xn addJ.t1on, we are presently inatalling • seventy foot long
six 1.nch pl •• Ue dr.in to racel". all £ruhblng "ai:er and effluent
.in thi. area. Thi. will be inat:&llecS by the end of Sept8-.ber.

P.inally, no :further production of fluoreaceln 1. ant.1cipabtd
this year. If we manu:tactur. thi. Product .tn 1::be ~ture, we will
recover and bleach Illl dye effluent before discharging to the aan-1"tary aewer.

Very tnlly your.,

Paul B. 1"homa... t
aT/.e
CC - HI:'. R0CJer Rodwinv'

Mr. Doug Elaenf'elder

844710021
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• • FEB 15 1972

CITY OF NEWARK, NEW .JERSEY
KENNETH A. 018S0N. MAl"CM

DEPARTMENT OF' HEAL"H AND WELF'ARE
DII ...... AN •• CLAaIC. DI•• C"Oili

CO.HI:~IU. .ODINI:
""."10111:1. AO ... INI.'''tATOIII

DIVISION 0 .. INS~.CTIONS
"'''''.ND IE. LIEW_O

. " •• 'I'OR

Fe~r;y 18, 19'72

Thomas Set Colors
120 Lister Avenue
Newark, New Jersey

120 Lister AveDue

DeaX' Sir:
A recent inspeotion made by the Division ot Inspeotions dlso~oseB
the t'o~lowing violations. Seot1on' IthlO.l _ Pl~lnS "'ode -

,-

The Sever Department took out a sample trom.the sewer line and found
ohemical In t.he line.
Have t.hiscondition checked tor. del'eotlve .ewer'llne or 70u &r8 put-tinS
same ohem1cal in the Une from 70ur tank.

-Inspector:James Policastro

You are hereby notified that a X'elnspeotlon will be made -within
)0 days. All violations must be oorreoted at the

expiration ot that time or a oourt oomplaint will be issued
against you tor failure to oomply with the rules and regulations
ot this DiVision.
SECTION 15:1-4
ANY PERSON SlRVED WITH ANY NOTICE REFERRED TO IN THIS SECTION MAY
REQUEST A HEARING THEREON, PROVIDED SUCH REQUEST IS "MADE IN WRITING
AND FILED WITH THE DIRECTOR, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND WELFARE,
,ROOM 210, CITY HA.U, NEWARK, N. J. WITHIN FIVE DAYS AFTER THE DATE
NOTICE WAS SERVED. -

JG:rs

844710022
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-'". "

,..., -q . 4.-.. 3:.-v-
''C..~ .......................e,

R. LJ d'lt~"

FebrUary 2S; It?2

Dr. Alan B. Clark .. Director·
Department: oE Heal.i:h 'and Walfare
Roon 210
C1t:y Hall·
Newark, New "e~eey

Dear Dr. Clark I
J '. .. - . .

% have recetvecS .. lett.r fEOna .fohn o.awaarla 'that we
are In V101aUon 0' JectlOll 1'.10.1 .. P1u,a.b1ng ~ -,
becauae there 18 cheid,cal In our Mwer U.na· (copy etlclo .. cS).

. . . ..
% would appreciate clarification ot thia. Whl~. eewer•

• tortn or .anl tu'Y7 .Where and when waa .1:he a.pl. taken e.nd
how wa. l~ taken? Vba~' chealca1. ,were found? .

t'hi. t'acl1U:y 1. in the busine.. of ,1AJ\\lfacbarlng varloua
or9anlc and. inoroantc cheralcala, our nol:lla1 d1.char .... otten .
coritalna various •• 1~a end .-o11da. t'o 1IlYJcnowl.d~ ~ mere
pre •• nee 01 cbem1aa1 ~. Dot conaUtute _. YLol_~on. . ,

We ~ ' ..... U.ar with ·the NewUk:titft1lr:4t.cbu9. CocS••
and 'do notexceecl any of thel~ apeclflcatlonl." .

Very '~u1y yOurs,
, , .

"~8.J:'t COLQR' DIV.

'..

844710023

TIERRA-B-001207



'/

f n I.
GENERAL NOTICE LETTER
URGENT LEGAL MATTER
EXPRESS HAIL - RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED
Mr. Joseph G. Gabriel
Vice President of Operations
360 North Pastoria Environmental Corporation
1100 Ridgeway Avenue
Rochester, New York 14652-6280

Re: Diamond Alkali Superfund site
Notice of Potential Liability of sterling Drug for
Response actions in the Passaic River study Area

Dear Mr. Gabriel:

The United states Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA'I) is
charged with responding to the release and/or threatened release
of hazardous sUbstances, pollutants, and contaminants into the
environment and with enforcement responsibilities under the
comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability
Act of 1980 ("CERCLA"), as amended, 42 U.S.C. §9601 ~ ~.

EPA has documented the release or threatened release of hazardous
substances, pollutants and contaminants into the Passaic River
study Area which is part of the Diamond Alkali Superfund Site
("Site"). By this letter, EPA has determined that Sterling Drug,
Inc. ("sterling") (now known as Sterling Winthrop, Inc.) as the
owner of Thomasset Colors, Inc., may be potentially liable

.relating to the Site pursuant to Section 107 of CERCLA. EPA is
notifying 360 North Pastoria Environmental Corporation (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Eastman Kodak Company) of sterling's
potential liability with the understanding that 360 North
Pastoria Environmental Corporation is handling Sterling's
environmental liabilities.

Sediment in the Passaic River contain numerous hazardous
sUbstances, pollutants and contaminants. Investigations
undertaken by EPA indicated that hazardous materials were being
released from the former Thomasset facility located at 120 Lister
Avenue in Newark, New Jersey, into the Passaic River StUdy Area.
Hazardous substances, pollutants and contaminants released from
the facility into the Passaic River study Area present a risk to
the environment and the humans who may ingest contaminated fish

ERRofIP-
RI{/ltAN

ERRD ERRD
PAVLOU CALLAHAN

';ft't 718/ftb
844650001
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and shellfish. Therefore, Sterling may be potentially liable for
all response costs which the government may incur relating to the
Passaic River study Area.

Under sections l06(a) and l07(a) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. §9606{a)
and §9607{a) and other laws, potentially responsible parties
("PRPsP

) may be obligated to implement response actions deemed
necessary by EPA to protect public health, welfare or the
environment, and may be liable for all costs incurred by the
government in responding to any release or threatened release at
the Site. If response actions are performed by EPA rather than

.by the PRPs, those PRPs may be sUbject to legal action pursuant
to Section 107(a) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. §9607(a), to recover
public funds expended by EPA in response to the release and
threatened release of hazardous materials at the Site. Such
actions and costs may include, but need not be limited to,
expenditures for conducting a Remedial Investigation/Feasibility
study ("RI/FS"), a Remedial Design/Remedial Action, and other
investigation, planning, response, oversight, and enforcement
activities. In addition, responsible parties may be required to
pay damages for injury to, destruction of, or loss of natural
resources, including the cost of assessing such damages.
While EPA has the discretionary authority to invoke special
notice procedures, EPA hereby notifies you that it will not
utilize the special notice procedures contained in Section 122(e)
of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. §9622(e). EPA has concluded that use of the
special notice procedures in Section 122(e) of CERCLA would delay
the implementation of the RI/FS which is currently being
performed at the site to determine the extent of contamination
and to evaluate possible actions to mitigate any adverse effects.
EPA will determine at a sUbsequent time whether additional
measures are required to mitigate releases from the Site in order

.to protect the public health, welfare, and the environment. The
decision not to use the special notice procedures does not
preclude you from entering into discussions with EPA regarding
your participation in activities at the Site.

By this letter, EPA encourages you, as a PRP, to voluntarily
participate in the EPA-approved activities underway at the
Passaic River Study Area in conjunction with other PRPs. At the
present time, an RIfFS is being performed at the Study Area under
an Administrative Consent Order with the Occidental Chemical
Corporation ("aCC"). The actual work is being performed by Maxus
Energy Corporation ("Maxus"), pursuant to certain contractual
arrangements with acc, and should be contacted for information
pertaining to the work being done. Maxus can be contacted at the
addresses listed in the Attachment to this letter. Other PRPs
who have received Notice letters are also listed in the
Attachment. Be advised that notice of your potential liability
at the site is being forwarded to acc by EPA.

844650002
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EPA requests your cooperation in this matter. If you are
interested in participating in the ongoing response action you
should notify EPA of your intentions to join with ace.
Notification should be in writing and should be delivered to EPA
no later that fourteen (14) days after the date that you receive
this letter. Your letter should be sent to:

Lance R. Richman, P.G.
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Emergency and Remedial Response Division
290 Broadway, Floor 19

New York, NY 10007-1866,
with a copy to Ms. Amelia Wagner, Esq., of the Office of Regional
Counsel, Floor 17 at the same street address.
If EPA does not receive a written response from you in the time
specified above, EPA will assume that you voluntarily decline to
participate in any of the response actions taking place at the
Site. EPA reserves the right to pursue its available enforcement
options with regard to the site.

If you wish to discuss this matter further, please contact
Mr. Lance R. Richman, P.G., of my staff at (212) 637-4409 or
Ms. Wagner at (212) 637-3141. Please note that all
communications from attorneys should be directed to Ms. Wagner.
Sincerely yours,

Kathleen Callahan, Director
Emergency and Remedial Response Division
Attachments
CC: Elliott stern, Esq.

Eastman Kodak, Legal Department
Ms. Carol Dinkins, Esq.
Vinson & Elkins, L.L.P.
Mr. Richard P. McNutt
Maxus Energy Corporation

844650003
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ATTACHMENT

Contact for Maxus Energy Corporation:
Mr. Richard P. McNutt
Maxus Energy Corporation
1015 Belleville Turnpike
Kearny, New Jersey 07032
Counsel: Ms. Carol E. Dinkins, Esq.

Vinson & Elkins, L.L.P.
2300 First City Tower
1001 Fannin street
Houston, Texas 77002-6760

PRPs in receipt of Notioe Letters:
Mr. J. Roger Hirl
President and Chairman of the Board
Occidental Chemical Company
Occidental Tower
5005 LBJ Freeway
Dallas, Texas 75244

Mr. Robert L. Ball, President
Alcan Aluminum Corporation
100 Erieview Plaza, 29th Floor
Cleveland, Ohio 44114

Counsel: Lawrence A. Salibra II, Esq., Senior Counsel
Alcan Aluminum Corporation
6060 Parkland Blvd.
Mayfield, Hts., Ohio 44124

Mr. David J. D'Antoni, President
Ashland Chemical Company
P.O. Box 2219
Columbus, Ohio 43216

Counsel: Stephen w. Leermakers, Esq., Senior Litigation Counsel
Ashland Chemical Company
5200 Blazer Parkway
Dublin, Ohio 43017

844650004

TIERRA-B-001211



2
Mr. Maurice C. Workman, President
Benjamin Moore & Co.
5! Chestnut Ridge Road
Montvale, New Jersey 07645

Counsel: Arthur A. Schulcz, Sr., Esq.
The Harker Firm
suite 740
5301 Wisconsin Avenue, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20015

Brian C. Kelly, Esq.
Chris-Craft Industries, Inc.
600 Madison Avenue
New York, New York 10022
Counsel: Peter Simshauser, Esq.

Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flam
300 South Grand Avenue
Los Angeles, California 90071-3144

Mr. Edgar S. Woolward, Jr., Chairman
E.I. du Pont de Nemours and Company
1007 Market Street
Wilmington, Delaware 19898

Counsel: Bernard J. Reilly, Esq., Corporate Counsel
E.I. du Pont de Nemours and Company

Mr. Richard J. Mahoney, Chief Executive
Monsanto Company
800 N. Lindbergh Blvd.
st. Louis, Missouri 63167

Counsel: Peter H. Smith, Esq., Assistant Environmental Counsel
Monsanto Company

Mr. Robert D. McNeeley, President
Reilly Industries, Inc.
1510 Market Square Center
151 North Delaware Street
Indianapolis, IN 46204

Counsel: Jacqueline A. Simmons, Esq.
Reilly Industries, Inc.

844650005
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Mr. John G. Breen, Chairman of the Board
The Sherwin-Williams Company
101 Prospect Avenue, N.W.
Cleveland, Ohio 44115-1075

Counsel: Donald J. MCConnell, Esq., Environmental Counsel
The Sherwin-Williams Company

844650006
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
REGION 2

290 BROADWAY
NEW YORK. NY 10007·1868

SEP 1 5 2003

GENERAL NOTICE LETTER
CERTIFIED MAIL-RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Joseph Gabriel
Vice President of Operations
360 North Pastoria Environmental Corp.
1100 Ridgeway Avenue
Rochester, New York 14652-6280

RE: piamond ~lkali Superfund ~ite .... _ __ .
Notice of Potential Liability for
Response Actions in the Lower Passaic River, New Jersey

Dear Mr. Gabriel:

The United States Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA'J is charged with responding to the
release andlor threatened release of hazardous substances, pollutants, and contaminants into the
environment and with enforcement responsibilities under the Comprehensive Environmental
Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980, as amended ("CERCLA'J, 42 V.S.C. §9601
et~.

You received a letter from EPA, dated July 18, 1996, notifying 360 North Pastoria
Environmental Corp. ("360 North Pastoria") ofits potential liability relating to the Passaic River
Study Area, which is part of the Diamond Alkali Superfund Site ("Site") located inNewark, New
Jersey, pursuant to Section 107(a) ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.C. §9607(a). Under CERCLA,
potentially responsible parties ("PRPs") include current and past owners of a facility, as well as
persons who arranged for the disposal or treatment of hazardous substances at the Site, or the
transport of hazardous substances to the Site. Accordingly, EPA is seeking your cooperation in
an innovative approach to environmental remediation and restoration activities for the Lower
Passaic River.

EPA has documented the release or threatened release of hazardous substances, pollutants and
contaminants into the six-mile stretch of the river, known as the Passaic River Study Area, which
is part of the Site located in Newark, New Jersey. Based on the results of previous CERCLA
remedial investigation activities and other environmental studies, including a reconnaissance
study of the Passaic River conducted by the United States Army Corps of Engineers ("USACE'J,
EPA has further determined that contaminated sediments and other potential sources of
hazardous substances exist along the entire 17-mile tidal reach of the Lower Passaic River. Thus,
EPA has decided to expand the Study to include the areal extent of contamination to which
hazardous substances from the six~mile stretch were transported; and those sources from which

Internet Address IURL). hltp:t~.epa.gov
Recyc:ledlRecyc_t>la • Printed with V*lIatabie 011Sued Inks on Recycled Paper 'Minimum 5O'1i PostconaurMr content)
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hazardous substances outside the six-mile stretch have come to be located within the expanded
Study Area.

In recognition of our complementary roles. EPA has fonned a partnership with USACE and the
New Jersey Department of Transportation-Office of Maritime Resources (UOMR") ["the
governmental partnership"] to identify and to address water quality improvement. remediation.
and restoration opportunities in the 17-mile Lower Passaic River. This governmental partnership
is consistent with a national Memorandum of Understanding ("MOV'') executed on July 2,2002
between EPA and USACE. This MOU calls for the two agencies to cooperate. where
appropriate, on environmental remediation and restoration of degraded urban rivers and related
resources. In agreeing to implement the MOV. the EPA and USACE will use their existing
statutory and regulatory authorities in a coordinated manner. These authorities for EPA include
CERCLA, the Clean Water Act, and the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. The
USACE's authority stems from the Water Resources Development Act (UWRDA''). WRDA
allows for the use of some:.federal funds to pay for a pqrtion of the USACE's approved projects
related to ecosystem restoration. .

For the first phase of the Lower Passaic River Project. the governmental partners are proceeding
with an integrated five- to seven-year study to determine an appropriate remediation and
restoration plan for the river. The study will involve investigation of environmental impacts and
pollution sources, as well as evaluation of alternative actions. leading to recommendations of
environmental remediation and restoration activities. This study is being conducted by EPA
under the authority of CERCLA and by USACE and OMR, as local sponsor. under WRDA.
EPA, USACE, and OMR are coordinating with the New Jersey Department of Environmental
Protection and the Federal and State Natural Resource Trustee agencies. EPA, USACE. and
OMR estimate that the study will cost approximately $20 million, with the WRDA and CERCLA
shares being about $10 million each. EPA will be seeking its share of the costs of the study from
PRPs.

Based on information that EPA evaluated during the course of its investigation of the Site. EPA
believes that hazardous substances were being released from the former Thomasett
Colors/Sterling facility located at 120 Lister Avenue in Newark, New Jersey, into the Lower
Passaic River. Hazardous substances, pollutants and contaminants released from the facility into
the river present a risk to the environment and the humans who may ingest contaminated fish and
shellfish. Therefore, 360 North Pastoria may be potentially liable for response costS which the
government may incur relating to the study of the Lower Passaic River. In addition, responsible
parties may be required to pay damages for injury to, destruction of. or loss of natural resources.
including the cost of assessing such damages.

Enclosed is a list of the other PRPs who have received Notice letters. This list represents EPA's
findings on the identities ofPRPs to date. We are continuing efforts to locate additional PRPs
who have released hazardous substances, directly or indirectly. into the Passaic River. Inclusion
on, or exclusion from, the list does not constitute a final determination by EPA concerning the
liability of any party for the release or threat of release of hazardous substances at the Site. Be
advised that notice of your potential liability at the Site is being forwarded to all parties on this

851530002
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list.

We request that you consider becoming a "cooperating party" for the Lower Passaic River
Project. As a cooperating party, you, along with many-other such parties, will be expected to
fund EPA's share of the study costs. Upon completion of the study, it is expected that CERCLA
and WRDA processes will be used to identify the required remediation and restoration programs,
as well as the assignment of remediation and restoration costs. At this time, the commitments of
the cooperating parties will apply only to the study. For those who choose not to cooperate, EPA
may apply the CERCLA enforcement process, pursuant to Sections 106 (a) and 107(a) of
CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. §9606(a) and §9607(a) and other laws.

Pursuant to CERCLA Section 113(k), EPA must establish an administrative record that contains
documents that form the basis ofEPA's decision on the selection of a response action for a site.
The administrative record files, which contain the documents related to the response action
selected for this Site are located at EPA's Region 2 office (290 Broadway, New York) on the 18th

. floor .. You maycaUthe-Records Center at (212) 637-4308 to make an: appointment to view the
administrative record for the Lower Passaic River Project.

EPA will be holding a meeting with all PRPs on October 29, 2003 at 10:00 AM in Conference
Room 27A at the Region 2 office. At that meeting, EPA will provide information about the
actions taken to date in the Lower Passaic River, as well as plans for future activities. After the
presentation, PRPs will be given the opportunity to caucus, and EPA will return to answer any
questions that might be generated during the private session. Please be advised that due to
increased security measures, all visitors need to be registered with the security desk in the lobby
in order to gain entry to the office. In order to ensure a smooth arrival, you will need to provide
EPA with a list of attendees no later than October 15, 2003.

EPA recommends that the cooperating parties select a steering committee to represent the
group's interest as soon as possible, since EPA expects a funding commitment for the financing
of the CERCLA share of the $20 million study by mid-November 2003. Ifyou wish to discuss
this further, please contact Ms. Alice Yeh, Remedial Project Manager, at (212) 637-4427 or Ms.
Kedari Reddy, Assistant Regional Counsel, at (212) 637-3106. Please note that all
communications from attorneys should be directed to Ms. Reddy.

Sincerely yours,

George Pavlou, Director
Emergency and Remedial Response Division

Enclosure

cc: Philip Sellinger, Esq.
Sills Cummis Zuckerman
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PRPs in Receipt of Notice Letters:

r Legal Counsel J...~
J. Roger Hid Paul W. Herring, Esq.
President and Chairman of the Board Andrews & Kurth L.L.P.
Occidental Chemical Co. 1717 Main Street, Suite 3700
Occidental Tower Dallas, Texas 75201
5005 LBJ Freeway
Dallas, Texas 75244 _.-

Joseph Gabriel Philip Sellinger, Esq.
Vice President of Operations Sills Cununis Zuckerman
360 North Pastoria Enviromnental Corp. One Riverfront Plaza
1100 Ridgeway Avenue Newark, NJ 07102
Rochester, New York 14652·6280

Robert Ball, President I Lawrence Salibra, Esq.
Alcan Aluminum Corporation Alcan Aluminum Corporation
100 Erieview Plaza, 29th Floor 6060 Parkland Blvd.
Cleveland, Ohio 44114 Mayfield Hts., OH 44124

Mark Epstein, President Eric Aronson, Esq.
Alden Leeds Inc. Whitman Breed Abbott & Morgan
55 Jacobus Ave. One Gateway Center
Kearny, New Jersey 07032 Newark, NJ 07102

Alan Bendelius, President Fredi L. Pearlmutter, Esq.
Alliance Chemical, Inc. Cooper, Rose & English, LLP
Linden Avenue 480 Morris Avenue
Ridgefield, New Jersey 07657 Summit, New Jersey 07901·1527

William Gentner, President A. Christian WorrelllIl, Esq.
The Andrew Jergens Co. Head & Ritchey, LLP
2535 Spring Grove Ave. 1900 Fifth Third Center
Cincinnati, Ohio 45214 511 Walnut Street

Cincinnati, OH 45202

Gary Cappeline, President Stephen Leermakers, Esq.
Ashland Specialty Chemical Co. Ashland Specialty Chemical Co.
5200 Blazer Parkway 5200 Blazer Parkway
Dublin, Ohio 43017 Dublin, OH 43017

!

Klaus Peter Loebbe, President Nan Bernardo, Esq. and Nancy Lake Martin, Esq.
BASF Corporation BASF Corporation
3000 Continental Drive North 3000 Continental Drive North
Mount Olive, New Jersey 07828 Mount Olive, NJ 07828

851530004
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Joseph Akers, Vice President Gerard Hickel, Esq.

Bayer Corporation Bayer Corporation

100 Bayer Road 100 Bayer Road
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15205-9741 Pittsburgh, PA 15205·9741

Yvan Dupay, President Arthur Schulz, Esq.
Benjamin Moore & Co. Envirorunental Counsel
51 Chestnut Ridge Road i 4910 Massachusetts Ave., N.W. Suite 221

Montvale, New Jersey 07645 I Washington, DC 20016
_..

Alberto Celleri, President Jim Giannotti
Chemical Compounds Inc. Chemical Compounds Inc.

10 Baldwin Court 29-75 Riverside Avenue
Roseland, New Jersey 07086 Newark, NJ 07104

President Brian Kelly, Esq.
Chris-Craft Industries, Inc. Chris-Craft Industries, Inc.
767 Fifth Avenue, 46th Floor 767 Fifth Avenue, 46th Floor
New York, New York 10153 New York, NY 10153

John Guffey, President John R. Mayo, Esq.
Coltec Industries, Inc. Coltec Industries, Inc.
3 Coliseum Centre 430 Park Avenue
2550 West Tyvola Road New York, NY 10022
Charlotte, North Carolina 28217

Roger Marcus, President Russell Hewit, Esq.
Congoleum Corporation Dughi & Hewit
3705 Quakerbridge Road 340 North Avenue
Mercerville, New Jersey 08619 Cranford, NJ 07016

Martin Benante, Chairman James Maher, Esq.
Curtiss- Wright Corp. Curtiss- Wright Corp.
4 Becker Farm Road 4 Becker Farm Road
Roseland, New Jersey 07068 Roseland, NJ 07068

Antonio Perez, President Elliot Stem, Esq.
Eastman Kodak Company Eastman Kodak Company
343 State Street 343 State Street
Rochester, New York 14650 Rochester, NY 14650

Edgar Woolard, Chairman Bernard J. Reilly, Esq.
E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co. Corporate Counsel
1007 Market Street E.!. du Pont de Nemours & Co.
Wilmington, Delaware 19898 1007 Market Street

Wilmington. DE 19898 I

851530005
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David Weisman, CEO Jeffrey Schwartz, Esq.

Elan Chemical Company Sarber Schlesinger Satz & Goldstein

268 Doremus Ave. One Gateway Center
Newarlr..,New Jersey 07105 Newark, NJ 07102

Al Reisch, President None

IE M Sergeant Pulp & Chemical Co. Inc.
6 Chelsea Road
Clifton, New Jersey 07102

Mark Tucker, Esq. Kenneth Mack, Esq.
Essex Chemical Corp. Fox, Rothschild, O'Brien & Frankel

2030WMDC Princeton Pike Corp.Center
Midland, Michigan 48674 997 Lenox Drive, Building 3

Lawrenceville, NJ 08648

Todd Walker, President John Ix, Esq.
Fairmount Chemical Co. Inc. Porzio Bromberg & Newman

117 Blanchard St. 163 Madison Ave.
Newark, New Jersey 07105 Morristown, NJ 07962

Bradley BuecWer, President Robert M. Becker, Esq.
Franklin-Burlington Plastics Inc. Kraemer, Burns, Mytelka & Lovell, P.A.

113 Passaic Ave. 675 Morris Ave.
Kearny, New Jersey 07032 Springfield, NJ 07081

Henry Benz, President Anne Conley-Pitchell, Esq.
Hoescht Celanese Chemicals, Inc. Hoescht Celanese Corp.

Route 202-206 Route 202-206
P.O.Box 2500 P.O.Box 2500
Somerville, New Jersey 08876 Somerville, NJ 08876

Francine Rothschild, President None
Kearny Smelting & Refining
936 Harrison Ave #5
Kearny, New Jersey 07032

Henry Schact, CEO Ralph McMurry, Esq.
Lucent Technologies, Inc. Hill, Betts & Nash LLP
600 Mountain Avenue 1 Riverfront Plaza, Suite 327
Murray Hill, New Jersey 07974 Newark, NJ 07102-5401

Richard Meelia, President Patricia Duft, Esq. I
I

Mallinckrodt, Inc. Mallinckrodt, Inc.
675 McDonnell Blvd. 675 McDonnell Blvd.
Hazelwood, Missouri 63042 Hazelwood, MO 63042
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Richard Mahoney, CEO L.William Higley, Esq.
Monsanto Company Monsanto Company
800 N. Lindbergh Blvd. 800 N. Lindbergh Blvd.
St. Louis, Missouri 63167 St. Louis, MO 63167

Joseph Galli, President Peter Schultz, Director
Newell Rubbermaid, Inc. Environmental Affairs
29 E. Stephenson St. Newell Co.
Freeport, Illinois 61032 4000 Aubwn St.

. Rockford, IL 611 0 1 - -

Jean-Pierre van Rooy, President Sarah Hurley, Esq.
Otis Elevator Company Robinson & Cole LLP
North American Operations 695 East Main Street
10 Farm Springs Road Stamford, CT 06904-2305
Farmington, Connecticut 06032

Richard Ablon, President J.L. Effinger, Esq.
Ogden Corporation Ogden Corporation
Two Pennsylvania Pl~ 25th Floor Two Pennsylvania Plaza, 251h Floor
New York, New York 10121 New York, NY 10121

Henry McKinnell, Chairman Michael McThomas, Esq.
Pfizer Inc. Pfizer Inc.
235 E. 42nd 8t. 235 E. 42nd 8t.
New York, New York 10017 New York, NY 10017

Raymond LeBoeuf, President Joseph Karas. Esq.
PPG Industries, Inc. PPG Industries. Inc.
One PPG Place One PPG Place
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15272 Pittsburgh, PA 15272

Lawrence Codey, President Hugh Mahoney, Esq.
PSE&GCo. PSE&GCo.
P.O. Box 570 P.O. Box 570
Newark. New Jersey 07101.Q570 Newark, NJ 07101

Phillip D. Ashkettle, President Adam S. Walters, Esq.
Reichhold Chemicals, Inc. Phillips, Lytle, Hitchcock. Blaine & Huber
P.O. Box 13582 3400 Marine Midland Center
Research Triangle Park, North Carolina Buffalo, NY 14203
27709

Robert McNeeley, President Paul Rivers, Director
Reilly Industries, Inc. Corporate Environmental Affairs
1510 Market Square Center Reilly Industries, Inc.
151 North Delaware Street 1500 S. Tibbs Avenue
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204 Indianapolis, IN 46242
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Robert Finn, President Howard Myers, Esq.

RSR Corporation RSR Corporation
2777 Stemmons Freeway, Suite 1800 2777 Stemmons Freeway, Suite 1800

Dallas, Texas 75207 Dallas, TX 75207

Christopher Connor, CEO Donald McConnell, Esq.

The Sherwin-Williams Company The Sherwin-Williams Co.

101 Prospect Avenue, N.W. 101 Prospect Ave., N.W.

C!eve!a.nd, Ohio 44115-1075 Cleveland, OH 44115

George Barrett, President Kirsten E. Bauer, Esq.
Teva Pharmaceuticals USA Inc. Teva North America

1090 Horsham Road 1090 Horsham Road
North Wales, Pennsylvania 19454 North Wales, PA 19454

Robert Senior, President Robert DiLascio, Esq.
Three County Volkswagen 30 Park Avenue, Suite 101

701 Riverside Ave. Lyndhurst, NJ 07071
Lyndhurst, New Jersey 07071

Michael Jordan, President Roger Willis, Esq.
Westinghouse Electric Corp. Westinghouse Electric Corp.

11 Stanwix Street 11 Stanwix Street
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15222 Pittsburgh, PA 15222

Isaac Weinberger, President r- jWiggins Plastics Inc.
S47 Maitland Ave.
Teaneck, New Jersey 07666

851530008
---~----- -_._---~_.- ....._-- ----_ .._-_.-

TIERRA-B-001221



-

lUG 0 6 1996

GlNERAL HOTICE LETTER:~:rLEGAL MATTER____ 8S MAIL - RETURN RECEIPT RBOUBSTID

Mr. George M. Fisher, President
Eastman Kodak Company
343 State Street
Rochester, New York 14650
Re: Notice of Potential Liability of Sterling Winthrop for

Response actions in the Passaic River Stuqy Area
Diamond Alkali Superfund Site, Newark, New Jersey

Dear Sir:
The United States Environmental Protection Agency (IIEPAII)is
charged with responding to the release and/or threatened release
of hazardous substances, pollutants, and contaminants into the
environment and with enforcement responsibilities under the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability
Act of 1980 (~CERCLAd), as amended, 42 U.S.C. §9601 ~ ~.
EPA has documented the release or threatened release of hazardous
substances, pollutants and contaminants into the Passaic River
Study Area which is part of the Diamond Alkali Superfund Site
("Site") located in Newark, New Jersey. By this letter, EPA has
determined that Sterling Winthrop, Inc. ("Sterling"), as the
owner of the former Thomasset Colors, Inc. located at 120 Lister
Avenue, may be potentially liable relating to the Site pursuant
to Section 107 of CERCLA. EPA is notifying Eastman Kodak Company
of Sterling's potential liability as the owner of 360 North
Pastoria Environmental Corporation (a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Eastman Kodak) which handles Sterling's liabilities.
Sediment in the Passaic River contain numerous hazardous
substances, pollutants and contaminants. Investigations
undertaken by EPA indicated that hazardous materials were being
released from the former Thomasset facility located at 120 Lister
Avenue in Newark, New Jersey, into the Passaic River Study Area.
Hazardous substances, pollutants and contaminants released from
the facility into the Passaic River Study Area present a risk to
the environment and the humans who may ingest contaminated fish
and shellfish. Therefore, Sterling may be potentially liable for
all response costs which the government may incur relating to the
Passaic River Study Area.
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Under Sections l06(a) and l07(a) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. §9606(a)
and §9607(a) and other laws, potentially responsible parties
("PRPs") may be obligated to implement response actions deemed
necessary by EPA to protect public health, welfare or the
environment, and may be liable for all costs incurred by the
government in responding to any release or threatened release at
the Site. If response actions are performed by EPA rather than
by the PRPs, those PRPs may be sUbject to legal action pursuant
to Section l07(a} of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. §9607(a), to recover
public funds expended by EPA in response to the release and
threatened release of hazardous materials at the Site. Such
actions and costs may include, but need not be limited to,
expenditures for conducting a Remedial Investigation/Feasibility
Study ("RI/FS"), a Remedial Design/Remedial Action, and other
investigation, planning, response, oversight, and enforcement
activities. In addition, responsible parties may be required to
pay damages for injury to, destruction of, or loss of natural
resources, including the cost of assessing such damages.

While EPA has the discretionary authority to invoke special
notice procedures, EPA hereby notifies you that it will not
utilize the special notice procedures contained in Section 122(e)
of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. §9622(e). EPA has concluded that use of the
special notice procedures in Section 122(e) of CERCLA would delay
the implementation of the RI/FS which is currently being
performed at the Site to determine the extent of contamination
and to evaluate possible actions to mitigate any adverse effects.
EPA will determine at a subsequent time whether additional
measures are required to mitigate releases from the Site in order
to protect the public health, welfare, and the environment. The
decision not to use the special notice procedures does not
preclude you from entering into discussions with EPA regarding
your participation in activities at the Site.

By this letter, EPA encourages you, as a PRP, to voluntarily
participate in the EPA-approved activities underway at the
Passaic River Study Area in conjunction with other PRPs. At the
present time, an RI/FS is being performed at the Study Area under
an Administrative Consent Order with the Occidental Chemical
Corporation (MOCC·). The actual work is being performed by Maxus
Energy Corporation (NMaxus·), pursuant to certain contractual
arrangements with OCC, and should be contacted for information
pertaining to the work being done. Maxus can be contacted at the
addresses listed in the Attachment to this letter. Other PRPs
who have received Notice letters are also listed in the
Attachment. Be advised that notice of your potential liability
at the Site is being forwarded to OCC by EPA.

847500002
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EPA requests your cooperation in this matter. If you are
interested in participating in the ongoing response action you
should notify EPA of your intentions to join with OCC.
Notification should be in writing and should be delivered to EPA
no later that fourteen (14) days after the date that you receive
this letter. Your letter should be sent to:

Lance R. Richman, P.G.
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Emergency and Remedial Response Division
290 Broadway, Floor 19

New York, NY 10007-1866,
with a copy to Ms. Amelia Wagner, Esq., of the Office of Regional
Counsel, Floor 17 at the same street address.
If EPA does not receive a written response from you in the time
specified above, EPA will assume that you voluntarily decline to
participate in any of the response actions taking place at the
Site. EPA reserves the right to pursue its available enforcement
options with regard to the site.
If you wish to discuss this matter further, please contact
Mr. Lance R. Richman, P.G., of my staff at (212) 637-4409 or
Ms. Wagner at (212) 637-3141. Please note that all
communications from attorneys should be directed to Ms. Wagner.
Sincerely yours,

Richard Caspe, Director
Emergency and Remedial Response Division

Attachments
CC: Elliott Stern, Esq., Counsel

Eastman Kodak Company

Joseph G. Gabriel
360 North Pastoria Environmental Corporation
Ms. Carol Dinkins, Esq.
Vinson & Elkins, L.L.P.
Mr. Richard P. McNutt
Maxus Energy Corporation

847500003
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ATTACHMENT

Contact for Maxus Energy Corporation:
Mr. Richard P. McNutt
Maxus Energy Corporation
1015 Belleville Turnpike
Kearny, New Jersey 07032
Counsel: Ms. Carol E. Dinkins, Esq.

Vinson & Elkins, L.L.P.
2300 First City Tower
1001 Fannin Street
Houston, Texas 77002-6760

PRPs in receipt of Notice Letters:
Mr. J. Roger Hirl
President and Chairman of the Board
Occidental Chemical Company
Occidental Tower
5005 LBJ Freeway
Dallas, Texas 75244

Mr. Robert L. Ball, President
Alcan Aluminum Corporation
100 Erieview Plaza, 29th Floor
Cleveland, Ohio 44114

Counsel: Lawrence A. Salibra II, Esq., Senior Counsel
Alcan Aluminum Corporation
6060 Parkland Blvd.
Mayfield, Hts., Ohio 44124

Mr. David J. D'Antoni, President
Ashland Chemical Company
P.O. Box 2219
Columbus, Ohio 43216

Counsel: Stephen W. Leermakers, Esq., Senior Litigation Counsel
Ashland Chemical Company
5200 Blazer Parkway
Dublin, Ohio 43017

1
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President
Bayer Corporation
100 Bayer Road
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15205-9741
Counsel: Gerard F. Hickel, Esq.

Counsel, Corporate Health, Environment and Safety
Bayer Corporation

Mr. Maurice C. Workman, President
Benjamin Moore & Co.
51 Chestnut Ridge Road
Montvale, New Jersey 07645

Counsel: John T. Rafferty, Esq., General Counsel
Benjamin Moore & Co.

Brian C. Kelly, Esq.
Chris-Craft Industries, Inc.
600 Madison Avenue
New York, New York 10022

Counsel: Peter Simshauser, Esq.
Skadden, Arpa, Slate, Meagher & Flom
300 South Grand Avenue
Los Angeles, California 90071-3144

Mr. Edgar S. Woolward, Jr., Chairman
E.l. du Pont de Nemours and Company
1007 Market Street
Wilmington, Delaware 19898

Counsel: Bernard J. Reilly, Esq., Corporate Counsel
E.I. du Pont de Nemours and Company

Mr. George M. Fisher, President
Eastman Kodak Company
343 State Street
Rochester, New York 14650

Mr. Joseph G. Gabriel, Vice President
360 North Pastoria Environmental Corporation
(a wholly-owned subsidiary of Eastman Kodak Company)
1100 Ridgeway Avenue
Rochester, New York 14652-6280
Counsel: Elliot Stern, Esq., Counsel

Eastman Kodak Company

2
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Mr. Richard J. Mahoney, Chief Executive
Monsanto Company
800 N. Lindbergh Blvd.
St. Louis, Missouri 63167

Counsel: Peter H. Smith, Esq., Assistant Environmental Counsel
Monsanto Company

Mr. Robert D. McNeeley, President
Reilly Industries, Inc.
1510 Market Square Center
151 North Delaware Street
Indianapolis, IN 46204

Counsel: Jacqueline A. Simmons, Esq.
Reilly Industries, Inc.

Mr. John G. Breen, Chairman of the Board
The Sherwin-Williams Company
101 Prospect Avenue, N.W.
Cleveland, Ohio 44115-1075

Counsel: Donald J. McConnell, Esq., Environmental Counsel
The Sherwin-Williams Company

3
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
REGION 2

290 BROADWAY
NEW YORK, NY 10007-1866

SEP 1 5 2003

GENERAL NOTICE LETTER
CERTIFIED MAIL-RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Antonio Perez, President
Eastman Kodak Company
343 State Street
Rochester, New York 14650

RE: Diamond Alkali Superfund Site
Notice of Potential Liability for
Response Actions in the Lower Passaic River, New Jersey

Dear Mr. Perez:

The United States Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA'') is charged with responding to the
release andioT threatened release of hazardous substances, pollutants, and contaminants into the
environment and with enforcement responsibilities under the Comprehensive Environmental
Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980, ~ amended ("CERCLN'), 42 U.S.C. §9601
et~.

You received a letter from EPA, dated August 6, 1996, notifying Eastman Kodak Company
("Eastman Kodak'') of its potential liability relating to the Passaic River Study Area, which is
part of the Diamond Alkali Superfund Site ("Site'') located in Newark, New Jersey, pursuant to
Section 107(a) ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.C. §9607(a). Under CERCLA, potentially responsible
parties ("PRPs") include current and past owners of a facility, as well as persons who arranged
for the disposal or treatment of hazardous substances at the Site, or the transport of hazardous
substances to the Site. Accordingly, EPA is seeking your cooperation in an innovative approach
to environmental remediation and restoration activities for the Lower Passaic River.

EPA has documented the release or threatened release of hazardous substances, pollutants and
contaminants into the six-mile stretch of the river, known as the Passaic River Study Area, which
is part of the Site located in Newark, New Jersey. Based on the results of previous CERCLA
remedial investigation activities and other environmental studies, including a reconnaissance
study of the Passaic River conducted by the United States Army Corps of Engineers ("USACE"),
EPA has further determined that contaminated sediments and other potential sources of
hazardous substances exist along the entire 17-mile tidal reach of the Lower Passaic River. Thus,
EPA has decided to expand the Study to include the areal extent of contamination to which
hazardous substances from the six-mile stretch were transported; and those sources from which
hazardous substances outside the six-mile stretch have come to be located within the expanded

Internet Address (URL). http://www.epa.gov
ReeycledlRecyc:lable • Printed wtth V-tlmb1e 011Sued Inks on Recycled Paper IMlnlmum 50% PoA:onsurner conlIont)
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Study Area.

In recognition of our complementary roles, EPA has formed a partnership with USACE and the
New Jersey Department of Transportation-Office of Maritime Resources ("OMR'') [''the
governmental partnership"] to identifY and to address 'water quality improvement, remediation,
and restoration opportunities in the 17·mile Lower Passaic River. This governmental partnership
is consistent with a national Memorandum of Understanding ("MOll") executed on July 2, 2002
between EPA and USACE. This MOU calls for the two agencies to cooperate, where
appropriate, on environmental remediation and restoration of degraded urban rivers and related
resources. In agreeing to implement the MOU, the EPA and USACE will use their existing
statutory and regulatory authorities in a coordinated manner. These authorities for EPA include
CERCLA, the Clean Water Act, and the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act The
USACE's authority stems from the Water Resources Development Act ("WRDAtt

). WRDA
allows for the use of some federal funds to pay for a portion of the USACE's approved projects
related to ecosystem restoration.

For the first phase of the Lower Passaic River Project, the govenunental partners are proceeding
with an integrated five- to seven-year study to determine an appropriate remediation and
restoration plan for the river. The study will involve investigation of environmental impacts and
pollution sources, as well as evaluation of alternative actions, leading to recommendations of
environmental remediation and restoration activities. This study is being conducted by EPA
under the authority of CERCLA and by USACE and OMR, as local sponsor, under WRDA.
EPA, USACE, and OMR are coordinating with the New Jersey Department of Environmental
Protection and the Federal and State Natural Resource Trustee agencies. EPA, USACE, and
OMR estimate that the study will cost approximately $20 million, with the WRDA and CERCLA
shares being about $10 million each. EPA will be seeking its share of the costs of the study from
PRPs.

Based on information that EPA evaluated during the course of its investigation of the Site, EPA
believes that hazardous substances were being released from the former Thomasett
Colors/Sterling facility located at 120 Lister Avenue in Newark, New Jersey, into the Lower
Passaic River. Hazardous substances, pollutants and contaminants released from the facility into
the river present a risk to the environment and the humans who may ingest contaminated fish and
shellfish. Therefore, Eastman Kodak may be potentially liable for response costs which the
government may incur relating to the study of the Lower Passaic River. In addition, responsible
parties may be required to pay damages for injury to, destruction of, or loss of natural resources,
including the cost of assessing such damages.

Enclosed is a list of the other PRPs who have received Notice letters. This list represents EPA's
findings on the identities ofPRPs to date. We are continuing efforts to locate additional PRPs
who have released hazardous substances, directly or indirectly, into the Passaic River. Inclusion
on, or exclusion from, the list does not constitute a final determination by EPA concerning the
liability of any party for the release or threat of release of hazardous substances at the Site. Be
advised that notice of your potential liability at the Site is being fOlWarded to all parties on this
list.

851690002
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We request that you consider becoming a "cooperating party" for the Lower Passaic River
Project. As a cooperating party, you, along with many other such parties, will be expected to
fund EPA's share of the study costs. Upon completion of the study, it is expected that CERCLA
and WRDA processes will be used to identifY the required remediation and restoration programs,
as well as the assignment of remediation and restoration costs. At this time, the commitments of
the cooperating parties will apply only to the study. For those who choose not to cooperate, EPA
may apply the CERCLA enforcement process, pursuant to Sections 106 (a) and 107(a) of
CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. §9606(a) and §9607(a) and other laws.

Pursuant to CERCLA Section lI3(k), EPA must establish an administrative record that contains
documents that form the basis of EPA's decision on the selection of a response action for a site.
The administrative record files, which contain the documents related to the response action
selected for this Site are located at EPA's Region 2 office (290 Broadway, New York) on the 18th

floor. You may call the Records Center at (212) 637-4308 to make an appointment to view the
administrative record for the Lower Passaic River Project.

EPA will be holding a meeting with all PRPs on October 29, 2003 at 10:00 AM in Conference
Room 27A at the Region 2 office. At that meeting, EPA will provide infonnation about the
actions taken to date in the Lower Passaic River, as well as plans for future activities. After the
presentation, PRPs will be given the opportunity to caucus, and EPA will return to answer any
questions that might be generated during the private session. Please be advised that due to
increased security measures, all visitors need to be registered with the security desk in the lobby
in order to gain entry to the office. In order to ensure a smooth arrival, you will need to provide
EPA with a list of attendees no later than October 15, 2003.

EPA recommends that the cooperating parties select a steering committee to represent the
group's interest as soon as possible, since EPA expects a funding conunitrnent for the financing
of the CERCLA share of the $20 million study by mid-November 2003. Ifyou wish to discuss
this further, please contact Ms. Alice Yeh, Remedial Project Manager, at (212) 637-4427 or Ms.
Kedari Reddy, Assistant Regional Counsel, at (212) 637-3106. Please note that all
conununications from attorneys should be directed to Ms. Reddy.

Sincerely yours,

George Pavlou, Director
Emergency and Remedial Response Division

Enclosure

cc: Elliot Stem, Esq.
Eastman Kodak Company

851690003
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PRPs in Receipt of Notice Letters:

il Legal Counsel

J. Roger Hirl I Paul W. Herring, Esq.
President and Chairman of the Board Andrews & Kurth LLP.
Occidental Chemical Co. ! 1717 Main Street. Suite 3700
Occidental Tower Dallas, Texas 75201
5005 LBJ Freeway
Dallas, Texas 75244

Joseph Gabriel Philip Sellinger, Esq.
Vice President of Operations Sills Cummis Zuckerman
360 North Pastoria Environmental Corp. One Riverfront Plaza
1100 Ridgeway Avenue Newark. NJ 07102
Rochester, New York 14652-6280

Robert Ball, President Lawrence Salibra. Esq.
Alcan Aluminum Corporation Alcan Aluminum Corporation
100 Erieview Plaza, 29th Floor 6060 Parkland Blvd.
Cleveland, Ohio 44114 Mayfield Hts., OR 44124

Mark Epstein, President Eric Aronson, Esq.
Alden Leeds Inc. Whitman Breed Abbott & Morgan
55 Jacobus Ave. One Gateway Center
Kearny, New Jersey 07032 Newark, NJ 07102

Alan Bendelius, President Fredi L. Pearlmutter, Esq.
Alliance Chemical, Inc. Cooper, Rose & English, LLP
Linden Avenue 480 Morris Avenue
Ridgefield, New Jersey 07657 Summit, New Jersey 07901-1527

William Gentner, President A. Christian Worrell III, Esq.
The Andrew Jergens Co. Head & Ritchey, LLP
2535 Spring Grove Ave. 1900 Fifth Third Center
Cincinnati, Ohio 45214 511 Walnut Street

Cincinnati, OH 45202
-_._-

Gary Cappeline, President Stephen Leermakers, Esq.
Ashland Specialty Chemical Co. Ashland Specialty Chemical Co.
5200 Blazer Parkway 5200 Blazer Parkway
Dublin, Ohio 43017 Dublin, OH 43017

Klaus Peter Loebbe, President Nan Bernardo, Esq. and Nancy Lake Martin, Esq.
BASF Corporation BASF Corporation
3000 Continental Drive North 3000 Continental Drive North
Mount Olive, New Jersey 07828 MOWltOlive, NJ 07828

851690004
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r Joseph Akers, Vice President Gerard Hickel, Esq.
Bayer Corporation Bayer Corporation
100 Bayer Road 100 Bayer Road
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15205-9741 Pittsburgh, PA 15205·9141

Yvan Dupay, President Arthur Schulz, Esq.
Benjamin Moore & Co. Environmental Counsel
51 Chestnut Ridge Road 4910 Massachusetts Ave., N.W. Suite 221
Montvale, New Jersey 07645 Washington, DC 20016

Alberto Celleri, President Jim Giannotti
Chemical Compounds Inc. Chemical Compounds Inc.
10 Baldwin Court 29-15 Riverside Avenue
Roseland, New Jersey 07086 Newark, NJ 07104

President Brian Kelly, Esq.
Chris-Craft Industries, Inc. Chris-Craft Industries, Inc.
767 Fifth Avenue, 46th Floor 767 Fifth Avenue, 46th Floor
New York, New York 10153 New York, NY 10153

John Guffey, President John R. Mayo, Esq.
Coltec Industries, Inc. Coltec Industries, Inc.
3 Coliseum Centre 430 Park Avenue
2550 West Tyvola Road New York, NY 10022
Charlotte, North Carolina 28217

Roger Marcus, President Russell Hewit, Esq.
Congoleum Corporation Dughi & Hewit
3705 Quakerbridge Road 340 North Avenue
Mercerville, New Jersey 08619 Cranford, NJ 07016

Martin Benante, Chairman James Maher, Esq.
Curtiss· Wright Corp. Curtiss-Wright Corp.
4 Becker Farm Road 4 Becker Fann Road
Roseland, New Jersey 07068 Roseland, NJ 07068

Antonio Perez, President Elliot Stem, Esq.
Eastman Kodak Company Eastman Kodak Company
343 State Street 343 State Street
Rochester, New York 14650 Rochester, NY 14650

Edgar Woolard, Chairman Bernard J. Reilly, Esq.
E.!. du Pont de Nemours & Co. Corporate Counsel
1007 Market Street E.!. du Pont de Nemours & Co.
Wilmington, Delaware 19898 1007 Market Street

Wilmington, DE 19898 II

851690005
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David Weisman. CEO Jeffrey Schwartz, Esq.
Elan Chemical Company Sarber Schlesinger Satz & Goldstein
268 Doremus Ave. One Gateway Center
Newark, New Jersey 07105 Newark, NJ 07102

Al Reisch, President None
E M Sergeant Pulp & Chemical Co. Inc.
6 Chelsea Road
Clifton, New Jersey 07102

Mark Tucker, Esq. Kenneth Mack, Esq.
Essex Chemical Corp. Fox, Rothschild, O'Brien & Frankel
2030WMDC Princeton Pike Corp. Center
Midland, Michigan 48674 997 Lenox Drive, Building 3

Lawrenceville, NJ 08648

Todd Walker, President John Ix, Esq.
FairmoWlt Chemical Co. Inc. Porzio Bromberg & Newman
117 Blanchard St. 163 Madison Ave.
Newark, New Jersey 07105 Morristown, NJ 07962

Bradley Buechler, President Robert M. Becker, Esq.
Franklin-Burlington Plastics Inc. Kraemer, Bums, Mytelka & Lovell, P.A.
113 Passaic Ave. 675 Morris Ave.
Kearny, New Jersey 07032 Springfield, NJ 07081

Henry Benz, President Anne Conley-Pitchell, Esq.
Hoescht Celanese Chemicals, Inc. Hoescht Celanese Corp.
Route 202-206 Route 202·206
P.O.Box 2500 P.O.Box 2500
Somerville, New Jersey 08876 Somerville, NJ 08876

Francine Rothschild, President None
Kearny Smelting & Refining
936 Harrison Ave #5
Kearny, New Jersey 07032

Henry Schact, CEO Ralph McMurry, Esq.
Lucent Technologies, Inc. Hill, Betts &Nash LLP
600 Mountain Avenue 1 Riverfront Plaza, Suite 327
Murray Hill, New Jersey 07974 Newark, NJ 07102-5401

Richard Meelia, President Patricia Duft, Esq.
Mallinckrodt, Inc. Mallinckrodt, Inc.
675 McDonnell Blvd. 675 McDonnell Blvd.
Hazelwood, Missouri 63042 Hazelwood, MO 63042

851690006
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Richard Mahoney, CEO L. William Higley, Esq.
Monsanto Company Monsanto Company
800 N. Lindbergh Blvd. 800 N. Lindbergh Blvd.
St. Louis, Missouri 63167 St. Louis, MO 63167

Joseph Galli, President Peter Schultz, Director
Newell Rubbermaid, Inc. Environmental Affairs
29 E. Stephenson St. Newell Co.
Freeport, Illinois 61032 4000 Auburn St.

Rockford, IL 61101

Jean-Pierre van Rooy, President Sarah Hurley, Esq.
Otis Elevator Company Robinson & Cole LLP
North American Operations 695 East Main Street
10 Farm Springs Road Stamford, CT 06904·2305
Farmington, Connecticut 06032

Richard Ablon, President J.L. Effmger, Esq.
Ogden Corporation Ogden Corporation
Two Pennsylvania Plaza, 251h Floor Two Pennsylvania Plaza. 251h Floor
New York, New York 10121 New York, NY 10121

Henry McKinnell, Chairman Michael McThomas, Esq.
Pfizer Inc. Pfizer Inc.
235 E. 42nd St. 235 E. 42nd St.
New York, New York 10017 New York, NY 10017

Raymond LeBoeuf, President Joseph Karas, Esq.
PPG Industries, Inc. PPG Industries, Inc.
One PPG Place One PPG Place
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15272 Pittsburgh. PA 15272

Lawrence Codey, President Hugh Mahoney, Esq.
PSE&GCo. PSE&GCo.
P.O. Box 570 P.O. Box 570
Newark, New Jersey 07101-0570 Newark, NJ 07101

Phillip D. Ashkettle, President Adam S. Walters, Esq.
Reichhold Chemicals, Inc. Phillips, Lytle, Hitchcock, Blaine & Huber
P.O. Box 13582 3400 Marine Midland Center
Research Triangle Park, North Carolina Buffalo, NY 14203
27709

Robert McNeeley, President Paul Rivers, Director
Reilly Industries, Inc. Corporate Environmental Affairs
1510 Market Square Center Reilly Industries, Inc.
151 North Delaware Street 1SOO S. Tibbs Avenue
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204 Indianapolis, IN 46242

851690007
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Robert Finn, President Howard Myers, Esq.
RSR Corporation RSR Corporation
2777 Stemmons Freeway, Suite 1800 2777 Stemmons Freeway, Suite 1800

Dallas, Texas 75207 Dallas, TX 75207

Christopher Connor, CEO Donald McCormell, Esq.
The Sherwin-Williams Company The Sherwin-Williams Co.
101 Prospect Avenue, N.W. 101 Prospect Ave., N.W.
Cleveland, Ohio 44115-1075 Cleveland, OR 44115

George Barrett, President Kirsten E. Bauer, Esq.
Teva Pharmaceuticals USA Inc. Teva North America
1090 Horsham Road 1090 Horsham Road
North Wales, Pennsylvania 19454 North Wales, PA 19454

Robert Senior, President Robert DiLascio, Esq.
Three County Volkswagen 30 Park Avenue, Suite 101
701 Riverside Ave. Lyndhurst, NJ 07071
Lyndhurst, New Jersey 07071

Michael Jordan, President Roger Willis, Esq.
Westinghouse Electric Corp. Westinghouse Electric Corp.
11 Stanwix Street 11 Stanwix Street
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15222 Pittsburgh, PA 15222

Isaac Weinberger, President None
Wiggins Plastics Inc.
547 Maitland Ave.
Teaneck, New Jersey 07666

851690008
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Al\TNUAL REPORT

Chief Engineer
S.A.LUBETK.IN

to the

PASSAIC VALLEY
SEWERAGE COMl\IISSIONERS

FOR TIlE YEAR
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Page 118
Violation' Elimination - Tenneco Chemicals, Inc. - (Continued)

It was the belief of Tenneco supervisors that the 15" line
belonged to Belleville and went through their property without
any connection to their system •

During May, this company blocked the passage way from their
plant site to the 16" storm sewer collecting the surface water
in the corner of their property. It is being collected in a
sump pit. They purchased a pump to transfer this water to the
sewer on July 28, 1971.

Under the circumstances the violation was considered elimi-
nated and the Commissioners' personnel contacted Belleville and
asked them to trace back the 15" sewer line to the intermittent
source of pollution, (see Violation Town of Belleville, page121).

Violation' Elimination - Thomasset Colors, Division of
Sterling Drug, Inc., 120 Lister Avenue, Newark, N.J.
August 18 to 20, 1971 (J. McLaughlin)

Mr. Lubetkin received a call from Mr. o. Clark, of the Envir-
onmental Protection concerning a telephone call about green in
the River at Newark.At Mr. Lubetkin' s instruction, Mr. Goldberg
investigated. He found a large amount of green flourescein dye
coming from the Lockwood Street Storm Sewer.

This was traced to the Thomasset Colors, where it was found
that a drum of the dye had spilled and flowed to the storm sewer.
Mr. Goldberg reported sloppy housekeeping and potential pollu-
tion through the Lockwood Street Sewer, each time the ground was
washed or drained.

Mr. Lubetkin contacted the City of Newark's Sewer Department
and visited the plant, together with Mr. Goldberg and Mr. Fleming
of the Passaic Valley Sewerage Commissioners, and Mr. Van Riper
and Mr. Altiero of the City of Newark on August 19, 1971. They
met Mr. Paul Thomasset and Mr. Tyron Schulze of Thomasset Colors
and pointed out the various points of sloppy housekeeping. Both
the Newark representatives and Mr. Lubetkin informed Thomasset
that any area which drains to a storm sewer must be kept clean.
This was confirmed in a letter from Mr. Lubetkin dated August 25,
1971.

Inspector McLaughlin reported that as of August 20, no further
evidence of pollution was indicated, and that the company was con-
tinuing a clean-up operation.
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T6rna9set Color Company'
120 Lister Avenue '" . '
Newark,'~ewue~8~Y 07102 ~ '

. . ,'. :.. . .:: .. ..
Attn:· ..I'£l:. J:,laul.'1'omasse:t;;i..Vice.P~est,den;t.: '
" '. ':'.': .,.,.' ~. '.. ' 0 ' • ; ~.,: " •• ,. • '. .. .' •

Dear Sir:

"

:.. .. " ..
....

' ..
" .' , .... Th'is','will confirm our' ci~~~~rsa:tio~'at :the tlJne' 'of:,my"visit (.
to your p:i.llnton August 19, ~197l.. ' .' .

:.:',':.... : " ~ ~9reerimater::lal in ·t.he,P~,ss'8,lcRiver, ,.cominq·'from the' '..
.',"LockwoodStreet St~rm Sewe'r,.~as ·traced back' to your company;'"
Purthe~ inspection indicated that an accident'occurred at your
i?lunt"whorain,a oontainer of. 'qreen fluorescent 'dye was 'discharged
into a cate~.basin wi~n ,your.plant 'area, ~hich ~thencereached

. ':.. '.'tile Lockwood 'street: Storm· 'SeWer and };he:P.ass:aic :River" ..'.: .. ::.... ':':. ..'. ..:.....,. .:' - . . '. . .. .. :.. .~ ..' .

," ·I pointedou.t'to' you d~~ing·.o~r .1n·speetion,· that the area was
extreme~y sloppy 'and pollu~ion 'could 'oge~.not only·by accidental
,spills,: but during ,any ·time.rain would wash .the material which was
.1Ying on. ~he 'C]roUnd,,to the storm sewer.. I informed you that the ._
area which:drains ~~ '~y storm ~ewer'must be ~eleared of'any spillage'
and kept clean. I ·also info~med'you that i.f it was, impossible to
kee'p clean, you must·,rep'ipe this seWer, to the' ,;s~itary system, if
.·allO'lled by th.City ~£ Newark; 'In .anYcase,', the polluting material
could not pe allowed to reacn:~e passaic. River.

The commissi.onersreques·t a rep~ly to this letter , .in which .
you will inform them of what 'steps you will take 'to prevent a
furt~er pollution ,to the Passaic River :from your plant,' together
.with 'a '-time ·table"·indicating when these steps -taken will. be ·complet~d.
'At thattime the ~omm1ssioners would,desire :to re~inspect' your plant
e.rea to determine 'if' ·al;!..possible 'poin~s of poll~tion have been' .
eliminated.' ..... " ..

"

very -truly yours, "

P:;:tjS~AI . V ,LE ,:BRAGE 'COMMISSIoNERS
. _ ~_ ~ . ll,."v~
. ' ·S. A~ tub 'tkin,

C;~L:mr. Chief ~gineer
Certified Hail/·· , .'. '.
C.C. TO:' ,\ P.V .•S:.:C.. ;·.·...Chief .Coun·s·el'se9~e~, ',Me~srs~"Goldb~~q, ,

. ." ' Flemi~q,' ..Cuccinello, ":De Lane."

. ,.... :.: ..... ;'
, • . ~ ...... ""...I ~ ••J.,.' • ," .. ' " . '. ,... ' ". :.",....
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Hr. S.A. Lubetkln
Chief &n91neer
Passaic Valley Sewerage eammi••loner8
790 Broad street
Newark, New Jeraey

Dear Hr. LUbet:Ir:!nJ

!l'he catch basin area in qu4lation haa Men cleaned and ftlaln-
tained ainee your vi.It of Auquat 19, 197'1. !'his are. h•• been
inapected brice by John Nclaugh1tn durillg t:hia period, and he in-
dicated the houaeJc•• pJ.nv va. .aU.factory.

%n adr1J.t.1on. we are ~re.ent1y inatalling a .. venty foot: loftg
aix ineh plastic drain to neeive all SCrubbing water and effluent
in this ana. !'hi• .,111 be Wtalled by the end of September.

Pina11y, no t'urthv production of fluor •• cein 1. anUcipabd
this year. If' we lUftufaet\l.r:e this Product in the fUture, we Will
recover and bleach all dye effluent before dllcha.tV1ng to the Ian-1tary .ewer.

Very truly youra,

Paul B. !'hoIDa.set
aT/.e
CC - Hr. Ro~r ladwl.n v

Hr. Doug liaen'elder
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FEB 15 1972

CITY OF NEWARK, NEW JE~SEY
KENNIETH A. OI.'ON. M.,.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND WELFARE
0", A\,AN •• Cl.AIUC, DI"""'''

b'V'BION 0 .. INS~.CTIONS
""WAND •. LIM.O

"••".eTo"
CO"NI:LIU •• ODIN.

"V IE " ,0.

Thomas Set Colora
120 Lister Avenue
Newark, lev Jersey •

Re. 120 Lister AveDue

Dear Sir.
A reoent. inspeotion lIade by the Division ot Inspeot10ns di80l08es
the tollowlns violations. Seotion. :D3.l0.1 - P1~lnl Code

,-

The sever Departmenttook out a .ample trom the sever Une and tound
oh.mioal in the line. .
Have thi. condition cheoked tor a deteotive •• ver 'line ~r 70u are putting
.ame chemioal in the line troa JOur tank.

ID.~otora J.... Policastro

You are hereby notitied that a reinspeotion will be made ·within
)0 days. All violatioDs must be oorreoted at the

expiration ot that tlme or a oourt Gomplaint .ill be lsaued
against you tor tailure to oomply with the rules and regulations
ot this nlv18ion.
SECTION 1512-4
ANY PERSON SERVED WITH ANY NOTICE REFERRED TO IN THIS SECTION MAY
REQUEST A HEARING THEREON, PROVIDED SUCH REQUEST IS "MADE IN WRITING
AND FILED WITH THE DIRECTOR, DEPARTMENT" Of HEALTH AND WEUARE,
.ROOM 210, CITY HALL, NEWARK, N. J. WITHIN FIVE bAYS AFTER THE DATE
NOTICI WAS SIRVED. .

JOare
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
REGION 2

290 BROADWAY
NEW YORK, NY 10007-1866

QI~~~10:~~
-------J::::/

_, r..

SEP !.,'

.GENERAL NOTICE LETTER
URGENT'LEGAL MATTER
PROMPT REPLY NECESSARY

,CERTIFIED MAIL-RE~ RECEIPT REQUESTED

Ralph Foglia, President
Drum Service of Newark, Inc.
51·Stanton Street

. Newark, NJ 071 02

RE: Diamond Alkali Superfund Site
Notice of Potential Liability for
Response Actions in the Lower ~assaic River Study Area, New Jersey

Dear Mr. Foglia:

The United States Environmental Protection Agency ("EPAn) is charged with responding to the
, release and/or threatened release ofhazardo~s substances, pollutants, and contaminants into the

environment and with enforcement responsibilities under the Comprehensive Environmental
,Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980, as amended ("CERCLA"), 42 D.S.C. §9601
g~. Accordingly, EPA is seeking your cooperation in an innovative approach to
environmental remediation and restoration activities for the Lower Passai,c River.

EPA has documented the release or threatened release of hazardous substances, pollutants and
contm;ninants into the six-mile stretch of the river, known as the Passaic River Study Area, which
is part of the Diamond Alkali Superfund Site ("Site;') located inNewark, New Jersey. Based on
the results of previous CERCLA remedial investigation activities and other environmental

. studies, including a reconnaissance study of the Passaic River conducted by the United States'
Army Corps of Engineers ("DSACE"), EPA has further determined that contaminated sediments
and other potential sources of hazardous substances exist along the entire '17-mile tidal reach of
the Lower Passaic River. Thus, EPA has decided to expand the area of study to include the entire
Lower Passaic River and its tributaries from Dundee Dam to Newark: Bay ("Lower Passaic Riv~
Study Area").

By this letter, EPA is notifying Drum Service of Newark, Inc. (''Drum Service") of its potential
liability relating to the Site pursuant to Section l07(a) ofCERCLA, 42 D.S.C. §9607(a). Under
CERCLA, potentially responsible parties ("PRPs") include current and past-owners of a facility,
as well as persons who arranged for the disposal or treatment. of hazardous substances at the Site,
or the transport of hazardous substances tp -the Site. ,

Internet Address {URL). http://www,epa.gov
Recycled/Recyclable. Printed with Vegelable Oil Based Inks on Recycled Paper (Minimum 50% POlltconsumer content) -

'." ~.

TIERRA-B-001248



.~ • 't

••

•

•

, ".. :'.'. ~\..' ~.., :. .': _.. . ..
;,.~.

In'recognition of our complementary roles, EPA haS fonned a partnership with USACE and the
. New JerseYDepartment ofTransportation-Offiee ofMarithne Resources e'6MR'~r'the

governmental partnership] to identify and·to address water quality improvement, remediation,
'and restora;tion opportunities in the 17-mile Lower Passaic River. This governmental partnership
is.consistentwith a national Memorandum of Understanding, ("MOU") executed on July 2,2002
between EPA and USACE. This MOU calls for 'the two agencies to cooperate, where
appropriate, on environmental remediation and restoration of degraded. urban rivers and related
resources. In agr~ing to,implement the MOU; the EPA and USACE will use their existing
statutory and regulatory authorities in a coordinated manner. These authorities {or EPA include
CERCLA, the Clean Water Act, arid the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. The
USACE's authority steins from the Water Resources Development Act e'WRi>A"). WROA '
allows for the use of some federal funds to pay for a portion of the USACE's approved projects
related to ec9'system restoration.

For the first phase of the Lower Passaic River Restoration ~oject, the governmental partners are
,proceeding with an integrated five- to seven-year study to determine ari appropriate remediation
..and restoration plan for the river. The study will involve investigation of environmental impacts
and pollution sources, as well as evaluation of alternative actions, leading to recommendations of
environmental remediation and restoratic;mactivities. This study is heing cond'ijcted by EPA
under the authority of CERCLA and by USACE and OMR, as local sponsor, under WRDA.
EPA, USACE, and OMR are attempting to coordinate with the New Jersey Department of
Environmental Protection and the Federal and State Natural Resource Trustee agencies. EP A,
USACE, and OMR estimate that the study will cost approximately $20 million, with the WRDA
and CERCLA shares being about $10 million each. EPA is seeking its share of the costs of the
study from PRPs.

Based on information that EPA evaluated during the cOJlISeof its investigation of the Site, EPA
believes that hazardous substances were being released from Drum Service's facility located at

. 120 Lister Avenue inNewark, New Jersey, into the LOwer Passai'c River Study Area. lIazardous
substances, pollutants and contaminants released from the facility into the river present a risk to
the environment and the humans who may ingest pontaminated fish and shellfish. Therefore,
Drum Service may be potentially liable for response costs which tJ)e government may incur
relating to the study of the Lower Passaic River. Inad~ition, responsible parties may be required·
to pay daIn~ges for injury to, destruction of, or loss of natural resources, including the cost of
assessing such damages;

EPA is aware that the financial ability of some PRPs to contrib1lte toward the payment Qf
response costs 'at the Site may be substantially limited. Ifyou believe, and can document, that
you fall within that category ..please inform Ms. Reddy and Mr. Hyatt in writing at the addresses
identified in this letter; You will be asked to submit financial records including business and,
possibly, personal federal income tax returns as well as audited financial statements to '
substantiate such a claim. ' '
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Please note that, because EPA has a potential claim against you; you must ihclude EPA as a
creditorif you file for bankruptcy. You are also requested to preserve and retain any documents
now in your Company's or its agents' possession or control, that relate in any manner to your
facility or the Site or to the liability of any person under CERCLA for response actions or .
response costs at or in'cOIltlectionwith the facility or the Site, regardless of any corporate
document retention policy to the contrary ..

.Enclosed is a list o(the other PRPs who have received Notice letters. T~is list represents EPA's
findings on the identities ofPRPs to date. We ar~ continuing efforts to locate additional PRPs

.who have released hazardous substances, directly or indirectly, into the Lower Passaic River .
Study Area. Exclusion from the list does 'not constitute a fmal determination by EPA concerning
.the liability of any party for the releas~ or threat of release of hazardous substances at the Site. .
Be advised that notice of your potentiai liability at the Site may b'e forwarded to all parties on this
list as well as to the Natural Resource Trustees. ,.~..,

We req~est. that you become a <'cooperating party" for the Lower Passaic River Restoration
Project. As a cooperating party, you, along with many other such parties, will be expected to

. 'fund EPA's share of the study costs. Upon completion of the study, it is expected that CERCLA

. and WRDA processes will be used to identify the required remediation and restoration programs,
'. ·as well as the assignment of remediation and restoration costs. At this time, the commitments of

the cooperating parties will apply only to the study. For those who choose not to cooperate, EPA
may apply the CERCLA enforcement-process, pursuant to Sections 106(a) and l07(a)of

. :.....cERCLA,:42 ...tJ--S.C..§9606(a}and-§-9601{-a}.and-otber..laws.-·- '--'.-' . - ...._.-• . .
¥ou"may.become a-:cooperatingparty byparticipatingdn the Cooperating Parties Group
("Group'') that has already fonned to 'provide EPA's funding for the Lower Passaic River
Restoration Project. This cooperative response is embodied iti an Administrative Order on
Consent ("AOC"), a copy of which can be obtained at the following web address:
www.ourpassaic.org!home/aoc.pdf.

. We strongly encourage you to review the AOC and contact the Group to discuss your
participation. You may do so by contacting:

William H. Hyatt, Esq.
Common Counsel fot the Lower Passaic River Study Area Cooperating Parties Group
Kirkpatrick & Lockhart LLP
One Newark Center, 10tbFloor
Newark, New Jersey 07192
(973) 848-4045
whyatt@k1.com

Written notification should be provided to EPA and Mr. Hyatt documenting your intention to
join the' Group and settle with EPA no later than 30 calendar days from your receipt of this letter.
It is BPA's intent to amend the Aoe at a later date to reflect the settlement negotiations. EPA's
written' notification should be mailed to:•
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Kedari Reddy, Assistant Regional Counsel
Office of ;Regio~al Counsel
U.S. ,Environmental Protection Agency
290 Broadway - 17th Floor
New.York~ New York 10007-1866

Pursuant to CERCLA S~tion 113(k), EPA must establish an administrative record that contains
. doc~ents that form the basis ofEP A's decision on the selection of a response action for a site.
The admini$trative record files, which contain the documents related to the r~onse action
selected for this Site are located at EPA'~ Region 2 office (290 Broadway, New York, NY) on
the 18th floor. you may call the Records Cep.ter a~(212) 637-4308 to make an appointment to
view the administrative record for the Diamond Alkali Site, Passaic River.

As you may be aware, on January 11, 2002, President Bush signed into law ~e Supeifund Small
. Business Liability Relief and Brownfields RevitaliZation Act.. This Act contains several
exemptions and defenses to CERCLA liability, which we suggest that all parties evaluate. You'
may obtain a copy ofthe law via the. Internet at http://www.epa.gov/swerospslbf7sblrbra.htm
and review EPA 'guidances regarding these exemptions at http://www.epa.gov/compiiance!
resources/policies/cleanup/superfund.

Inquiries by counselor inquiries ofa legal nature should be directed to Ms. Reddy at (212) 637-
~3-106;-~uestions of a technical nature should'be directed to Elizabeth Butler, Remedial Project
Managerj·at(212}-6l7-4396. ..-...---- .. , --'--' ... -" . .

Sincerely y~lUrs,

;J;:e~{OL
A1eorge Pavlou, Director .b Emergency and Remedial Response Division

Enclosures
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GENERAL NOTICE LETTER
~~sL~t ~i:URN_______ __-- RECEIPT REQUESTED

President
Bayer Corporation
100 Bayer RoadPittsburgh/ pennsylvania 15205-9741
Re: Notice of potential Liability of Sterling winthrop for

Response actions in the passaic River Study Area
Diamond Alkali Superfund Site/ Newark/ New Jersey

Dear Sir:
The united States Environmental Protection Agency (lIEPAIl)is
charged with responding to the release and/or threatened release
of hazardous substances/ pollutants/ and contaminants into the
environment and with enforcement responsibilities under the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability
Act of 1980 (HCERCLA")/ as amended, 42 D.S.C. §9601 at. ~.
EPA has documented the release or threatened release of hazardous
substances, pollutants and contaminants into the Passaic River
Study Area which is part of the Diamond Alkali Superfund Site
("Site") located in Newark, New Jersey. By this letter, EPA has
determined that Sterling Winthrop, Inc. ("Sterling") / as the
owner of the former Thomasset Colors, Inc. located at 120 Lister
Avenue, may be potentially liable relating to the Site pursuant
to section 107 of CERCLA. EPA is notifying Bayer corporation of
Sterling's potential liability as the current owner of Sterling.
sediment in the Passaic River contain numerouS hazardous
substances/ pollutants and contaminants. Investigations
undertaken by EPA indicated that hazardous materials were being
released from the former Thomasset facility located at 120 Lister
Avenue in Newark, New Jersey, into the Passaic River Study Area.
Hazardous substances, pollutants and contaminants released from
the facility into the Passaic River Study Area present a risk to
the environment and the humans who may ingest contaminated fish
and shellfish. Therefore, Sterling may be potentially liable for
all response costs which the government may incur relating to the
passaic River Study Area. 844390001
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Under Sections l06(a) and l07(a) of CERCLA, 42 D.S.C. §9606(a)
and §9607(a) and other laws, potentially responsible parties
("PRPs") may be obligated to implement response actions deemed

necessary by EPA to protect public health, welfare or the
environment, and may be liable for all costs incurred by the
government in responding to any release or threatened release at
the Site. If response actions are performed by EPA rather than
by the PRPs, those PRPs may be subject to legal action pursuant
to Section l07(a) of CERCLA, 42 D.S.C. §9607(a), to recover
public funds expended by EPA in response to the release and
threatened release of hazardous materials at the Site. Such
actions and costs may include, but need not be limited to,
expenditures for conducting a Remedial Investigation/Feasibility
Study (II RI /FS II ), a Remedial Design/Remedial Act ion, and other
investigation, planning, response, oversight, and enforcement
activities. In addition, responsible parties may be required to
pay damages for injury to, destruction of, or loss of natural
resources, including the cost of assessing such damages.

While EPA has the discretionary authority to invoke special
notice procedures, EPA hereby notifies you that it will not
utilize the special notice procedures contained in Section 122(e}
of CERCLA, 42 V.S.C. §9622(e). EPA has concluded that use of the
special notice procedures in Section 122(e) of CERCLA would delay
the implementation of the RI/FS which is currently being
performed at the Site to determine the extent of contamination
and to evaluate possible actions to mitigate any adverse effects.
EPA will determine at a subsequent time whether additional
measures are required to mitigate releases from the Site in order
to protect the public health, welfare, and the environment. The
decision not to use the special notice procedures does not
preclUde you from entering into discussions with EPA regarding
your participation in activities at the Site.

By this letter, EPA encourages you, as a PRP, to voluntarily
participate in the EPA-approved activities underway at the
Passaic River Study Area in conjunction with other PRPs. At the
present time, an RI!FS is being performed at the Study Area under
an Administrative Consent Order with the Occidental Chemical
Corporation ("OCC"). The actual work is being performed by Maxus
Energy Corporation ("Maxus"), pursuant to certain contractual
arrangements with OCC, and should be contacted for information
pertaining to the work being done. Maxus can be contacted at the
addresses listed in the Attachment to this letter. Other PRPs
who have received Notice letters are also listed in the
Attachment. Be advised that notice of your potential liability
at the Site is being forwarded to OCC by EPA.

844390002
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EPA requests your cooperation in this matter. If you are
interested in participating in the ongoing response action you
should notify EPA of your intentions to join with acc.
Notification should be in writing and should be delivered to EPA
no later that fourteen (14) days after the date that you receive
this letter. Your letter should be sent to:

Lance R. Richman, P.G.
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Emergency and Remedial Response Division
290 Broadway, Floor 19

New York, NY 10007-1866,

with a copy to Ms. Amelia Wagner, Esq., of the Office of Regional
Counsel, Floor 17 at the same street address.

If EPA does not receive a written response from you in the time
specified above, EPA will assume that you voluntarily decline to
participate in any of the response actions taking place at the
Site. EPA reserves the right to pursue its available enforcement
options with regard to the site.

If you wish to discuss this matter further, please contact
Mr. Lance R. Richman, P.G., of my staff at (212) 637-4409 or
Ms. Wagner at (212) 637-3141. Please note that all
communications from attorneys should be directed to Ms. Wagner.
Sincerely yours,

Richard Caspe, Director
Emergency and Remedial Response Division
Attachments

CC: Gerard F. Hickel, Counsel
Bayer Corporation

Joseph G. Gabriel
360 North Pastoria Environmental Corporation

Ms. Carol Dinkins, Esq.
Vinson & Elkins, L.L.P.

Mr. Richard P. McNutt
Maxus Energy Corporation

844390003
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ATTACHMENT

Contact for Maxus Energy Corporation:
Mr. Richard P. McNutt
Maxus Energy Corporation
1015 Belleville Turnpike
Kearny, New Jersey 07032

Counsel: Ms. Carol E. Dinkins, Esq.
Vinson & Elkins, L.L.P.
2300 First City Tower
1001 Fannin Street
Houston, Texas 77002-6760

PRPs in receipt of Notice Letters:
Mr. J. Roger Hirl
President and Chairman of the Board
Occidental Chemical Company
Occidental Tower
5005 LBJ Freeway
Dallas, Texas 75244

Mr. Robert L. Ball, President
Alcan Aluminum Corporation
100 Erieview Plaza, 29th Floor
Cleveland, Ohio 44114

Counsel: Lawrence A. Salibra II, Esq., Senior Counsel
Alcan Aluminum Corporation
6060 Parkland Blvd.
Mayfield, Hts., Ohio 44124

Mr. David J. DtAntoni, President
Ashland Chemical Company
P.O. Box 2219
Columbus, Ohio 43216

Counsel: Stephen W. Leermakers, Esq., Senior Litigation Counsel
Ashland Chemical Company
5200 Blazer Parkway
Dublin, Ohio 43017

1
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President
Bayer Corporation
100 Bayer Road
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15205-9741
Counsel: Gerard F. Hickel, Esq.

Counsel, Corporate Health, Environment and Safety
Bayer Corporation

Mr. Maurice C. Workman, President
Benjamin Moore & Co.
51 Chestnut Ridge Road
Montvale, New Jersey 07645
Counsel: John T. Rafferty, Esq., General Counsel

Benjamin Moore & Co.

Brian C. Kelly, Esq.
ChriS-Craft Industries, Inc.
600 Madison Avenue
New York, New York 10022
Counsel: Peter Simshauser, Esq.

Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom
300 South Grand Avenue
Los Angeles, California 90071-3144

Mr. Edgar S. Woolward, Jr., Chairman
E.l. du Pont de Nemours and Company
1007 Market Street
Wilmington, Delaware 19898
Counsel: Bernard J. Reilly, Esq., Corporate Counsel

E.l. du Pont de Nemours and Company

Mr. George M. Fisher, President
Eastman Kodak Company
343 State Street
Rochester, New York 14650
Mr. Joseph G. Gabriel, Vice President
360 North Pastoria Environmental Corporation
(a wholly-owned subsidiary of Eastman Kodak Company)
1100 Ridgeway Avenue
Rochester, New York 14652-6280
Counsel: Elliot Stern, Esq., Counsel

Eastman Kodak Company
2
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Mr. Richard J. Mahoney, Chief Executive
Monsanto Company
800 N. Lindbergh Blvd.
St. Louis, Missouri 63167

Counsel: Peter H. Smith, Esq., Assistant Environmental Counsel
Monsanto Company

Mr. Robert D. McNeeley, President
Reilly Industries, Inc.
1510 Market Square Center
151 North Delaware Street
Indianapolis, IN 46204

Counsel: Jacqueline A. Simmons, Esq.
Reilly Industries, Inc.

Mr. John G. Breen, Chairman of the Board
The Sherwin-Williams Company
101 Prospect Avenue, N.W.
Cleveland, Ohio 44115-1075

Counsel: Donald J. McConnell, Esq., Environmental Counsel
The Sherwin-Williams Company

3
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I also wish to receive the
following services (for an
extra file):

1. 0 Addressee's Address
2. 0 Restrteted Delivery

Consult posbnaster for fee.
4a. Article Number

EG298060267US

Domestic Return Receipt

~:.
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i 3. Article Addressed to:
! Mr, Joseph G. Gabriel, VPe 160 North Pastoria Envi. Corp.
S (a wholly-owned subsidiary of

Eastman Kodak Company)
1100 Ridgeway Ave.
Rochester, NY 14652-6280
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